NAVSHIPS 91543

# **INSTRUCTION BOOK**

# for

# **KEYERS** KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

# NATIONAL COMPANY, INC. MALDEN 48, MASSACHUSETTS

# **BUREAU OF SHIPS**

NAVY DEPARTMENT

Change 1 - Contered - 19 June 1962 Change 1 Errata - Contered - 19 June 1962 TCT

NObsr-52052 NObsr-57530

Contracts: NObsr-42513 Approved by BuShips: 6 OCTOBER 1951 Change 1: 19 DECEMBER 1952

# LIST OF EFFECTIVE PAGES

PAGE NUMBERS	CHANGE IN EFFECT	PAGE NUMBERS	CHANGE IN EFFECT
Title Page	Change 1	3–7	Change 1
A	Change 1	3-8 to 3-10	Original
В	Change 1	4-1 to 4-4	Original
C	Original	5-1 to 5-4	Original
i to vi	Original	6 <b>-1 to</b> 6 <b>-2</b>	Original
1-0 to 1-6	Original	7-0 to 7-28	Original
2-1 to 2-6	Original	7–29 to 7–30	Change 1
2-7	Change 1	7-31 to 7-32	Original
2-8 to 2-19	Original	7–33 to 7–34	Change 1
3-0	Change 1	7-35 to 7-42	Original
3-1	Original	7-43	Change 1
3-2	Change 1	8-0 to 8-64	Original
3-3 to 3-6	Original		

CHANGE 1

#### TEMPORARY CORRECTION T-2 TO INSTRUCTION BOOK FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT (NAVSHIPS 91543)

The following revisions are to be made or noted on the appropriate page.

Page	Revision
1-2	Add to Para. 4. b.: Contract NObsr-57530, dated 16 June 1952.
3-7	Change Para. 2. d. (7) to read: Keyer connections to the photo scanner are made employing cable W-110 connected between the photo input jack J-113 and the photo scanner output circuit.
7-5	Change Step 6 of Para. 4. c. (4) to read: Connect a battery source of 5 to 20 volts to the photo input jack J-113 across pins C and B.
7-6	Change Step 12 of Para. 4. c. (4) to read: Return the battery connections to photo input jack J-113.
7-11	Change Step 1 of Para. 5. b. to read: Connect the battery to the photo input jack J-113. Connect the positive lead to pin C and the negative lead to pin B.
8-8	Add to Column 2 of E-101: marked: Photo input; includes J-113.
8-11	Add to Column 2 of E-122: marked: Photo Input; includes J-113.
8-13	Add to Column 8 of J-101; J-113. Change Column 9 to 3.
8-14	Add: J-113, Same as J-101, Photo Input jack.
8-31	Add to Column 8 of P-109: P-115; change Column 9 to 3. Add to Column 8 of P-110; P-116; change Column 9 to 3.
8-32	Add: P-115; Same as P-109; Part of W-110, Photo Input connector.
8-53	Add to Column 8 of W-101: W-110; change Column 9 to 2.
0.55	

- 8-55 Add: W-110, Same as W-101, Photo Input cable.
- 8-

Add the following Standard Navy Stock Nos. to Column 5 of the components listed.

SYMBOL	S TANDARD NAVY	SYMBOL	STANDARD NAVY	SYMBOL	STANDARD NAVY
DESIG.	STOCK NO.	DESIG.	S TOCK NO.	DESIG.	S TOCK NO.
A-101	N17-P-22382-8797	L-101	N16-C-75124-5231	N-102	N16-C-260001-167
A-102	N17-P-22400-6601	L-103	N16-C-73981-4601	0-117	N17-D-200001-121
A-103	N17-P-17693-5995	L-104	N16-C-73808-2801	0-118	N16-B-800214-778
A-104	N16-C-10638-4381	L-105	N16-C-74714-8376	0-122	N17-C-98378-8291
A-105	N16-C-10638-4501	L-106	N16-C-76593-7751	0-123	N17-C-98378-8381
E-101	N17-C-74590-2001	L-107	N16-C-76635-5321	0-127	N17-C-98378-7876
E-102	N17-I-64844-3981	L-108	N16-C-76662-1721	0-128	N16-B-300001-134
E-114	N16-K-700399-645	L-113	N16-C-76581-2420	0-136	N16-B-200661-331
E-115	N16-K-700399-610	L-114	N16-C-76629-1201	0-143	N16-N-88911-1003
E-116	N16-K-700399-590	L-115	N16-C-76652-4601	0-144	N43-S•52840-5125
E-119	N16-C-95416-9281	L-116	N16-C-74892-5673	0-145	N16-G-900133-859
E-120	N17-I-71134-3601	L-117	N16-C-72778-8840	0-146	N16-P-400681-105
E-122	N16-I-85001-1003	L-118	N16-C-76607-6509	0-147	N17-G-155656-555
H-102	N43-S-60167-9120	L-119	N16-C-76645-3481	0-148	N16-P-404101-264
J-105	N17-C-73330-1950	L-120	N16-C-76662-4005	0-154	N16-S-21035-2766
J-106	N17-C-73330-1951	L-121	N16-C-76425-8597	0-155	N16-S-21065-5175
J-109B	N17-S-38251-1017	L-124	or 16-6-76699-4151	0-156	N16-S-20917-4456
J-109C	N17-S-38251-1016	N-101	Sixth Have 17 1 Strict	0-156 Manager 0-157	N16-L-157001-121

SYMBOL DESIG.	STANDARD NAVY STOCK NO.	SYMBOL DESIG.	STANDARD NAVY STOCK NO.	SYMBOL DESIG.	STANDARD NAV STOCK NO.
O-158	N16-L-157001-120	O-196	N43-N-99500-223	T-102	N17-T-82187-332
0-159	N17-S-46844-5806	0-197	N16-W-180001-253	T-103	N16-C-76489-456
0-160 ···	N17-S-46844-5801	O-198	N16-G-500001-342	<b>T-104</b>	N17-T-82178-617
0-161	N42-R-56578-2203	O-199	N16-G-432490-391	V-105	N16-T-56665
D-163	N16-B-800265-647	<b>O-2</b> 00	N16-K-48151-1003	W-101	N17-C-48193-125
0-164	N16-S-800649-551	O-201	N16-D-351301-104	W-102	N17-C-48193-125
0-165	N42-R-56566-2199	O-202	N16-C-301143-101	W-103	N17-C-48193-120
0-166	N16-S-20881-7976	P-101	N17-C-73626-8665	W-104	N17-S-690701-16
0-167	N43-W-7508-3849	P-102	N17-C-73626-8666	W-105	N17-S-690701-16
0-168	N16-L-150001-142	P-113	N17-C-71168-1352	W-106	N16-C-11586-884
0-169	N16-N-88601-1022	P-114	N17-C-71460-4063	W-107	N16-C-11586-884
D-174	N17-S-46777-5551	R-102	N16-R-90656-6405	W-108	N16-C-11586-884
<b>D-175</b>	N54-B-2433	R-126	N16-R-79184-9909	W-109	N17-B-48894-900
0-177	N42-C-13085-3083	R-127	N16-R-79180-2279	Z-105	N16-C-76662-72
0-179	N17-S-46772-4326	R-130	N16-R-79190-1589	Z-106	N16-C-76674-30
0-180	N43-N-9634-1225	R-133	N16-R-79195-6329	TB-101	N17-B-77892-330
D-181	N16-I-76611-1003	R-134	N16-R-79070-8755	TB-102	N17-B-77892-330
0-182	N16-I-76611-1002	R-135	N16-R-79102-3886	TB-103	N17-B-78137-80
0-183	N16-I-76611-1001	R-136	N16-R-79142-9999	TB-104	N17-B-78137-80
D-185	N16-I-76611-1004	R-138	N16-R-79029-2279	TB-105	N17-B-78034-110
D-187	N17-C-781444-634	R-139	N16-R-78996-8539	TB-106	N17-B-78333-86
O-188	N17-F-42376-8501	R-162	N16-R-88180-9755	XI-101	N17-L-76683-27
<b>D-18</b> 9	N17-F-42371-3001	R-202	N16-R-66303-4607	XI-101A	N17-L-250028-21
D-190	N17-B-801498-363	S-101A	N17-S-91897-8834	XI-102	N17-L-76854-428
<b>D-192</b>	N16-L-150001-146	S-101D	N17-D-200001-123	XI-102A	N17-L-250627-50
0-193	N17-M-75717-8701	S-104A	N17-S-91897-8835	XI-103	N17-L-76901-13
<b>D-</b> 194	N42-R-2059-175	S-104E	N17-D-200001-124	XI-103A	N17-L-250845-1
D-195	N16-H-500001-131	<b>T-101</b>	N17-T-75701-8372	XY-104	N16-S-54520-755

### ERRATA SHEET TO CHANGE 1 TO NAVSHIPS 91543

The following revisions are to be made or noted on the appropriate page.

Page	Revision	
3-7	Change Para. 2. d. (7) to read: Keyer connections to the photo scanner are made employ- ing cable W-110 connected between the photo input jack J-113 and the photo scanner out- put circuit.	
7–2	In the block CHECK under Photo Operation    Loose or broken contacts on Switch S-101 under Photo Operation   Metering Switch S-102 Input Cable W-101   Keyline Jack J-101 Photo Scanner   Change Keyline Jack J-101 to Photo Jack J-113	
7-5	Change Step 6 of Para. 4. c. (4) to read: Connect a battery source of 5 to 20 volts to the photo input jack J-113 across pins C and B.	
7–6	Change Step 12 of Para. 4. c. (4) to read: Return the battery connections to photo input jack J-113.	
7–11	Change Step 1 of Para. 5. b. to read: Connect the battery to the photo input jack J-113. Connect the positive lead to pin C and the negative lead to pin B.	
8-8	Add to Column 2 of E-101: marked: Photo input; includes J-113.	
8-11	Add to Column 2 of E-122: marked: Photo input; includes J-113.	
8-13	Add to Column 8 of J-101; J-113. Change Column 9 to 3.	
8-14	Add: J-113, Same as J-101, Photo Input jack.	
8-31	Add to Column 8 of P-109: P-115; change Column 9 to 3. Add to Column 8 of P-110: P-116; change Column 9 to 3.	
8-32	Add: P-115; Same as P-109; Part of W-110, Photo Input connector. Add: P-116; Same as P-110; Part of W-110, Photo Input connector.	
8-53	Add to Column 8 of W-101: W-110; change Column 9 to 2.	
8-55	Add: W-110, Same as W-101, Photo Input cable.	

-.

# NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

Promulgating Letter



**Correction** Page

С

### NAVSHIPS 91543

KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

FRONT MATTER

.

# **RECORD OF CORRECTIONS MADE**

CHANGE NO.	DATE	SIGNATURE OF OFFICER MAKING CORRECTION
		· · ·

ORIGINAL

#### FRONT MATTER

NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

**Contents and Illustrations** 

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# SECTION 1 - GENERAL DESCRIPTION

Paragi	raph	Page
1.	Scope of this Manual	1-1
2.	Purpose and Basic Principles	1 - 1
3.	Description of Units	1 - 1
	Reference Data	

### **SECTION 2 - THEORY OF OPERATION**

1.	General	Theory	and	Description	····· <b>-</b> ····	2-1
-	~ .					

2. General Circuit Description ..... 2-3

#### SECTION 3 - INSTALLATION

1.	Unpacking	3-1
2.	Installation	3-1
3.	Initial Adjustments and Performance	
	Test	3-7

#### **SECTION 4 - OPERATION**

1.	Introduction	4-1
2.	General	4-1

## 3. Controls ...... 4-1

4. Operating Instructions ...... 4-2

## SECTION 5 - OPERATOR'S MAINTENANCE

- 2. Emergency Maintenance ..... 5-2

### SECTION 6 - PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE

1.	Routine Maintenance Checks	6-1
2.	Lubrication	6-2

#### SECTION 7 - CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE

1.	Failure Report	7-1
2.	Introduction	7-1
3.	Theory of Localization	7-1
4.	Trouble Shooting	7-1
5.	Repairs	7-7

#### **SECTION 8 – PARTS LIST**

(See List of Tables)

# LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS

#### SECTION 1 - GENERAL DESCRIPTION

Figure		Page
1-1	Keyer KY-58/GRT	1-0
1-2	Keyer KY-75/SRT	1-2
1-3	Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT	1-3
1-4	Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT	1-4

#### SECTION 2 - THEORY OF OPERATION

2 - 1	Block Outline of Transmitting Instal-	
	lation Employing the Keyer	2-1
2-2	Functional Block Diagram	2-2
2-3	Limiter Stages, Simplified Schematic	
	Diagram	25
2-5	Cathode Follower Stages, Simplified	
	Schematic Diagram	2-6
2-5	Photo Input Stages, Simplified Sche-	
	matic Diagram	2-7

2-6	Phase Modulation Oscillator Stage,	
	Schematic Diagram	2-8
2-7	Pulse Shaper Stage, Simplified Schema-	
	tic Diagram	2-9
2-8	Deviation Multipliers and Deviation	
	Controls, Simplified Schematic Dia-	
	gram	2-10
2-9	200-Kilocycle Oscillator Stage, Sim-	
	plified Schematic Diagram	2-11
2-10	Vector Diagrams showing the effects	
	of deviation variation on carrier	
	placement	2-12
2-11	Reactance Modulator Stage, Simplified	
	Schematic Diagram	2-12
2-12	Crystal Oscillator - Amplifier Stage,	
	Schematic Diagram	2-13
2-13	Balanced Mixer Stages, Simplified	
	Schematic Diagram	2-14
2-14	Buffer Amplifier Stage, Simplified	
		-

#### ORIGINAL

i

FRONT MATTER

Deee

# LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS (cont'd)

Fi	<i>gure</i>
	E mile

	Schematic Diagram	2-15
2-15	Final Amplifier Stage, Simplified	
	Schematic Diagram	2-16
2-16	Power Supply Circuit, Simplified	
	Schematic Diagram	2-17
2-17	Crystal Oven, Simplified Schematic Dia-	
	gram	2-18

### SECTION 3 - INSTALLATION

3-1	Keyer KY-58/GRT, Dimensional Out-	
	line and External Connection Draw-	
	ing	3-0
3-2	Keyer KY-75/SRT, Dimensional Out-	
	line and External Connection Draw-	
	ing	3-2
3-3	Crystal Socket Identification	3-3
3-4	Assembly of -49195 Connector and	
	RG-8/U cable for Keyer Output, Freq	
	Meter R.F. and Ext. Osc. Connections	3-4
3-5	Assembly of AN 3106B-14S-1S and AN	
	3106B-14S-1P Connectors to type	
	MCOS-2 cable for Freq Meter Audio	
	and Keyline Connections	3-5
3-6	Assembly of A.C. Connectors to type	
	MCOS-2 cable	3-6
3-7	Front-Panel Component Identification.	3-8

# SECTION 4 - OPERATION

4 - 1	Operating Instructions for Frequency	× .
	Shift Keying	4-3
4-2	Tuning Chart	4-4

### SECTION 5 - OPERATOR'S MAINTENANCE

5 - 1	Fuse Locations, Modulator-Power	
	Supply MD-165/URT	5-2
5-2	Tube Locations, Amplifier-Oscillator	
	AM-655/URT	5-3
5-3	Tube Locations, Modulator-Power	
	Supply MD-165/URT	5-4

# SECTION 7 - CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE

7-1	Failure Report	7-0
7-2	Trouble Shooting Chart	7-2
7-3	Voltage and Resistance Data Chart,	
	Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT	7-3
7-4	Voltage and Resistance Data Chart,	
	Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT	7-4
ii		

		r uge
7-5	Interconnections for Frequency Devia-	
7-6	tion Test Interconnections for Phase Modulation	7-5
7-0	Test	7-6
77	Oscilloscope Pattern Representing One	/ -0
/-/	Radian of Phase Modulation	7-6
7-8	Alignment Adjustment Locations, Bottom	, 0
7-0	View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/	
	URT	7_8
7-9	Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top	/ =0
. ,	View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/	
	URT	7-9
7-10	Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top	
	View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-	
	165/URT	7-11
7-11	Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front	
	View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/	
	URT with Panel Door Open	7-12
7-12	Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front	/
, 12	View of Amplifier Oscillator AM-655/	
	URT with Panel Door Open	7-13
7-13	Frequency Response of 60-cycle Keying	/ 19
, 19	Filter Z-101	7-25
7-14	Frequency Response of 100-cycle Keying	
	Filter Z-102	7–25
7-15	Frequency Response of 200-cycle Keying	
	Filter Z-103	7–26
7-16	Frequency Response of 240 cycle Keying	
	Filter Z-104	7–26
7-17	Transient Response of Waveshaping	
	Filters	7–27
7-18	Overall Dynamic Response of Photo	
	Circuits	7–27
7–19	Frequency-Shift vs. Key Line Voltage,	
	Static Test	7–28
7-20	Overall Photo Linearity, Static Test	7–28
7-21	Schematic Diagram, KY-58/GRT and	
	KY-75/SRT Keyers7-29,	7-30
7 <del>_</del> 22	Practical Wiring Diagram, Amplifier-	
	Oscillator AM-655/URT7-31,	7-32
7–23	Practical Wiring Diagram, Modulator-	
	Power Supply MD-165/URT7-33,	7-34
7-24	Component Locations, Top View of	
	Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT	7–35
7-25	Capacitor Locations, Bottom	
	View of Amplifier-Oscillator	
	AM-655/URT	7–36
7-26	Resistor Locations, Bottom View of	
	Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT	7-37
7-27	Miscellaneous Component Locations,	

ORIGINAL

FRONT MATTER

NAVSHIPS 91543

KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

# LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS (cont'd)

#### Figure

	Bottom View of Amplifier-Oscillator	
	AM-655/URT	7-38
7-28	Component Locations, Top View of Modu-	
	lator-Power Supply MD-165/URT	739

- 7-29 Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT ..... 7-40
- 7-30 Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-

		Page
	Power Supply MD-165/URT	7-41
7-31	Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left	
	Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-	
	655/URT	7-42
7-32	Practical Wiring Diagram of Blister	
	Assembly, KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT	
	Keyers	7-43

# LIST OF TABLES

#### SECTION 1 - GENERAL DESCRIPTION

Page
1–5
1–6
1–6

#### SECTION 5 - OPERATOR'S MAINTENANCE

5-1 Routine Check Chart ...... 5-1

#### SECTION 6 - PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE

6-1 Routine Maintenance Check Chart .... 6-1

### SECTION 7 - CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE

7–1	Tube Operating Voltages and	
	Currents	7-15
7-2	Tube Characteristics	7–16

7-3	Winding Data	Chart	 7-17, 7-18,
	_		7-19, 7-20,
			7-21, 7-22,
			7-23, 7-24

### **SECTION 8 – PARTS LIST**

8-1	Weights and Dimensions of Repair	
	Parts Boxes	8-0
8-2	Shipping Weights and Dimensions of	
	Repair Parts Boxes	80
8-3	List of Major Units	80
8-4	Combined Parts and Repair Parts	
	List	8–61
8-5	Cross Reference Parts List	8–62
8-6	Applicable Color Codes amd Mis-	
	cellaneous Data	8-63
8-7	List of Manufacturers	8-64

# **GUARANTEE**

The equipment including all parts and spare parts, except vacuum tubes, batteries, rubber and material normally consumed in operation is guaranteed for a period of one year from the date of delivery of the equipment to and acceptance by the Government with the understanding that all such items found to be defective as to material, workmanship or manufacture will be repaired or replaced, f.o.b. any point within the continental limits of the United States designated by the Government, without delay and at no expense to the Government, provided that such guarantee will not obligate the Contractor to make repair or replacement of any such defective items unless the defect appears within the aforementioned period and the Contractor is notified thereof in writing within a reasonable time and the defect is not the result of normal expected shelf life deterioration.

To the extent the equipment, including all parts and spare parts, as defined above is of the Contractor's design or is of a design selected by the Contractor, it is also guaranteed, subject to the foregoing condition, against defects in design with the understanding that if ten percent (10%) or more of any such said item, but not less than two of any such item, of the total quantity comprising such items furnished under the contract, are found to be defective as to design such item will be conclusively presumed to be of defective design and subject to one hundred percent (100%) correction or replacement by a suitably redesigned item.

All such defective items will be subject to ultimate return to the Contractor. In view of the fact that normal activities of the Naval Service may result in the use of equipment in such remote portion of the world or under such conditions as to preclude the return of the defective items for repair or replacement without jeopardizing the integrity of Naval communications, the exigencies of the Service, therefore, may necessitate expeditious repair of such items in order to prevent extended interruptions of communication. In such cases the return of the defective items for examination by the Contractor prior to repair or replacement will not be mandatory. The report of a responsible authority, including details of the conditions surrounding the failure, will be acceptable as a basis for affecting expeditious adjustment under the provisions of this contractual guarantee.

The above one year period will not include any portion of time the equipment fails to perform satisfactorily due to any such defects, and any items repaired of replaced by the Contractor will be guaranteed anew under this provision.

v

# SAFETY NOTICE

The attention of officers and operating personnel is directed to Chapter 67 of the Bureau of Ships Manual or superseding instructions on the subject of radiosafety precautions to be observed.

This equipment employs voltages which are dangerous and may be fatal if contacted by operating personnel. Extreme caution should be exercised when working with the equipment.

While every practicable safety precaution has been incorporated in this equipment, the following rules must be strictly observed:

#### **KEEP AWAY FROM LIVE CIRCUITS:**

Operating personnel must at all times observe all safety regulations. Do not change tubes or make adjustment inside equipment with high voltage supply on. Under certain conditions dangerous potentials may exist in circuits with power controls in the off position due to charges retained by capacitors. To avoid casualties always remove power and discharge and ground circuits prior to touching them.

# RESUSCITATION

AN APPROVED POSTER ILLUSTRATING THE RULES FOR RESUSCITATION BY THE PRONE PRESSURE METHOD SHALL BE PROMINENTLY DISPLAYED IN EACH RADIO, RADAR, OR SONAR ENCLOSURE. POSTERS MAY BE OBTAINED UPON REQUEST TO THE BUREAU OF MEDICINE AND SURGERY. Installation Record, Report of Failure and Ordering Parts

# **INSTALLATION RECORD**

Contract NObsr-42513	30 June 1948
Contract NObsr-52052	30 October 1950
Serial Number of equipment	
Date of acceptance by the Navy	
Date of delivery to contract destination	
Date of completion of installation	
Date placed in service	

Blank spaces on this page shall be filled in at time of installation.

# **REPORT OF FAILURE**

Report of failure of any part of this equipment, during its entire service life, shall be made to the Bureau of Ships in accordance with current regulations using form NAVSHIPS NBS 383 (revised). The report shall cover all details of the failure and give the date of installation of the equipment. For procedure in reporting failures see Chapter 67 of the Bureau of Ships Manual or superseding instructions.

# **ORDERING PARTS**

All requests or requisitions for replacement material should include the following data:

1. Federal stock number or, when ordering from a Marine Corps or Signal Corps supply depot, the Signal Corps stock number.

2. Name and short description of part.

If the appropriate stock number is not available the

following shall be specified:

1. Equipment model or type designation, circuit symbol, and item number.

- 2. Name of part and complete description.
- 3. Manufacturer's designation.
- 4. Contractor's drawing and part number.
- 5. JAN or Navy type number.



Figure 1-1. Keyer KY-58/GRT

# SECTION 1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION

#### 1. SCOPE OF THIS MANUAL.

Frequency-Shift Keyers AN types KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT furnished under Contracts NObsr-42513 and NObsr-52052 are described and discussed in this manual.

#### 2. PURPOSE AND BASIC PRINCIPLES.

The AN types KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT keyers are directly calibrated frequency-shift exciters in which signaling is accomplished by shifting a constant amplitude carrier between two fixed frequencies representing the marking and spacing conditions of the telegraph code or the varying intensity of the facsimile (photo) signal.

The keyers can be connected to different types of Navy transmitters and are arranged so that closure of the contacts of a telegraph key, or a teletypewriter, produces a marking signal which causes the transmitter to emit a frequency above the mean assigned frequency of the transmitter. The opening of the contacts of a telegraph key or a teletypewriter produces a spacing signal which causes the transmitter to emit a frequency below the normal assigned frequency of the transmitter. The varying facsimile signal produces a marking and spacing condition similar to that of frequency-shift keying.

The primary purpose of the frequency-shift keyer is to replace the conventional exciter of a C.W. transmitter, with a source of R.F. excitation that can be shifted in frequency a small amount upward and downward to produce R.F. telegraph or facsimile signals corresponding to the d.c. polar, neutral or facsimile input signals connected to the keyer.

The AN types KY-58/GRT or KY-75/SRT keyers transmit a type F1 frequency shift signal or F4 facsimile signal in the frequency range of 1 to 6.7 megacycles. The output of the keyer can be applied to any existing C.W. transmitter, capable of operating from a 2 to 20-volt excitation source, for passage through class 'C' amplifier or multiplier stages. The keyer is used principally for comparatively long distance communications in the high-frequency range.

#### ORIGINAL

# 3. DESCRIPTION OF UNITS.

The AN types KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT keyers are directly calibrated frequency-shift exciters designed for the transmission of frequency-shift telegraph and facsimile (photo) signals. The keyers are identical in electrical and mechanical construction except that the KY-58/GRT is mounted in the upper section of a mobile cabinet CY-1132/GRT whereas the KY-75/SRT cabinet CY-1133/SRT is designed for mounting atop an operating table or bench. The keyers are composed of two sub-units, a Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT and an Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT. The MD-165/URT incorporates the power supply and all modulator circuits and controls up to but not including the reactance tube. The AM-655/URT incorporates the crystal oven, reactance tube, 200-kc. oscillator and all R.F. circuits and controls. Both units can be independently removed from the cabinet and serviced or replaced. All necessary operating controls are located on the front panel. Semi-operating controls are mounted on a sub-panel recessed behind the main front panel. Access to the semi-operating controls is made possible by a hinged front-panel door.

The keyers are designed for operation from an A.C. source of 115 or 230 volts, 50/60 cycles, single phase. Rated power output of the equipment is 6 watts into a 75-ohm non-inductive resistive load throughout its frequency range of 1 to 6.7 megacycles. The frequency range is covered by a three position bandswitch with calibrated frequency ranges of 1 to 1.8 megacycles, 1.8 to 3.5 megacycles and 3.5 to 6.7 megacycles. A four-position switch is provided for selection of one of three crystals, a fourth position is provided so that an external oscillator can be used. The frequency-shift of the keyers is adjustable over a range of zero to 1000 cycles-persecond in order that the actual transmitter frequency may be adjusted to any value from 0 to 500 cyclesper-second higher than the assigned frequency for the MARK signal and the same number of cycles lower than the assigned frequency for the SPACE signal. The equipment is capable of being keyed up to 240 dot-cycles per second. The frequency-shift cap-



Figure 1-2. Keyer KY-75/SRT

abilities for photo transmission provide a frequency variation of any value between 0 and 2000 cps. i.e.,  $0 \pm 1000$  cps. with respect to the assigned frequency. The main tuning tank of the 200-kilocycle oscillator, the frequency-determining crystals of the R.F. oscillator and the grid-cathode capacitor of the reactance modulator are mounted within a thermostatically controlled oven.

A four-section tuning capacitor is used to gang all circuits in the R.F. section except for the final amplifier plate circuit which is independently tuned and loaded. A multi-purpose meter and three-position wafer switch are utilized to obtain a visual indication of the photo input voltage, final grid and plate tuning.

#### 4. REFERENCE DATA.

a. NOMENCLATURE.-AN type KY-58/GRT keyer, AN type KY-75/SRT keyer.

**b.** CONTRACT NUMBERS AND DATES.—Contract NObsr-42513 dated 30 June 1948. Contract NObsr-52052 dated 30 October 1950.

c. CONTRACTOR.-National Company, Inc., Mal-ORIGINAL

#### **GENERAL DESCRIPTION**

### NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

#### Section 1

#### Paragraph 4 c

den, Massachusetts, U.S.A.

d. COGNIZANT NAVAL INSPECTOR.-Inspector of Naval Material, Boston 10, Massachusetts.

e. NUMBER OF PACKAGES INVOLVED PER COM-PLETE SHIPMENT OF EQUIPMENT.

(1) One crate containing the Keyer and two instruction books.

(2) One crate containing equipment repair parts.f. TOTAL CUBICAL CONTENTS.

(1) CRATED.

(a) Keyer KY-58/GRT - 19 cu. ft.

(b) Keyer KY-75/SRT - 13.5 cu. ft.

(c) Equipment Repair Parts - 1.89 cu. ft.

g. TOTAL WEIGHT.

(1) CRATED.

(a) Keyer KY-58/GRT - 404 lbs.

(b) Keyer KY-75/SRT - 346 lbs.

(c) Equipment Repair Parts - 65 lbs.

(2) UNCRATED.

- (a) Keyer KY-58/GRT 270 lbs.
- (b) Keyer KY-75/SRT 220 lbs.
- (c) Equipment Repair Parts 52 lbs.

b. FREQUENCY RANGE.-1 to 6.7 megacycles when used with crystals resonant between 0.8 and 6.5 Mc. or with a master oscillator covering this range and having an R.F. output from 2 to 20 volts across a 75-ohm load impedance.

*i.* TUNING BANDS.-Three bands: 1.0 to 1.8 Mc., 1.8 to 3.5 Mc. and 3.5 to 6.7 Mc.

*j.* NUMBER OF PRE-SET FREQUENCIES.-Three *k.* TYPE OF FREQUENCY CONTROL.-Internal crystal oscillator or external high-frequency oscillator and 200 Kc. oscillator.

*l*. TYPE OF EMISSION.-F1, frequency-shift telegraphy or F4 facsimile.

m. NOMINAL CARRIER OUTPUT.-6 watts into a 75-ohm, non inductive resistive load.

*n.* CRYSTALS AND HOLDERS.-Three CR-27/U quartz crystals in HC-6/U holders or three crystals of similar characteristics in HC-1/U holders. Mechanical arrangement of holders prohibits use of more than three crystals at a time.

o. IMPEDANCE.

(1) Frequency-shift input impedance - 100,000





Figure 1-3. Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT

ORIGINAL

1 Section Paragraph 4 o (1)

NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT





Figure 1-4. Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT

ohms.

(2) Photo input impedance - 600 ohms.

(3) Output impedance - 75 ohms.

 $\dot{p}$ . KEYING VOLTAGE.-D.C. Polar (+ for mark and - for space)  $\pm 40$  to  $\pm 150$  volts.

D.C. Neutral (+ for mark and 0 for space) +40 to +150 volts.

q. KEYING SPEED.-Zero to 240 dot-cycles per second.

r. KEYING SOURCE.-Navy Tone Keyer (type CW-50124 or CRV-50059) or teletype with a 2000-ohm termination.

-s. FREQUENCY SHIFT.--Adjustable from zero to 1,000 cycles total shift, symmetrical with respect to the assigned carrier frequency.

t. FREQUENCY SHIFT FOR PHOTO TRANSMIS-SION.-From zero to 2000 cycles total shift, symmetrical with respect to the assigned carrier frequency. Shift is linear throughout this range.

u. PHOTO INPUT VOLTAGE .-- 0-20 volts.

v. PHASE MODULATION .- Phase modulation fre-

quency of 200 cycles per second  $\pm 5\%$ , amount of phase shift adjustable up to one radian.

w. MULTIPLICATION FACTOR SWITCH.-Accommodates transmitter frequency multiplication of 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8, 9 and 12 times.

x. TEMPERATURE OF OSCILLATOR OVEN.-70°C ±1%.

y. FREQUENCY STABILITY.-Stability of 200 kc. oscillator is  $\pm 75$  cycles. Overall stability within 0.01% at 1 Mc. and 0.003% at 6.7 Mc. and varying linearly between.

z. MOUNTING.--KY-58/GRT mounted in upper section of mobile cabinet. KY-75/SRT shock mounted for use on top of a table or bench.

aa. INSTALLATION.--KY-58/GRT - shore-based KY-75/SRT - shipboard use-

**bb.** CHARACTERISTICS OF POWER SUPPLY RE-QUIRED FOR OPERATION.

(1) Type - Self contained full-wave rectifier.

(2) A.C. Voltage - 115 or 230 volts.

(3) Frequency - 50/60 cycles.

ORIGINAL

#### NAVSHIP**S** 91543

#### KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

#### Section 1

#### Paragraph 4 bb (4)

(4) Number of phases - Single phase.

(5) Power consumption at 115 volts - oven heat on - 470 watts, 477 VA.

(6) Power consumption at 115 volts - oven heat off -165 watts, 171 VA.

(7) Standby power at 115 volts - oven heat on - 370 watts, 379 VA.

(8) Standby power at 115 volts - oven heat off - 65 watts, 73 VA.

(9) Maximum plate current - 220 MA at 270 volts D.C.

cc. LIMITER ACTION.-Change in deviation, SPACE to MARK with SPACE at 0 volts and MARK variable -0.4% as MARK is increased from 40 to 150 volts positive. Change in deviation SPACE to MARK with MARK at 100 volts positive and SPACE variable from 0 to 150 volts negative -2%.

dd. CHANGE IN CARRIER DUE TO.

(1) Keying pulse change from 40 to 120 volts (polar or non-polar) - 10 cycles.

(2) Multiplier switch setting - 4 cycles.

(3) Line voltage variations of plus or minus  $10\% - \pm 12$  cycles.

(4) Input filter switch setting - 4 cycles.

(5) Tuning procedure (RF) - 3 cycles.

(6) Ambient temperature variation from  $-20^{\circ}$ C to  $+50^{\circ}$ C - 25 cycles.

(7) Locked key at full power 6 hours - 10 cycles.

QUAN- TITY PER		AN OR NAVSHIPS	OVERALL DIMENSIONS				
EQUIP-		DESIGNA-				VOLUME	WEIGHT
MENT	NAME OF UNIT	TION	HEIGHT	WIDTH	DEPTH	CU. FT.	LBS.
1	Frequency-Shift Keyer	KY-58/GRT	41 7/16"	22 1/8"	26 9/16"	14.1	270
1	Set of Cables		1 1/2"	1 1/2"	12'	.188	20
2	Instruction Books	Navships 91543	11 1/2"	8 3/4"	1/2"	.03	1.0
1	Equipment Repair Parts		12 1/4"	18 1/4"	9 1/8"	1.18	52
or							
1	Frequency-Shift Keyer	KY-75/SRT	24 1/2"	22 1/8"	26 9/16"	8.33	220
1	Service Cable		6' 3'' lg.				
2	Instruction Books	Navships 91543	11 1/2"	8 3/4"	1/2"	.03	1.0
1	Equipment Repair Parts		12 1/4"	18 1/4"	9 1/8"	1.18	52

#### TABLE 1-1. EQUIPMENT SUPPLIED

# SECTION 2 THEORY OF OPERATION

#### 1. GENERAL THEORY AND DESCRIPTION.

The AN types KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT keyers are used at the transmitting station of a long distance radio system to adapt existing transmitters to frequency-shift or facsimile types of transmissions. Telegraph or facsimile signals to be applied to the keyer may be originated at a station equipped with a photo scanner, telegraph key, a teletypewriter keyboard or a tape transmitter. The distant receiving station similarly may be equipped to receive facsimile signals by means of a facsimile recorder; reception of telegraphic characters may be accomplished by aural means or automatically recorded or printed on a teletypewriter or tape recorder. Both the originating and terminating telegraph stations may be



Figure 2-1. Block Outline of Transmitting Installation Employing the Keyer

ORIGINAL

2–1



ORIGINAL

2-2



a prominente a constant de la constant

### NAVSHIPS 91543

at a remote point from the transmitting and receiving stations with interconnections by land lines or a communications control system. Refer to Figure 2-1 for a block outline of a transmitting installation employing the keyer.

The keyer components are mounted on two chassis. The KY-58/GRT is mounted in a mobile cabinet CY-1132/GRT, whereas the KY-75/SRT cabinet CY-1133 /SRT is designed for mounting atop an operating table or bench. All necessary operating controls are mounted on the front panel. Semi-operating controls are mounted on a sub-panel recessed behind the External and interconnecting recepfront panel. tacles are located at the rear of the cabinet.

a. FRONT PANEL CONTROLS.-The operating control knobs, dials and meter are located and identified on Figure 3-7. Semi-operating controls are recessed behind the front panel.

b. FUSES AND RECEPTACLES .- Three circuit fuses and three spare fuses are provided at the top rear of the MD-165/URT chassis. Two blister assemblies mounted at the rear of the cabinet provide a means of interconnecting the two units and connecting the keyer to associated equipment. All connections into each chassis are made through a multiconnector in the blister assembly which mates with a multiconnector on the chassis. See Figures 3-1 and 3-2 for illustrations of cable assemblies and blisters.

c. TEMPERATURE-CONTROLLED OVEN .- Components of the 200-kc. oscillator, frequency determining crystals of the crystal oscillator and the reactance tube grid-cathode capacitor are mounted in a closed oven equipped with heater resistors thermostatically controlled to maintain the temperature of the oven at 70°C. The close regulation of the temperature of the components in the oven provides for more uniform circuit constants to maintain proper frequency stability of the crystals and 200-kc oscillator. The oven thermoswitch control is also located in the oven.

#### d. CHASSIS ARRANGEMENT.

(1) AMPLIFIER-OSCILLATOR AM-655/URT.-The following electrical circuits are mounted on the AM-655/URT; crystal oscillator and amplifier, balanced mixers, low-frequency oscillator, balanced reactance modulator, buffer amplifier, final amplifier and output circuits, temperature controlled oven, voltage regulator and current regulator.

(2) MODULATOR-POWER SUPPLY MD-165/URT. -The following electrical circuits are mounted on the MD-165/URT; test-operate and calibrate circuit, photo input control, pulse limiters, phase modulation oscillator, phase modulation control, cathode follower, pulse shaper, deviation dividers, deviation controls, power supply and two voltage regulators.

#### 2. GENERAL CIRCUIT DESCRIPTION.

See Figure 2-2 for a functional block diagram and Figure 7-21 for a schematic diagram of the keyer.

The AN types KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT keyers are frequency-shift keyers designed for the transmission of frequency-shift telegraphy and/or facsimile (photo) signals over a frequency range of 1.0 to 6.7 megacycles.

Basically the keyers consist of three functional sub-divisions as follows:

RF circuits -- crystal oscillator and amplifier, balanced mixers, low-frequency oscillator, balanced reactance modulator, buffer amplifier, final amplifier and output circuits.

Modulator circuits -- test-operate and calibrate circuit, photo input control, pulse limiters, phase modulation oscillator, phase modulation control, cathode followers, pulse shaper, deviation dividers and deviation controls.

Power Supply -- a full-wave rectifier stage, three voltage regulator stages and an A.C. filament current regulator stages.

a. MODES OF OPERATION.

(1) FREQUENCY-SHIFT .- The input radio frequency of the keyer may be that of an external oscillator, such as the transmitter master oscillator, or that of the self-contained crystal oscillator. The keyer oscillator V-110 is equipped with six crystal sockets XY-101 to XY-106 inclusive: three for HC-6/U crystal holders and three for HC-1/U crystal holders. One of each type of socket is utilized for each crystal position. The sockets are so arranged that it is physically impossible to plug two crystals into any two parallel sockets at the same time. Any one of three crystals or an external oscillator may be selected by the four-position CRYSTAL-OSC. switch S-106. The input frequency of the keyer is in the range of 0.8 to 6.5 mcs. which is 200 kcs. less than the output frequency of the keyer. The frequency of a 200-kc. oscillator V-107 is frequency modulated by a balanced reactance modulator V-106 which, by varying the amount of reactance across the oscilla-

tor tuned circuit, decreases or increases the frequency of the oscillator a small amount in response to mark and space signals. The radio-frequency output of the crystal oscillator V-110 and the frequencymodulated output of the 200-kc. oscillator V-107 are combined in a balanced mixer circuit consisting of V-108 and V-109. The frequency of oscillator V-110 is balanced out, therefore only the sum and differ-

## Section 2 Faragraph 2 b (2)



Figure 2-3. Limiter Stages, Simplified Schematic Diagram

section limits the positive pulse for on-off keying. The positive pulse limiting diode is biased by cathode resistor R-110 so that a 30-volt limiting threshold is obtained. Bias voltage for the positive pulse diode is supplied by voltage regulator V-114 through dropping resistor R-111. The limited positive pulses appearing across R-112 are applied to the second double-diode limiter where any remaining negative pulses are clipped by the first section of the diode and the positive pulses are limited by the second section of the diode. Bias voltage for the positive pulse limiter is supplied by voltage regulator V-114 through dropping resistor R-113 and variable resistor R-114. The 'FSK' Mark adjustment R-114 is adjusted to obtain a 2.5 volt change between space and mark as indicated on the panel meter.



Figure 2-5. Photo Input Stages, Simplified Schematic Diagram



Figure 2-7. Pulse Shaper Stage, Simplified Schematic Diagram

ohms and reducing the deviation by a factor equal to the multiplication factor of the transmitter. As the amount of deviation is lowered a converse action takes place i.e., a large resistance shunts the control and a small resistor is placed in series. By reducing the shift in this manner the mean carrier frequency will be corrected to maintain its center position between Space and Mark as the multiplication factor or deviation is altered. The calibrated dial of the Deviation control reads the actual amount of deviation realized at the output of the transmitter.

The keyer is designed for a frequency-shift which

is adjustable from 0 to 1000 cycles for FSK operation and any value between 0 and 2000 cps., i.e., 0 to  $\pm 1000$  cps. with respect to the assigned frequency for photo transmission. For the purpose of this description, assume that the keyer is used with a radio circuit in which there is a total frequency-shift of 850 cycles between marking and spacing signals. However, the actual frequency shift necessary at the output of the frequency shift keyer unit depends upon the frequency multiplication factor of the associated transmitter, as shown in the following table:

### Section 2 Paragraph 2 b (7)

In normal operation the DEVIATION control is adjusted to obtain the desired deviation as read directly on the calibrated dial of the control. After the multiplication factor employed in the transmitter is determined, the MULTIPLIER switch is set at a position corresponding to this factor. In this manner the amount of deviation is determined and held constant despite any ensuing multiplication in the transmitter.

(8) 200 KC. OSCILLATOR.-The low frequency oscillator employs a type 6SJ7W sharp cut-off pentode V-107 in an essentially balanced circuit. See Figure 2-9 for a schematic diagram of this stage. The oscillator operates at 200 kcs. and is heterodyned to the operating frequency by means of a crystal oscillator V-110 and a balanced mixer V-108 and V-109. The main tuning tank of the oscillator and the gridcathode capacitor C-115 of V-106 are temperature controlled in the oven. Inductor L-103 is adjusted to provide a 200-kc. output when the CARRIER CALI- BRATE control dial C-114 is set at its mid-position. L-103 is factory adjusted and ordinarily does not require readjustment in the field. The CARRIER CALI-BRATE control is provided in the cathode circuit of the oscillator to permit slight readjustment of the carrier to compensate for minor differences in crystals and/or tubes. R-177 is utilized as a grid leak Screen voltage is obtained from voltage resistor. regulator V-113 through dropping resistor R-178 which is bypassed by C-160. Plate load resistor R-179 is decoupled by C-118. Resistors R-180 and R-179 form the balanced plate load. The 200-kc. oscillator output is fed through coupling capacitor C-119 to the permeability tuned tank circuit L-104 and C-121. Inductor L-104 is normally tuned for maximum output.

The 200-kc. oscillator is frequency-modulated by reactance modulator V-106. The frequency-modulated 200-kc. oscillator output amplitude modulates the R.F. carrier.



Figure 2-9. 200-Kilocycle Oscillator Stage, Simplified Schematic Diagram

Section 2

#### Paragraph 2 b (9)

R-143A. The signal voltage is connected to the signal grid (pin No. 4) of the reactance modulator through a keying filter and the other section of the corrective network consisting of a voltage divider system in conjunction with Multiplier switch section S-104C, S-104D and one section of the dual Deviation control R-143B.

The correction circuit is necessary in order to maintain equal voltages on both grids of the reactance modulator as the deviation is increased from zero. As the deviation is increased the zero (space) signal frequency will decrease to the correct space value. When the Multiplier switch S-104 and the Deviation control R-143 are varied the voltage on the corrector grid (pin No. 1) of the reactance tube is kept equal to the average carrier value of the signal grid (pin No. 4) of the reactance tube. By controlling the circuit in this manner the deviation can be changed without readjusting the carrier, whereas in a non-corrected deviation circuit the carrier will shift between the Mark and Space frequencies with changes in deviation, necessitating retuning of the carrier.

Figure 2-10 is a vector diagram illustrating the effect on carrier placement with changes in deviation in both corrected and non-corrected deviation circuits.

This stage employs a type 6SN7/WGT dual-triode tube V-106 as a balanced variable reactance modulator. See Figure 2-11 for a schematic diagram of this stage. The use of a balanced modulator minimizes variation of the mean frequency and also allows the shift to be varied without affecting the mean carrier frequency. The reactance modulator functions as an amplifier whose input capacity can be varied by changing the amplifier gain and consequently changes the 200-kc. oscillator frequency accordingly. Section A of V-106 (consisting of triode section 4,5 and 6) is a cathode follower type amplifier and section B of V-106 (consisting of triode section 1, 2 and 3) functions to control the gain of section A in accordance with the voltage on the grid of section B. The input of the cathode follower amplifier is made to look capacitive by connecting capacitor C-115 between the input (the grid) and the output (the cathode). In the no-signal condition the cathode would be essentially at ground RF potential and the input capacity would appear to be C-115. If the amplifier were unity gain the cathode and grid would be at the same R.F. voltage and phase. In this condition capacitor C-115 would have no potential difference between its terminals and would appear as though it had been removed from the circuit. The amplifier input capacity would in this case appear to be that due to the tube capacities alone. Since the cathode follower gain always ranges between 0 and 1, corresponding percentages of C-115 appear to be connected across the 200-kc. oscillator circuit and consequently change its frequency accordingly. Actually the cathode follower gain is controlled by the bias on the grids of sections A and B.



Figure 2-12. Crystal Oscillator - Amplifier Stage, Simplified Schematic Diagram

ORIGINAL

### Section 2 Paragraph 2 b (11)

ced out by adjusting the CATHODE BALANCING AD-JUSTMENT R-189 to equalize the R.F. carrier components of tubes V-108 and V-109 which are 180° out of phase. Resistor R-189 is bypassed by capacitor C-138. Cathode resistor R-187 is bypassed by capacitor C-135. The platecircuits of the mixer tubes are tuned by sections B and C of TUNING capacitor C-127. Inductors T-102, T-103, T-104 with trimmer capacitors C-140, C-141, and C-142 are selected respectively by the FREQ. RANGE switch S-107 to complete the mixer tuned circuits. With proper balancing of the cathode circuits, tuning of the plate circuit will produce a minimum amount of grid drive when tuned to the oscillator frequency. The sum and difference frequencies resulting from mixing the input radio frequency and the 200-kc. oscillator frequencies are present in the output of the balanced mixers. The combined output of the balanced mixers is tuned to the higher or sum frequency.

(12) BUFFER AMPLIFIER.-The output of the balanced mixer is applied to the grid of a 6AC7W sharp cut-off pentode V-111. See Figure 2-14 for a schematic diagram of this stage. The buffer amplifier stage permits a lighter loading of the mixer output circuit which, together with the added tuned circuit, provides greater discrimination against unwanted modulation components. The output of the balanced mixer is connected to the grid of tube V-111. Screen voltage is supplied through dropping resistor R-195 which is bypassed by C-143. The plate circuit of the amplifier is tuned by TUNING capacitor section C-127D. Inductors L-113, L-114 and L-115 with trimmer capacitors C-146, C-147 and C-148 are selected respectively by the FREQ. RANGE switch S-107 to complete the buffer tuned circuits.

(13) FINAL AMPLIFIER.-The power amplifier utilizes an 807 beam power amplifier tube V-112 connected as a class 'C' amplifier. See Figure 2-15.

Amplified signal voltages appearing at the output of the buffer amplifier are applied through capacitor C-145 to the grid of V-112. Screen voltage is supplied through dropping resistor R-198 which is bypassed by capacitor C-152. Cathode resistor R-197 is bypassed by capacitor C-149 to provide self bias. Panel meter M-101 is connected in the grid and plate



Figure 2-14. Buffer Amplifier Stage, Simplified Schematic Diagram

### NAVS HIPS 91543

#### KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT



Figure 2-16. Power Supply Circuit, Simplified Schematic Diagram

the A.C. receptacle J-103 which is located on the blister assembly. The A.C. input is connected through the contacts of POWER switch S-108 and a line filter consisting of C-161A, C-161B, C-162A, C-162B, L-124 and L-125 to the primary of power transformer T-101 and to the controlled heaters of the crystal oven. A white jeweled pilot lamp I-103 lights when the POWER switch is at ON.

The power supply is wired at the factory for 115volt operation, but minor wiring changes will permit 230-volt operation. It will be noted that for 115-volt operation the two primary windings of transformer T-101 and the oven heater resistors are all connected in parallel across the A.C. input. For 230-volt operation the two transformer windings and the four heater resistors are connected in series.

All D.C. voltages and filament voltages required by the keyer are furnished by the power supply as follows:

- (a) 270 V.D.C. at 220 ma.
- (b) 4.35 amperes at 6.3 V.A.C.
- (c) 0.6 amperes at 12.0 V.A.C.
- (d) 3 amperes at 5.0 V.A.C.

A 5U4G full-wave rectifier V-116, power transformer T-101 and a capacitor-input filter network consisting of C-157, L-122, C-158, L-123 and C-159 constitute the power supply circuit. Two eight-ampere line fuses and a 500-ma. B+ fuse are provided to prevent

#### ORIGINAL

2–17

### Section 2 Paragraph 2 b (15)

of asbestos. The oven contains the crystal holders, 200-kc. oscillator tank circuit and the cathode-to-grid capacitor of the reactance modulator. The temperature of the oven is controlled by a thermoswitch S-110. The heater resistors are wired at the factory for 115-volt operation but minor wiring changes will permit 230-volt operation. The contacts of thermoswitch S-110 are normally closed except when the temperature of the oven is at  $70^{\circ}$ C. The contacts open and close intermittently to maintain the temperature at this level. A -50°C to +100°C thermometer and an amber jewel pilot lamp I-101 are utilized as oven temperature indicators. The lamp will remain lighted until the temperature of the oven has reached  $70^{\circ}$ C as indicated on the oven thermometer. When no heat is

being applied the lamp will remain off until the oven temperature drops slightly below 70 °C. The arrangement of oven heaters provides a constant temperature but not an extremely rapid warmup. The rate of temperature rise is approximately 3 degrees per minute. The temperature coefficient of the low-frequency oscillator tank mounted in the oven is approximately 3 cycles per degree. The total carrier drift using a onemegacycle crystal has been measured to be less than 5 cycles due to temperature after the oven is fully stabilized. However, the time required to stabilize may be an hour or more when the equipment has been left for long intervals at low ambient temperatures. The total oven heat is 305 watts.







Figure 3–1. Keyer KY-58/GRT, Dimensional Outline and External Connection Drawing

Section 3 Paragraph 1

# SECTION 3 INSTALLATION

#### 1. UNPACKING.

The Keyers KY-58/GRT or KY-75/SRT and equipment repair parts are carefully packed in separate wooden crates for overseas shipment. One set of cables is provided with the KY-58/GRT. No cables are supplied with the KY-75/SRT but all connectors required to make up the necessary cables are provided. Two instruction books are shipped with the equipment. The equipment is contained in moistureproof barrier cartons having an 18 months supply of Silica Gel. Do not open the cartons until the equipment is being installed, as the Silica Gel will saturate rapidly upon exposure to humid atmosphere. The recommended procedure to employ in unpacking each piece of equipment is as follows.

Step 1. Cut the metal straps around the crate and remove the side that reads 'Open This Side'. The cover is secured by nails and an ordinary nail puller or claw hammer may be employed.

Step 2. Remove sufficient filler material from the crate to permit access to the carton. Lift out the packaged items.

Step 3. Remove the outer water-proof wrapper and remove the outer carton.

Step 4. Cut the moisture-vaporproof barrier along the heat-sealed seam and remove the barrier.

Step 5. Open the inner carton and remove the dessicant.

Step 6. Lift the equipment out of the carton.

Step 7. Inspect the equipment for any damage incurred during shipment.

Step 8. The equipment spare parts set is packed in a manner similar to the keyer and its unpacking will follow the procedure outlined above in steps 1 through 7.

Step 9. The packing crates and packing material should be saved in event the equipment has to be repacked and shipped at a later date.

#### 2. INSTALLATION.

Both units of the keyer are designed for mounting in the cabinet furnished for this purpose. Both sub-units may, however, be mounted in any standard 19-inch rack panel. When this is done it will be necessary to secure the blister assembly to the units. This is accomplished by means of the four 10-32" screws

ORIGINAL

packed in the equipment repair parts box. Thread the screws through the opening in the head of the captive thumb screws at each side of the blisters until they are securely engaged into the chassis.

#### WARNING

Voltages employed in the associated transmitter are dangerous and may be fatal if contacted by operating personnel. Extreme caution should be exercised when working with the equipment. NEVER MEASURE POTENTIALS IN EXCESS OF 1000 VOLTS BY MEANS OF FLEXIBLE TEST LEADS OR PROBES.

#### a. POSITIONING OF CABINET.

(1) KY-58/GRT.-When determining the location of the cabinet make sure that a minimum access space of approximately two feet is provided at the rear of the cabinet or the location is such that the cabinet may be rolled forward to permit access to the back. See Figure 3-1 for a dimensional drawing. This is adequate space for servicing (removal of blisters). Place the cabinet CY-1132/GRT in that part of the room where the temperature will be more or less constant i.e. not near any direct source of heat or cold. The keyer should be placed as close as possible to its associated transmitter. Cables furnished for connections to the transmitter and other external equipment are 12 feet long.

(2) KY-75/SRT.-When mounting the KY-75/SRT cabinet CY-1133/SRT atop an operating table or bench allow sufficient space at the rear of the cabinet to permit access to the blister units. See Figure 3-2 for a dimensional outline drawing. Place the cabinet in that part of the room where the temperature will be more or less constant i.e., not near any direct source of heat or cold. The keyer should be placed as close as possible to its associated transmitter.

b. ARRANGEMENT OF UNITS.-The blank panel in the bottom section of Keyer KY-58/GRT may be removed in the event it is desired to mount other equipment in the cabinet. Make sure that all mounting screws are turned tightly into place.

c. INSTALLATION OF CRYSTALS.-Crystals for operation of the keyer are not supplied by the contractor. Crystals for equipment operation are furnish3 Section

INSTALLATION



Figure 3–2. Keyer KY-75/SRT, Dimensional Outline and External Connection Drawing





CRYSTAL OSC.XY-101XY-102XY-103SWITCH POSITION/23

Figure 3-3. Crystal Socket Identification

ed by the Navy Department at the point of installation. Parallel wired sockets are provided to mount either crystal holders type HC-1/U (3/4 inch pin spacing) or type HC-6/U holders (1/2 inch pin spacing). Only one type of crystal may be employed at each position simultaneously. The sockets are so arranged that it is physically impossible to plug two crystals into two parallel sockets.

The frequency of the operating crystal must be 200 kilocycles lower than the carrier frequency at the output of the keyer. To determine the proper crystal to use, observe the following procedure.

Step 1. Divide the desired channel frequency in kilocycles by the multiplication factor of the transmitter.

Step 2. Subtract 200 kilocycles from the result of step 1.

Example: If the desired channel frequency were 12,000 kc. and the multiplication factor of the transmitter 3, the output of the keyer would be 12,000 kc. divided by 3 or 4,000 kc. Therefore the crystal frequency would be 200 kcs. less or 3800 kcs.

The crystal sockets are made accessible by opening the front-panel door located below the oven thermometer. Insert the crystals in their proper sockets with respect to the holders employed and the switch positions desired for selection of a particular crystal. The crystals may be inserted in any position with respect to frequency. Refer to Figure 3-3 for crystal socket identification. Record the frequency on the Tuning Chart on the front panel.

d. EXTERNAL CONNECTIONS.

(1) KY-58/GRT.-Various connections have to be made to place the keyer in operation. All necessary interconnecting cables are furnished with the KY-58 /GRT. The cables are marked at both ends to identify the cable functions. All connections to and from the keyer are made on the blister assembly at the rear of the cabinet. Refer to Figure 3-1 for the location of the various connectors.

(2) KY-75/SRT.-No interconnecting cables are provided with the KY-75/SRT. Figure 3-2 is the external connection diagram. Figures 3-4, 3-5 and 3-6 specify the connectors and type of cable to be used and illustrate the method of fabricating the cables to install the keyer. All plug connectors are furnished for this purpose. The maximum length of the cables is not critical and should be determined by the particular installation.

(3) AM-655/URT TO MD-165/URT INTERCON-NECTIONS.—No interconnecting wiring is necessary between the AM-655/URT and MD-165/URT as the two are permanently connected through the blister assemblies.

(4) KEYER INPUT CONNECTIONS.-Connect the A.C. input cable W-103 between the A.C. input jack

INSTALLATION



- A SQUARE OFF END OF CABLE. SLIDE SHELL AND COUPLING NUT OVER CABLE.
- B REMOVE  $i\frac{1}{4}$  INCHES OF THE OUTER JACKET. BE CAREFUL NOT TO NICK THE COPPER BRAID BENEATH. CUT THE COPPER BRAID AND INNER INSULATION  $\frac{3}{4}$  INCH FROM THE END.

C COMB OUT, TRIM, AND TIN COPPER BRAID.

- D SCREW THE PLUG BODY OVER THE OUTER JACKET UNTIL 16 INCH OF THE INNER CONDUCTOR PROJECTS FROM THE CONTACT SLEEVE. BE CAREFUL NOT TO PUSH BACK THE COPPER BRAID. SOLDER THE PLUG BODY TO THE COPPER BRAID THROUGH THE HOLES PROVIDED. SOLDER THE INNER CONDUCTOR TO THE CONTACT SLEEVE. REMOVE ANY EXCESS SOLDER AND CUT OFF THE INNER CONDUCTOR WHERE IT PROJECTS FROM THE CONTACT SLEEVE.
- E SLIDE THE COUPLING NUT FORWARD UNTIL IT IS SEATED AGAINST THE SHOULDER OF THE PLUG BODY. SLIDE THE SHELL FORWARD TO CLAMP THE PLUG BODY TIGHTLY TO THE CABLE; FASTEN IN PLACE WITH SET SCREW.

Figure 3-4. Assembly of -49195 Connector and RG-8/U Cable for Keyer Output, Freq. Meter R.F. and Ext. Osc. Connections

ORIGINAL



Figure 3-5. Assembly of AN 3106B-14S-1S and AN 3106B-14S-1P Connectors to Type MCOS-2 Cable for Freq. Meter Audio and Keyline Connections


Figure 3-6. Assembly of A.C. Connectors to Type MCOS-2 Cable

ORIGINAL

#### NAVSHIPS 91543

KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

J-103 located at the rear of the cabinet and a suitable 115 V.A.C. supply source.

(5) KEYER OUTPUT CONNECTIONS.

#### NOTE

The output of the keyer can be applied to any existing C.W. transmitter capable of operating from a 2 to 20-volt excitation source at a frequency of 1000 to 6700 kc.

Disconnect the frequency determining source of the associated transmitter and connect the output of the keyer in its place. Connect the output cable W-108 between the keyer output jack J-111 and the transmitter oscillator input circuit. Since the output impedance of the keyer is 75 ohms, the output cable must be terminated at the transmitter in a 75-ohm load.

(6) TELETYPE CONNECTIONS.-Connect one end of the reletype input cable W-101 to the keyer input jack J-the located at the rear of the cabinet. Connect the other end of the cable to the teletype output circuit.

(7) PHOTO SCANNER CONNECTIONS.-Keyer connections to the photo scanner are made employing cable W-100 connected between the keyer input jack J-103 and the photo scanner output circuit.

(8) EXTERNAL OSCILLATOR CONNECTIONS.-Connect the external oscillator cable W-106 between the EXT. OSC. input jack J-109 located at the rear of the cabinet and the output connector of the external oscillator.

e. T-101 PRIMARY CONNECTIONS.-The keyer is wired at the factory for 115-volt operation. For 230volt operation minor wiring changes will be necessary at the primary of power transformer T-101 and at the crystal oven.

(1) 230-VOLT PRIMARY CONNECTIONS OF T-101.

Step 1. Remove the jumper between terminals 1 and 3. Remove the jumper between terminals 2 and 4.

Step 2. Connect a jumper between terminals 2 and 3.

(2) 230- VOLT OVEN CONNECTIONS.

Step 1. Remove the jumper between terminals 6 and 9 on TB-102.

Step 2. Move the lead connected to terminal 8 of TB-102 over to terminal 9 of TB-102.

(3) 230-VOLT OVEN LAMP CONNECTION.-Remove one jumper connecting R-199 and R-200 in parallel.

# 3. INITIAL ADJUSTMENTS AND PERFORMANCE TEST.

After installation has been completed as outlined in paragraph 2 of this section a short test transmission should be made in order to ascertain that the keyer and associated equipment are functioning properly before being turned over to operating personnel. Refer to Figure 3-7 for identification and location of all front-panel components.

The keyer is accurately aligned before leaving the factory. The semi-operating controls are permanently set and need not be readjusted during installation or operation. If the semi-operating controls are inadvertently moved refer to section 7, Corrective Maintenance, for alignment data.

To make a short test transmission proceed as outlined in the following paragraphs. In making the following adjustments, the final setting of the controls for a particualr transmitting frequency should be recorded on the Tuning Chart to assist in re-establishing the conditions promptly at a later date. If any difficulty is experienced in making any adjustments specified in the following procedure refer to section 7, Corrective Maintenance.

a. FREQUENCY-SHIFT OPERATION.

Step 1. Set the POWER switch at ON. White-jewel Power lamp will light. Amber-jewel oven lamp will also light. The illumination given off by these lamps may be adjusted by rotation of the serrated rim of the lamp assembly. Illumination of the amber-jewel pilot lamp indicates that the crystal oven heater is on. This lamp will go on and off at intervals with changes in the crystal oven temperature in the following manner.

(a) Lamp illuminated: heat is being applied and the lamp will remain lighted until the operating temperature of the oven has reached approximately  $70^{\circ}$ C as indicated on the oven thermometer.

(b) Lamp off: no heat is being applied and the lamp will remain off until the temperature drops slightly below  $70^{\circ}$ C.

Step 2. After the lamp has turned off which indicates that the oven has reached its operating temperature set the PLATE switch at ON. Red-jewel PLATE lamp will light. The illumination given off by this lamp is also adjustable.

Step 3. Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at FSK.

Step 4. Set the CRYSTAL-OSC. switch at the position corresponding to the socket position of the crystal providing the desired channel frequency.

Step 5. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at the position encompassing the output frequency of the keyer.

INSTALLATION

#### Paragraph 3 a



Figure 3-7. Front-Panel Component Identification

The RF output of the keyer is equal to, or is some definite fraction of, the final transmitting frequency depending upon the frequency multiplication of the radio transmitter. Hereafter the term 'keyer output frequency' will be understood to mean the crystal frequency plus the 200 kilocycles from the low frequency oscillator.

Step 6. Set the INPUT FILTER switch at the position corresponding to the highest dot-cycle rate to be transmitted. Four positions are provided: 60, 100, 200 and 240.

Step 7. Set the MULTIPLIER switch at the position corresponding to the multiplication factor employed in the transmitter. For example, if the multiplication factor is 8, the switch should be set at 'X8'.

Step 8. Set the PHASE MODULATION control at OFF (extreme counterclockwise position).

Step 9. Set the METERING switch at Grid. Loosen the lock on the TUNING control and set the control at the frequency corresponding to the keyer output frequency and carefully adjust it about this setting for a maximum meter reading. A normal reading is 1.3 ma. Lock the control in this position. It will be noticed that three current peaks corresponding to the resonant peaks for the lower sideband, the R.F. car-

# NAVSHIPS 91543

#### KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

rier and the upper sideband, in the order named, are observed on the panel meter. The TUNING control is normally set at the position which corresponds to the upper sideband resonant peak.

Step 10. Set the METERING switch at Plate. Release the lock on the OUTPUT TUNING control. Adjust the OUTPUT TUNING control for minimum plate current as indicated on the panel meter.

Step 11. Release the lock on the OUTPUT LEVEL control. Set the OUTPUT LEVEL control for the maximum grid drive required to drive the first amplifier or multiplier stage of the transmitter as indicated by a maximum reading on the grid meter of the associated transmitter.

#### NOTE

Care should be taken in this adjustment since, if the tuning range is located near the lower markings on the TUNING dial, it is possible that a dip may also be obtained near the higher markings of the dial due to the second harmonic of the keyer frequency.

Step 12. Repeat steps 10 and 11 adjusting the OUTPUT TUNING control and the OUTPUT LEVEL control simultaneously. As the output coupling is increased and the plate tuning maintained at resonance the output power should increase as indicated by a rising plate current reading and an increase in grid drive as noted on the grid meter of the associated transmitter. Rated power output is obtained when a reading of 85 ma. (actual meter reading of 0.425 ma.) is indicated on the panel meter. Lock the OUTPUT TUNING and OUTPUT LEVEL controls in position.

Step 13. Set the DEVIATION control at the desired deviation.

Step 14. To shut the keyer off set the PLATE switch at OFF and the POWER switch at OFF. If further tests are to be made the POWER switch should be left at ON to maintain the correct operating temperature of the oven.

b. PHASE MODULATION.-During periods of adverse operating conditions it may be advisable to employ phase modulation. To use phase modulation turn the PHASE MODULATION switch to ON by rotating the PHASE MODULATION control clockwise. One radian of phase modulation is obtained by rotating the control to the elongated marker on the phase modulation calibration dial. The PHASE MODULA-TION control is calibrated from  $0^{\circ}$  to  $60^{\circ}$ .

c. PHOTO OPERATION.-The initial adjustment of the keyer controls for photo transmission are the same as those given for frequency-shift operation in paragraph a. of this section plus the following steps:

(1) Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at PHOTO.

(2) Set the INPUT FILTER switch at PHOTO.

(3) Set the METERING switch at PHOTO.

(4) Adjust the PHOTO INPUT control for 5 volts as indicated on the panel meter. The five volts can be obtained by locking the photo scanner in the MARK position. If the photo scanner is not available any battery source providing five volts or more can be used.

d. FREQUENCY ACCURACY.-Each of the three R.F. outputs of the keyer should be checked to insure that its frequency is accurate and stable.

Step 1. Connect cable W-107 between the keyer FREQ. meter R.F. jack J-110 and the input of a frequency meter.

Step 2. Note the frequencies of the three crystals in the crystal oven.

Step 3. With the keyer operating under normal operating conditions set the CRYSTAL-OSC. switch at position one. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at the position encompassing the keyer output frequency.

Step 4. Set the TUNING dial at the position corresponding to the keyer output frequency (200 kcs. above the crystal frequency).

Step 5. Set the MULTIPLIER switch at the position corresponding to the multiplication factor of the transmitter.

Step 6. Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at CAR-RIER.

Step 7. Adjust the frequency meter to the keyer output frequency. Note the reading on the frequency meter. The frequency as noted on the frequency meter should be equal to the crystal frequency plus the 200 kilocycles obtained from the 200-kc. oscillator.

If a slight inaccuracy is observed adjust the CAR-RIER CALIBRATE control to make the required correction. Make sure the control is locked securely after adjustment. This control has a range of 40 cycles.

Step 8. Repeat steps 3 through 7 inclusive on the other two FREQ. RANGE switch settings to check the other two frequencies. A compromise setting of the CARRIER CALIBRATE control might be needed if two or more settings of the FREQ. RANGE switch require readjustment of the CARRIER CALIBRATE control.

An overall frequency check of the keyer and transmitter can be performed in the following manner if an accurately calibrated receiver covering the frequency range of the transmitter is available.

Step 1. If the transmitter has an OPERATE-TUNE switch or other means of reducing power, set the transmitter at reduced power.

#### INSTALLATION

# 3 Section

#### Paragraph 3 d

Step 2. Place the receiver a suitable distance away from the transmitter. Adjust the R.F. GAIN and AUDIO GAIN controls of the receiver to prevent the receiver from overloading. Set the C.W.O. control at ON.

Step 3. Tune the receiver to the transmitter's frequency. The frequency as read on the receiver's dial should be the crystal frequency of the keyer plus 200 kcs. multiplied by the multiplication factor of the transmitter. Required correction is made by the CAR-RIER CALIBRATE control.

An extremely accurate frequency check may be made if the installation facilities are such that a frequency standard is available with an accuracy capable of detecting frequency inaccuracies within the frequency tolerance of the crystal. Here again the CARRIER CALIBRATE control is used to make any frequency correction. If frequency accuracy of a high order is demanded the foregoing check should be made each time a crystal change is made.

e. DEVIATION.

Step 1. Set the transmitter at reduced power.

Step 2. Determine the multiplication factor of the transmitter. Set the MULTIPLIER switch at a position corresponding to the multiplication factor of the transmitter.

Step 3. Connect a high frequency receiver as close as possible to the transmitter. Adjust the receiver for C.W. operation.

Step 4. Tune the receiver to the transmitted frequency. Reduce the R.F. GAIN and AUDIO GAIN controls to prevent the receiver from overloading.

Step 5. Set the keyer TEST-OPERATE switch at

MARK. Vary the DEVIATION control from minimum to maximum. The audio pitch of the received signal should vary as the DEVIATION control is turned toward maximum.

Step 6. Set the keyer TEST-OPERATE switch at CARRIER. Vary the DEVIATION control from minimum to maximum. The audio pitch of the received signal should not vary as the DEVIATION control is varied from minimum to maximum.

Step 7. Set the keyer TEST-OPERATE switch at SPACE. Vary the DEVIATION control from minimum to maximum. The audio pitch of the received signal should vary in the opposite direction from Mark as in step 5 as the DEVIATION control is turned toward maximum.

f. KEYING SIGNAL INPUT.-Using a monitoring receiver, or equivalent means, check that the input telegraph keying signals are not reversed. Make the check in accordance with the following procedures:

(1) Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at FSK. Set the Teletypewriter at Mark. Observe that the transmitting frequency is shifting upward.

(2) Set the Teletypewriter at SPACE. Observe that the transmitting frequency is shifting downward.

(3) If necessary, check that the keyer input signal nominal voltages and polarities are as follows:

#### Mark +40 to +120 volts

Space 0 to -100 volts

The procedure outlined in paragraph 3 completes all initial adjustments and tests. After these tests have been completed the keyer may be turned over to operating personnel.

3–10

#### ORIGINAL

# SECTION 4 OPERATION

#### 1. INTRODUCTION.

The keyer is an electronic device designed to replace the frequency determining oscillator of a conventional C.W. transmitter. The addition of the keyer modifies the transmitter to permit frequencyshift keying or facsimile (photo) transmissions. The keyer transmits telegraphic characters or varies the intensity of the photo signals by shifting the frequency of the transmitter's carrier back and forth while the carrier remains on continuously. During frequency-shift keying operation, the frequency of the transmitter's carrier appears at a certain frequency during KEY-OPEN or SPACE intervals and shifts a few hundred cycles higher during KEY-CLOSED or MARK condition.

The keyer provides a circuit for phase modulating the transmitter's output at 200 cycles-per-second. Phase modulation spreads the energy of the signal over a wider frequency band thereby providing a simple means for achieving a certain amount of frequency diversity. By employing phase modulation during periods of selective fading complete loss of the signal becomes less probable.

Operation of the keyer is completely automatic after it has been aligned to the operating frequency. After alignment is completed no further adjustments are necessary unless the operating frequency or deviating frequency is changed.

The scope of this section is to provide the operator with sufficient information for efficient operation of the keyer.

#### 2. GENERAL.

Before attempting to use the keyer with its associated transmitter, be sure that operational procedures for the transmitter are thoroughly understood. Refer to the operation section of the instruction manual pertaining to the associated transmitter.

The procedure for setting up the keyer and transmitter for frequency-shift keying and facsimile transmission is that of adjusting the crystal oscillator and tuned circuits of the keyer to the desired crystal frequency. A signal from the teletype or scanner is then applied to the keyer where it is frequency modulated and then coupled to the associated transmitter where it is multiplied to the channel frequency.

The frequency deviation of the keyer for frequencyshift operation is adjustable over a range of zero to 1000 cycles-per-second in order that the actual transmitted frequency may be adjusted to any value from 0 to 500 cycles-per-second higher for the MARK signal and the same number of cycles lower for the SPACE signals. The frequency deviation capabilities for photo transmission provide a frequency variation of any value between 0 and 2000 cycles-persecond i.e. 0 to  $\pm 1000$  cycles-per-second with respect to the carrier frequency.

#### 3. CONTROLS.

Normal operation of the keyer is accomplished entirely by means of front-panel mounted controls. This subsection is presented to familiarize the operator with the function of each operational control and device. All front panel components of the keyer are located and identified on Figure 3-7.

a. POWER SWITCH.-This is a toggle switch which turns the keyer A.C. input power ON and OFF.

b. PLATE SWITCH.-This is a toggle switch which turns the keyer plate voltage ON and OFF.

c. PHOTO INPUT CONTROL.-The photo signal is applied directly to the PHOTO INPUT control. This control is adjusted so that a five-volt signal is applied directly to the frequency shifting circuits. A front-panel meter gives a visual indication of the magnitude of the photo input signal.

d. TEST-OPERATE SWITCH.-The TEST-OPER-ATE switch is a five-position switch utilized to select the circuit arrangement required for frequency shift operation and/or photo operation and the arrangement required to perform the alignment adjustments for carrier, mark and space conditions.

(1) CARRIER.-In the CARRIER position the carrier condition is simulated locally in the keyer for alignment and calibration purposes.

(2) SPACE.-In the SPACE position the space condition is simulated in the keyer for alignment and calibration purposes.

(3) MARK .- In the MARK position the MARK con-

4—1

#### ORIGINAL

# 4 Section

#### Paragraph 3 d (3)

dition is simulated in the keyer for alignment and calibration purposes.

(4) FREQUENCY-SHIFT.-With the switch in the FSK position the equipment is placed in the 'ready for operation' condition for frequency-shift keying.

(5) PHOTO.-With the switch in the PHOTO position the equipment is placed in the 'ready for operation' condition for photo transmission.

e. MULTIPLIER CONTROL.-The MULTIPLIER control provides a means of dividing by 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9 or 12 times the frequency deviation thereby keeping the deviation frequency at its preset frequency regardless of the multiplication employed in the multiplier stages of the transmitter.

f. CRYSTAL-OSC. SWITCH.-This switch provides a means of selecting one of the three frequency-determining crystals. The Ext. position is provided when it is desired to use an external oscillator as the excitation source.

g. FREQ. RANGE SWITCH.-This switch provides a means of selecting the tuned circuits corresponding to the output frequency of the keyer.

b. INPUT FILTER SWITCH.-This is a five-position switch which provides a means of selecting one of the four low-pass filters in the keyer corresponding to the dot-cycle rate to be transmitted. The fifth position is used for photo operation where the lowpass filters are not used.

*i*. METERING SWITCH.—A three-position switch and panel meter are utilized to select the meter circuit and to obtain a visual indication of photo-input voltage, final grid current and plate current, respectively.

*j*. TUNING.—This control is utilized to rotate a gang-tuned capacitor through the frequency range of the transmitter. The capacitor is tuned for maximum grid drive as indicated on the panel meter. The control is calibrated in megacycles.

k. OUTPUT LEVEL CONTROL. - This control functions to vary an inductance to properly load the keyer output.

*l*. OUTPUT TUNING CONTROL. - This control is utilized to tune the final amplifier plate circuit to resonance as indicated on the panel meter.

m. PHASE MODULATION CONTROL.-This control is a potentiometer utilized to vary the amount of phase shift from  $0^{\circ}$  to  $60^{\circ}$ . A phase modualtion ON-OFF switch is located at the extreme counterclockwise end of the control.

*n*. DEVIATION CONTROL.—This control functions to vary the amount of frequency deviation. The control dial has a multiplication factor of 100 for 'FSK' operation and 200 for 'photo' operation.

o. CARRIER CALIBRATE CONTROL.-The opera-

tor should never release the lock on this control and attempt its adjustment. Its purpose is to correct slight frequency inaccuracies as determined by test.

#### 4. OPERATING INSTRUCTIONS.

Detailed operating instructions are given herein in a step-by-step arrangement. Careful adherence to the indicated order and procedure will enable the operator to adjust the keyer to obtain maximum efficiency. The following operating procedures assume that the keyer has been properly installed, the initial adjustments have been made and the associated transmitter has been turned on. Figure 4-1 illustrates the following instructions. A Tuning Chart (see Figure 4-2) is provided on the front panel to record control settings after initial tuning. Thereafter the controls can be quickly set by reference to the Tuning Chart.

a. FREQUENCY-SHIFT KEYING OPERATION.

Step 1. Set the POWER switch at ON. White-jewel POWER lamp will light. Amber-jewel OVEN lamp will also light. Illumination of the amber-jewel lamp indicates that the crystal oven heater is on. This lamp will go on and off with changes in the crystal oven temperature in the following manner.

(1) Lamp illuminated: heat is being applied and the lamp will remain lighted until the operating temperature of the oven has reached approximately  $70^{\circ}$ C as indicated on the oven thermometer.

(2) Lampoff: no heat is being applied and the lamp will remain off until the temperature drops slightly below 70°C.

Step 2. After the lamp has turned off which indicates that the oven has reached its operating temperature set the PLATE switch at ON. Red-jewel plate lamp will light. The illumination given off by the foregoing three lamps may be adjusted by rotation of the serrated rim of the lamp assembly.

#### NOTE

When the keyer is not in use, keep the A.C. power connected and the POWER switch turned ON to maintain the correct operating temperature of the oven. The PLATE switch should be set at OFF.

Step 3. Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at FSK.

Step 4. Set the CRYSTAL-OSC. switch at the position corresponding to the socket position of the crystal providing the desired channel frequency.

Step 5. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at the position encompassing the output frequency of the keyer. The 'keyer output frequency' is defined as the crystal



Section 4 Paragraph 4 a



Figure 4-1. Operating Instructions for Frequency Shift Keying

frequency plus the 200 kilocycles from the low-frequency oscillator.

Step 6. Set the INPUT FILTER switch at the highest dot-cycle rate to be transmitted.

Step 7. Set the MULTIPLIER switch at the position corresponding to the multiplication factor employed in the transmitter. For example, if the multiplication factor is 8, the switch should be set at 'X8'.

Step 8. Set the PHASE MODULATION control at **ORIGINAL** 

Off (extreme counterclockwise position).

Step 9. Set the METERING switch at GRID.

Step 10. Unlock the TUNING control. Set the TUN-ING control at a setting corresponding to keyer output frequency and carefully adjust it about this setting for a maximum meter reading. A normal reading is approximately 1.5 ma. (actual meter reading of 0.5). Lock the TUNING control.

Step 11. Set the METERING switch at PLATE. Step 12. Release the lock on the OUTPUT TUN- Paragraph 4 a

#### NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

FREQ-CHANNEL			
CUTPUT TUNING			
OUTPUT LEVEL			
FREA. RANGE			
TUMING	- 14 		
ORYSTAL-OSC.			
CARRIER GALIBRATE			
PHASE MODULATION			
DEVIATION			
TEST-OPERATE			
FILTER			
PHOTO INPUT			
MULTIPLIER		-	

Figure 4-2. Tuning Chart

ING control. Adjust the OUTPUT TUNING control for minimum plate current as indicated on the panel meter.

Step 13. Release th. lock on the OUTPUT LEVEL control. Set the OUTPUT LEVEL control for the maximum grid drive required to drive the first amplifier or multiplier stage of the transmitter as indicated by a maximum reading on the grid meter of the associated transmitter.

#### NOTE

Care should be taken in this adjustment since, if the tuning range is located near the lower markings on the TUNING dial, it is possible that a dip may also be obtained near the higher markings of the dial due to the second harmonic of the keyer frequency.

Step 14. Repeat steps 12 and 13 adjusting the OUTPUT TUNING control and the OUTPUT LEVEL control simultaneously. As the output coupling is increased and the plate tuning maintained at resonance the output power should increase as indicated by a rising plate current reading and an increase in grid drive as noted on the grid meter of the associated transmitter. Rated power output is obtained when a reading of 85 ma. (actual meter reading of 0.425 ma.) is indicated on the panel meter. Lock the OUTPUT TUNING and OUTPUT LEVEL controls in position.

Step 15. Set the DEVIATION control at the desired deviation.

Step 16. To shut the keyer off set the PLATE switch at OFF and the POWER switch at OFF.

b. PHASE MODULATION.-During periods of adverse operating conditions it may be advisable to employ phase modulation. To use phase modulation turn the PHASE MODULATION switch ON by rotating the control clockwise. In operation the control is normally set at one radian. This setting is indicated by an elongated scale marking at  $57.3^{\circ}$  on the dial.

c. PHOTO OPERATION.-The initial adjustments of the keyer controls for photo transmission are the same as those given for frequency shift operation in para 3 a. of this section plus the following steps.

(1) Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at PHOTO.

(2) Set the INPUT FILTER switch at PHOTO.

(3) Set the METERING switch at PHOTO.

(4) With the photo scanner set at Mark, adjust the PHOTO INPUT control for 5 volts as indicated on the panel meter.

# SECTION 5 OPERATOR'S MAINTENANCE

#### 1. ROUTINE CHECKS.

The following routine checks of normal operation of the keyer are to be made by the operating personnel at the beginning of each watch. The tests are to be made with the keyer operating under normal conditions. Careful routine check of the equipment very often prevents failure under conditions when maintenance personnel are not available. The following chart assumes that the POWER switch and PLATE switch are at the ON position.

WHAT TO CHECK	HOW TO CHECK	PRECAUTIONS
White-jewel power lamp.	Observe lamp.	No light or intermittent light indicates poor lamp,loose connections, faulty heater voltage supply, blown fuse F-102, or defective A.C. cable W-103.
Amber-jewel oven lamp.	Observe lamp.	No light indicates poor lamp, loose connections, faulty oven components, blown fuse F-101.
Oven temperature.	Observe oven thermometer.	Lamp should remain lighted until tem- perature reaches 70°C.
Red-jewel plate lamp.	Observe lamp.	No light indicates poor lamp, loose con- nection or defective switch S-109.
Keyer operation.	Observe panel meter.	Check grid and plate current of keyer output tube V-111. Normal grid reading is 1.2 ma., plate is 85 ma.
Semi-Operating controls.	Observe panel meter.	With the Metering switch set at In- put set the TEST-OPERATE switch alternately at Space, Mark and Carrier. Panel meter should read 2.5 volts differ- ence between Mark and Space, Carrier should be one-half way between these two points.

### TABLE 5-1. ROUTINE CHECK CHART

#### ORIGINAL



Figure 5-1. Fuse Locations, Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT

# 2. EMERGENCY MAINTENANCE.

#### Notice to Operators

Operators shall not perform any of the following emergency maintenance procedures without proper authorization.

The maintenance procedure listed in the following paragraphs are for the guidance of operating personnel during an emergency when maintenance personnel are not available.

a. FUSES.-See Figure 5-1 for location of fuses.

#### CAUTION

Never replace a fuse with one of a higher rating unless continued operation of the equipment is more important than probable damage. If a fuse burns out immediately after replacement, do not replace it a second time until the cause has been corrected.

If the keyer is inoperative and no pilot lamps are lighted check the A.C. power fuse F-102 which is accessible at the rear of the MD-165/URT. Probable cause of A.C. power fuse failure is a short circuit in the primary of the power transformer or the filament



Figure 5-2. Tube Locations, Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT

circuit. If all pilot lamps are lighted but the amber jewel oven lamp, check fuse F-101 which is located at the rear of the MD-165/URT. Probable cause of fuse failure is an open A.C. circuit or shorted A.C. supply to the crystal oven. If the keyer is inoperative and all pilot lamps are lighted check the B+ fuse F-103 located at the rear of the modulator chassis. Eight-ampere fuses are required in the primary circuit of the power transformer and oven circuits. A 500-ma. fuse is required in the B+ circuit. Spare fuses are mounted at the rear of the MD-165/URT.

b. ELECTRON TUBES.-All electron tubes employed in the keyer are located and identified on Figures 5-2 and 5-3. If a particular tube is burned out, as observed by the absence of heater or filament glow,

ORIGINAL

the tube can be replaced by a tube of proven quality. To gain access to the tubes it is necessary to slide the chassis out of the cabinet. To do so, proceed as follows:

(1) Loosen the captive type thumb screws at the outer edges of the front panel.

(2) Grasp the handles located on the front panel and pull the chassis forward as far as the release mechanism will permit. At this point the slide release mechanism on both sides of the chassis will drop into slotted grooves, thus locking the chassis in place and preventing forward or backward movement of the chassis.

Before attempting to remove a tube be sure to loosen the clamp about the base of the tube. To

# **5** Section

## NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

#### Paragraph 2 b

loosen the clamp, insert a screw-driver in the slotted opening at the top of the ring and turn in a counterclockwise direction.

If it becomes necessary to replace the reactance modulator tube V-106, it will be necessary to recheck



Figure 5-3. Tube Locations, Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT

the modulator alignment as outlined in section 7 para. 5 a. (2). Depress the slide release mechanism and push the chassis back into the cabinet until the positioning pin falls into place. Tighten the captive screws.

# SECTION 6 PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE

#### 1. ROUTINE MAINTENANCE CHECKS.

Preventive maintenance is a systematic series of operations performed at regular intervals on equipment to eliminate major breakdowns and unwanted interruptions in service and to keep equipment operating at top efficiency. The usefulness of a frequency-shift system depends on each piece of equipment operating at peak efficiency at all times.

The routine maintenance test schedule should be

modified if the equipment is used under adverse operating conditions but, in general, the test schedule as arranged in table 6-1 should prove adequate.

#### NOTE

The attention of maintenance personnel is invited to the requirements of chapter 67 of the Bureau of Ships Manual of the latest issue.

WHAT TO CHECK	HOW TO CHECK	PRECAUTIONS								
	EACH WATCH									
Refer to Table 5-1. Operator's Routine Check Chart.										
MONTHLY										
1. External connections and cables.	Inspect firmness of all connections to the keyer. Check that the cables have not been damaged.	Loose connections or damaged cables may result in faulty operation.								
General visual inspection.	Withdraw the AM-655/URT and MD- 165/URT units from the cabinet.									
	Note condition of resistors.	A scorched or discolored exterior indicates replacement is necessary.								
	Check all internal connections for evidence of looseness.	Tighten as necessary.								
	Inspect relay contacts.	Clean or replace as necessary.								
	Inspect all connectors on blister assemblies for evidence of loose or defective connections.	Tighten or replace as necessary.								
	Measure insulation resistance of cables to shield and to ground.	It should be at least 2000 megohms.								
	ANNUALL Y									
Electrical performance check.	Complete performance tests as out- lined in section 7 para. 4. (c).									

#### TABLE 6-1. ROUTINE MAINTENANCE CHECK CHART

# 6 Section Paragraph 2

NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

2. LUBRICATION.

The keyer has been lubricated at the factory and requires no added lubrication.

# FAILURE REPORTS

A FAILURE REPORT must be filled out for the failure of any part of the equipment whether caused by defective or worn parts, improper operation, or external influences. It should be made on Failure Report, form NES-383, which has been designed to simplify this requirement. The card must be filled out and forwarded to BUSHIPS in the franked envelope which is provided. Full instructions are to be found on each card.

Section

Use great care in filling the card out to make certain it carries adequate information. For example, under "Circuit Symbol" use the proper circuit identification taken from the schematic drawings, such as T-803, in the case of a transformer, or R-207, for a resistor. Do not substitute brevity for clarity. Use the back of the card to completely describe the cause of failure and attach an extra piece of paper if necessary.

The purpose of this report is to inform BU-SHIPS of the cause and rate of failures. The information is used by the Bureau in the design of future equipment and in the maintenance of adequate supplies to keep the present equipment going. The cards you send in, together with those from hundreds of other ships, furnish a store of information permitting the Bureau to keep in touch with the performance of the equipment of your ship and all other ships of the Navy.

This report is not a requisition. You must request the replacement of parts through your Officer-in-Charge in the usual manner.

Make certain you have a supply of Failure Report cards and envelopes on board. They may be obtained from any Publications and Distribution Office.

RE REPORT-ELECTRON	C EQUIPME	NT E	TTCE - Pand a nai farma and nai farma and nai farma and nai far tensor nai far tensor	SALING REP	TAT					
URE REPORT ELECTRON	ELECTRON	IC EQUIPMENT	FAILURE R	EPORT (S	ig) m	TICE.—Abod no ior to preparing		MEPOI		
	ORGANIZATION	PERFORMING MAINTER	WICL				N OF OFFICER ACCOUNTS	DATE MAIN	and the second state of th	
NECK ONE AND ADD			U viae			u D.				
TYPE NUMBER AND NAME OF MAJOR UNIT I	Redao	Bader		[] ••••					weify) Hburr(Specify)	
TIPE NUMBER AND	TE NUMBER AND THE EQUIPMENT MODEL DESIGNATION			SERIAL NUMBER OF EQUIPMENT			ACTOR		CONTRACT ND.	
THIS	TYPE NUMBER A	ND NAME OF MAJOR U	WT INVOLVED	SERIAL MUR	ER OF UNIT	CONTRACT OR P	O DATA OF UNIT		DATE EQUIPHENT RECEIVED	
THE TYPE MCLUDING THE					ITEM WH	ICH FAILED				
TURE MANAGENETURES	TUBE TYPE INCL	THIS	SIDE FOR T		0. (NO*( a)	NAME OF PART	THIS SIDE !			
					- ( ( 4			CIRCUIT SY (06 R 134)		
FAILURE OCCURRED IN	TUBE MARUFACT	URER		CONTRAC	T RG. (POTY 4)	SERIAL NO	CONTRACT DATA	DATE RECI	D. PARMY STOCK N	
	FAILURE OCCURR	() ()	GUARANTEE (NOTE S)			*CHECK-OFF OR	TAG DATA (NOTE 1	-	TURER S DATA (HOR N	
I manarma U ister	L) 1000ge	C Operation	ACTUAL HO	URS	ATE OF FAILURE	BALEF DESCRIPT	ION AND CAUSE OF FAM	URE. INCLUDIN	APPROXIMATE LIFE (CONTINUE	
INSTALLING NATURE OF FALLURE AND REMAN	C trateding	recounting )	TYPE OF FAI	RUNE 1	UBE CIRCUIT SIMIDOL	~				
	NATURE OF FAILU	ME AND REMARKS (NO	TE N (CONTINUE C	DH BACK)		-				
	CONCLUSION:									

# SECTION 7 CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE

Χ,

#### 1. FAILURE REPORT.

A failure report must be filled out for the failure of any part of the equipment. It is to be sent through the proper channels according to the instructions thereon. See Figure 7-1.

#### WARNING

THIS EQUIPMENT IS CONNECTED ELEC-TRICALLY TO A TRANSMITTER EMPLOY-ING VOLTAGES WHICH ARE DANGEROUS AND MAY BE FATAL IF CONTACTED BY OPERATING PERSONNEL. EXTREME CAU-TION SHOULD BE EXERCISED WHEN WORK-ING WITH THE EQUIPMENT.

#### 2. INTRODUCTION.

This section contains all information necessary for the repair and adjustment of the keyer. Maintenance personnel must be prepared to repair and adjust keyers that have failed in operation. The source of the trouble must be located, the defect remedied and the equipment restored to an operating condition.

Contained in this section is a trouble-shooting paragraph to serve as a guide to maintenance personnel in locating the source of trouble and its possible cause. Following this, is a paragraph giving detailed instructions for all electrical alignment procedures and adjustments. Finally, a paragraph is included for guidance when making mechanical repairs or adjustments.

#### 3. THEORY OF LOCALIZATION.

The manner in which the keyer operates, or fails to operate, often gives unmistakeable indications of the source of trouble. For example, abnormal action of a control will in most cases indicate the specific stage or stages at fault. The production of satisfactory keying or facsimile signals depends not only upon the successful operation of the keyer itself, but also upon the character of the signals connected to it. Furthermore, if an external oscillator is used to generate an R.F. carrier, the stability and accuracy of the oscillator output influences the reliability of the keyer output.

E Figure 7-2 is a trouble shooting chart which lists in logical sequence a series of checks to be made to locate quickly the specific circuit causing faulty keyer operation. The trouble shooting chart does not list all possible troubles. However, it does list those that are most likely to occur. In most cases, the use of the chart will localize a source of trouble sufficiently well to enable its precise location by voltage and resistance checks in the suspected area.

#### 4. TROUBLE SHOOTING.

a. GENERAL.-The location of troubles in the keyer can be accomplished by making the series of checks outlined on the trouble shooting chart, Figure 7-2. To read this chart start at the left hand side and follow the heavy black line to the right. An 'ok' following a specific circuit signifies that this circuit is operating properly and the maintenance man may proceed to the next stage. If a particular circuit is inoperative a series of checks pertaining to that circuit is shown in lighter lines adjacent to its position on the chart. A six-foot three-inch service cable W-109 is supplied with the KY-75/SRT to enable the maintenance man to remove the individual chassis from the cabinet and service the unit on a test bench. To use this cable connect it between the connector on the inside of the cabinet and the connector on the chassis being serviced. Refer to para. 5. (1) for the method of removing the chassis from the KY-58/GRT. Tubes should be checked in suitable tube testing equipment or by replacement with tubes of proven quality. Specific stages and their components can be checked by performing voltage and resistance measurements as outlined in Figures 7-3 and 7-4. Constant reference to the schematic diagram Figure 7-21 and the practical wiring diagram, Figures 7-22, 7-23 and 7-32 is required for efficient trouble shooting. A thorough inspection of the keyer and its external connections should be made before attempting any adjustments or repairs.

The presence or conditions of keying voltages may be checked with suitable voltage measurements of the keying input lines. If an oscilloscope such as



# Figure 7-2. Trouble Shooting Chart

ORIGINAL

7-2

F

R

0

Ν

Т

#### NAVSHIPS 91543

#### KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

Section 7 Paragraph 4 a



Figure 7-3. Voltage and Resistance Data Chart, Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT

Navy Model OBL series, OBT series or equivalent is available, the keying impluses may be checked visually while running Morse dots or running an RY tape in the teletype transmitter by connecting the vertical input to the keyer line terminal and using a slow-speed sweep.

b. CIRCUIT CONSTANTS.-The value of all circuit components are indicated on the Parts List, Table 8-4 and on the schematic diagram, Figure 7-21. Their actual connections and approximate locations are shown on the practical wiring diagram Figures 7-22, 7-23 and 7-32. Their actual locations are shown on Figures 7-24 through 7-31.

c. PERFORMANCE TESTS.-The following tests are used to check operation of the keyer section by section. These tests should be made following any readjustments or repairs to assure proper functioning of the keyer prior to its return to operational duty. The tests must be made in the order shown since the test of any specific section of the keyer is predicated on the fact that sections prior to the section under test have been checked and found to be functioning properly.

Units of test equipment required to perform these tests are as follows:

An R.F. frequency meter such as Navy Model LM series or equivalent.

A 5 to 20-volt battery source.

A.high frequency receiver, National Co. Model NC-240D or equivalent.

A 10 kc. Multivibrator, General Radio Co. Model 692B or equivalent.

#### ORIGINAL



Figure 7-4. Voltage and Resistance Data Chart, Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT

A variable audio oscillator, Navy Model LO series or equivalent.

An oscilloscope, such as Navy Model OBL series or equivalent.

(1) TEMPERATURE REGULATION.

Step 1. When the amber pilot lamp lights, observe that the oven thermometer reads slightly less than 70 °C.

Step 2. Verify that the temperature heating cycle, averaged over five successive cycles, is on for approximately two minutes and off for approximately ten minutes under normal ambient room temperature of approximately  $30^{\circ}$ C.

(2) 200 KC. OSCILLATOR.

Step 1. Connect cable W-107 between the keyer

FREQUENCY METER R.F. OUTPUT jack J-110 and the input of a frequency meter such as Navy Model LM or equivalent.

Step 2. After the oven has reached its operating temperature of  $70^{\circ}$ C set the CRYSTAL-OSC. switch at the desired crystal position. Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at carrier.

Step 3. Set the METERING switch at GRID. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at the position encompassing the keyer output frequency. Set the TUNING control at a position 200 kc. above the crystal frequency and carefully adjust it about this setting for the maximum meter reading.

Step 4. Adjust the frequency meter until the keyer output frequency is found. Note the output frequen-

#### ORIGINAL



Figure 7-5. Interconnections for Frequency Deviation Test

cy. It should be 200 kc. above the crystal frequency.

Step 5. Remove the frequency meter.

#### NOTE

As an alternate an accurately calibrated receiver covering the frequency range of the keyer can be used. This receiver can be utilized to make the above check by loosely coupling the output of the keyer to the input of the receiver and tuning the receiver to the keyer's frequency. The frequency as read on the receivers dial should be 200 kcs. higher than the frequency of the crystal in the keyer.

(3) FREQUENCY DEVIATION FOR FREQUEN-CY-SHIFT TRANSMISSION.-See Figure 7-5 for the method of connecting the equipment required for this test.

Step 1. Adjust the receiver controls for MCW Operation.

Step 2. Tune the receiver until the audio tone is heard in the audio output of the receiver. Adjust the Audio Gain and R.F. Gain controls of the receiver for a suitable output.

Step 3. Set the DEVIATION control at 10 (maximum deviation).

Step 4. Set the MULTIPLIER switch at X1.

Step 5. Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at CAR-RIER.

Step 6. Adjust the variable audio oscillator until a 1:1 frequency pattern (a circular trace) appears on the oscilloscope screen. Note the frequency of the audio oscillator. Check this frequency against the crystal frequency. It should be the crystal frequency plus 200 kcs.

Step 7. If the frequency does not measure exacily 200 kc. above the crystal frequency adjust the CAR-RIER CALIBRATE control until this result is obtained.

Step 8. Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at MARK.

Step 9. Adjust the variable audio oscillator until a 1:1 frequency ratio pattern appears on the oscilloscope screen. Note the frequency on the audio oscillator. It should be 500 cycles higher than the frequency obtained in the carrier condition (Step 6).

(4) FREQUENCY DEVIATION FOR PHOTO TRANSMISSION.-The equipment remains connected as outlined in paragraph (3).

Step 1. Set the DEVIATION control at 10 (maximum deviation).

Step 2. Set the MULTIPLIER switch at X1.

Step 3. Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at PHOTO.

Step 4. Set the INPUT FILTER switch at PHOTO.

Step 5. Remove the keyer input cable W-101.

Step 6. Connect a battery source of 5 to 20 volts to the keyer input jack J-113 Actors Pins C and B.

Step 7. Set the METERING switch at INPUT.

Step 8. Adjust the PHOTO INPUT control until a reading of 2.5 volts is obtained on the front-panel meter. This 2.5 volts is utilized to simulate the photo carrier.

Step 9. Adjust the variable audio oscillator until a 1:1 frequency pattern appears on the oscilloscope screen. Note this frequency. It represents the car-



rier frequency.

Step 10. Remove the battery source in order to simulate a space condition.

Step 11. Adjust the variable audio oscillator until a 1:1 frequency pattern appears on the oscilloscope screen. Note the frequency. This frequency represents the space condition and should be 1000 cycles lower than the frequency noted in Step 9. Step 12, Return the battery connections to Ninput jack J-

Step 13. Adjust the PHOTO INPUT control until a 5-volt reading is obtained on the front-panel meter. This 5 volts is utilized to produce the photo Mark condition.

Step 14. Adjust the variable audio oscillator until a 1:1 frequency pattern appears on the oscilloscope

7--6

# NAVSHIPS 91543

Section 7 Paragraph 4 c (4)

#### KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

screen. Note the frequency. This frequency represents the mark condition and should be 1000 cycles higher than the frequency noted in Step 9.

Step 15. Remove all test equipment.

(5) R.F. OUTPUT.

Step 1. Set the CRYSTAL-OSC. switch at the desired position. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at the position encompassing the keyer output frequency.

Step 2. Set the METERING switch at GRID. Set the TUNING control at a frequency 200 kc. above the crystal frequency and carefully adjust it about this setting for a maximum front-panel meter reading. A normal reading is approximately 1.2 ma. (actual meter reading of 0.4 ma).

Step 3. Set the METERING switch at PLATE. Panel meter should read approximately 85 ma. (actual reading of 0.425 ma) with the plate tuned to resonance and an R.F. Ammeter reading of 285 ma. or the rated power output of 6 watts.

(6) PHASE MODULATION.

Step 1: Make the connections outlined on Figure 7-6.

Step 2. Set the PHASE MODULATION control at one radian  $(57.3^{\circ})$  and the INPUT FILTER switch at 60. Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at Mark.

Step 3. The pattern observed on the oscilloscope should check with that shown on Figure 7-7.

Step 4. Remove all test equipment.

(7) CARRIER BALANCE.

Step 1. Set the CRYSTAL-OSC. switch at the desired position. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at a position encompassing the keyer output frequency.

Step 2. Set the METERING switch at PLATE. Turn the TUNING control from minimum to maximum and observe the readings obtained on the panel meter. Three readings should be observed. The balanced carrier should produce a minimum current reading whereas the sidebands on both sides of the carrier should produce maximum current readings with the upper sideband showing a slightly higher reading than the lower sideband. The three readings should be the crystal frequency, the crystal frequency +200 kcs. and the crystal frequency -200 kcs. If the Cathode Balance Adjustment has been accurately set the crystal frequency may not be found.

#### 5. REPAIRS.

a. ALIGNMENT DATA.-This section contains all information necessary to permit maintenance personnel to align the keyer. It is important that the function of each circuit element is understood so that the correct alignment may be obtained quickly and accurately. See Figures 7-8 through 7-12 for location of all alignment adjustments.

The complete alignment of the keyer may be divided

into two steps. R.F. alignment and modulator alignment.

The alignment of any adjustment indiscriminately is to be avoided and no circuit should be realigned unless operation definitely indicates that realignment is necessary.

Units of test equipment required to perform these repairs are as follows:

An electronic voltmeter such as Navy Model OBQ or multimeter ME-25/U.

A signal generator, such as Navy Model LAH, R.F. Signal Generator or equivalent, with a frequency coverage that encompasses the 900 to 7000 kc. range.

A Ballantine voltmeter model 300 or equivalent.

A 5 to 20-volt battery source.

An R.F. frequency meter such as Navy Model LM series or equivalent.

A 500-ma. R.F. meter.

An oscilloscope Navy Model OBL series or equivalent.

A 10-kc. multivibrator, General Radio Co. type 692B or equivalent.

A high frequency receiver, National Co. Model NC-240D or equivalent.

A variable audio oscillator, Navy Model LC series or equivalent.

To effect complete alignment of the keyer it is necessary to remove the AM-655/URT and MD-165/ URT units from the cabinet. Proceed as follows:

(1) KY-58/GRT.

Step 1. Remove the A.C. input cable W-103 from the A.C. supply source.

Step 2. Loosen the captive type thumb screws on the outer edges of the front panel. Both the AM-655/ URT and MD-165/URT are removed in the same manner therefore the following description is applicable to both units.

Step 3. Grasp the handles located on the front panel and pull the chassis forward as far as the release mechanism will permit. At this point the slide release mechanism on both sides of the chassis will drop into slotted grooves, thus locking the chassis in place and preventing forward or backward movement of the chassis.

Step 4. To remove the chassis from the cabinet depress the slide release mechanism on each side of the chassis and pull the chassis forward. Place the chassis on the repair bench or on top of the keyer cabinet.

Step 5. Release the four captivated nuts securing the two blister units in place. Remove the blisters.

Step 6. Connect the blisters to the chassis. There is sufficient slack in the cables to permit moving the blister units at will.

Step 7. Connect the A.C. input cable W-103 be-



Figure 7-8. Alignment Adjustment Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT

tween the A.C. input jack J-103 and the A.C. supply source.

Step 8. Connect a 73-ohm non-inductive resistive load to the keyer output jack J-111. Place a 500milliampere R.F. meter in series with the load.

Step 9. Remove all crystals from their sockets.

(2) KY-75/SRT.—The procedure for removing the KY-75/SRT keyer from its cabinet and preparing it for alignment is similar to that described in para 5 (1) except that a six-foot test cord is supplied to connect the chassis that has been removed from the cabinet. However, in this case it is only possible to remove one chassis at a time. Connect the test cord between the multi-connector on the chassis and the multi-connector on the cabinet.

The above steps complete the preliminary procedure for setting up the keyer for service and alignment. To effect alignment proceed as follows:

#### (3) R.F. ALIGNMENT.

(a) CRYSTAL OSCILLATOR ALIGNMENT.

Step 1. Connect the signal generator between pin 4 of the crystal oscillator tube V-110 and chassis.

Step 2. Connect the electronic voltmeter (Model OBQ or ME-25/U) between pin 5 of the mixer stage (parallel grids of balanced mixer tubes V-108 and and V-109) and chassis. Set the voltmeter on the 50-volt scale.

Step 3. Set the A.C. POWER switch at ON.

Step 4. Set the PLATE switch at ON.

Step 5. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 3.5 - 6.7.

Step 6. Release the lock on the TUNING control and set it at 6.7. Adjust the signal generator for an unmodulated signal output of 2 volts at 6500 kcs. Adjust trimmer capacitor C-129 for maximum reading

on the electronic voltmeter.

Step 7. Set the TUNING control at 3.5 Change the frequency setting of the generator to 3300 kcs. Adjust the tuning core of inductor L-106 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

The above procedure completes the oscillator alignment for the 3.5 to 6.7 range.

Step 8. To align the oscillator on the 1.8 to 3.5 mc. range set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 1.8 - 3.5 set the TUNING control at 3.5 and set the signal generator at 3300 kcs. Adjust trimmer capacitor C-130 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

Set the TUNING control at 1.8 and the signal generator at 1600 kcs. Adjust the tuning core of L-107 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

Step 9. To align the oscillator on the 1 to 1.8

mc. range, set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 1 - 1.8, set the TUNING control at 1.8 and set the signal generator at 1600 kcs. Adjust C-131 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

Set the TUNING control at 1.0 mc. and the signal generator at 800 kcs. Adjust the tuning core of L-108 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

(b) BUFFER ALIGNMENT.

Step 1. Set the PLATE switch at OFF.

Step 2. Move the voltmeter connection from pin 5 of the mixer tube to pin 3 of the R.F. power amplifier tube V-112. Move the signal generator from pin 4 of V-110 to pin 4 of V-111, the buffer amplifier.

Step 3. Set the PLATE switch at ON. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 3.5 - 6.7.

Step 4. Set the TUNING control and signal generator at 6.7 mcs. Adjust the trimmer capacitor C-146 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.



Figure 7-9. Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT

ORIGINAL.

## Paragraph 5 a (3)

7 Section

Step 5. Set the TUNING control and signal generator at 3.5 mcs. Adjust the tuning core adjustment of inductor L-113 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

The above procedure completes the buffer alignment for the 3.5 to 6.7 mc. range.

Step 6. To align the buffer amplifier on the 1.8 to 3.5 mc. range, set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 1.8 - 3.5, set the TUNING control and signal generator at 3.5 mcs. Adjust C-147 for a maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

Set the TUNING control and signal generator at 1.8 mcs. Adjust the tuning core of inductor L-114 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

Step 7. To align the buffer amplifier on the 1 to 1.8 mc. range set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 1-1.8, set the TUNING control and signal generator at 1.8 mcs. Adjust C-148 for a maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

Set the TUNING control and signal generator at 1.0 mcs. Adjust the tuning core of inductor L-115 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

(c) MIXER ALIGNMENT.

Step 1. Set the PLATE switch at OFF.

Step 2. Move the signal generator lead from pin  $4 \in f$  V-111 to pin 8 of one of the two balanced mixer tubes V-108 or V-109.

Step 3. Set the PLATE switch ON.

Step 4. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 3.5 - 6.7.

Step 5. Set the TUNING control and signal generator at 6.7 mcs. Adjust trimmer capacitor C-140 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

Step 6. Set the TUNING control and signal generator at 3.5 mcs. Adjust the tuning core of inductor T-102 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

The above procedure completes the mixer alignment for the 3.5 to 6.7 mc. range.

Step 7. To align the mixer on the 1.8 to 3.5 mc. range, set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 1.8 - 3.5, set the TUNING control and signal generator at 3.5 mcs. Adjust C-141 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

Set the TUNING control and signal generator at 1.8 mcs. Adjust the tuning core of inductor T-103 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

Step 8. To align the mixer on the 1.0 to 1.8 mcs. range, set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 1 - 1.8, set the TUNING control and signal generator at 1.8 mcs. Adjust C-142 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter.

Set the TUNING control and the signal generator at 1.0 mcs. Adjust the tuning core of inductor T-104 for maximum reading on the electronic voltmeter. (d) R.F. POWER AMPLIFIER ALIGNMENT.

Step 1. Set the PLATE switch at OFF.

Step 2. Remove the electronic voltmeter, set the PLATE switch at ON and the METERING switch at PLATE.

Step 3. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 3.5 - 6.7.

Step 4. Set the TUNING control and the signal generator at 6.7 mcs.

Step 5. Unlock the OUTPUT TUNING and OUT-PUT LEVEL controls. Adjust the OUTPUT LEVEL control for minimum coupling as indicated by a minimum reading on the calibrated diat.

Step 6. Set the TUNING control and the signal generator at 3.5 mcs. Adjust the OUTPUT LEVEL control for minimum coupling. Adjust the OUTPUT TUNING control for minimum plate current (approximately 30 ma.) as indicated on the panel meter. If a resonant dip is not obtained adjust the tuning core of inductor L-118 for minimum plate current as indicated on the panel meter.

Step 7. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 1.8 -3.5. Set the TUNING control and the signal generator at 1.8 mcs. Adjust the OUTPUT LEVEL control for minimum coupling. Adjust the OUTPUT TUNING control for minimum plate current (approximately 30 ma. -- actual meter reading of 1.5 ma.) as indicated on the panel meter. If a resonant dip is not obtained adjust the tuning core of inductor L-119 for minimum plate current as indicated on the panel meter.

Step 8. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 1 - 1.8, Set the TUNING control and the signal generator at 1.0 mcs. Adjust the OUTPUT LEVEL control for minimum coupling. Adjust the OUTPUT TUNING control for minimum plate current (approximately 30 ma.) as indicated on the panel meter. If a resonant dip is not obtained adjust the tuning core of inductor L-121 for minimum plate current as indicated on the panel meter.

Step 9. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 3.5 - 6.7. Set the TUNING control and the signal generator at 6.7 mcs.

Step 10. Load the OUTPUT LEVEL control until a useable reading is obtained on the R.F. ammeter and simultaneously resonate the OUTPUT TUNING control as indicated by minimum plate current reading on the panel meter. Increase the loading and tuning until the R.F. ammeter reads 285 ma. and the panel meter reads 85 ma.

Step 11. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 1.8 -3.5. Set the TUNING control and the signal generator at 3.5 mcs.

Step 12. Repeat step 10.

Step 13. Set the FREQ. RANGE switch at 1 - 1.8. Set the TUNING control and the signal genera-

#### CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE

# NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT



R-168 V-105 FREQUENCY ADJ.

Figure 7-10. Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT

tor at 1.8 mcs.

Step 14. Repeat step 10.

Step 15. Lock the OUTPUT TUNING, OUTPUT LEVEL and TUNING controls.

Step 16. Remove the R.F. ammeter.

(4) MODULATOR ALIGNMENT.-The locations of the variable potentiometers referred to herein are shown on Figures 7-10 and 7-11.

(a) MARK AND SPACE ADJUSTMENTS.

Step 1. Set the Multiplier switch at X1 and the METERING switch at Input. Set the INPUT FILTER switch at Photo. Set the PHASE MODULATION control at OFF.

Step 2. Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at SPACE. Read and record the reading on the panel meter. A normal reading is approximately 1.9 volts.

Step 3. Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at MARK. Adjust the FSK MARK variable potentiometer R-114 for a reading exactly 2.5 volts higher than the reading obtained at SPACE in Step 2.

Step 4. Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at CAR-RIER. Adjust the FSK CAR. potentiometer R-117 for a reading approximately 1.25 volts higher than the reading obtained at SPACE in Step 2.

The above center frequency adjustment is not critical. However, the change of 2.5 volts SPACE to MARK as performed in Steps 2 and 3 should be made with the greatest accuracy.

(b) DEVIATION CALIBRATION.-After the above adjustments have been completed adjust the DEV. CALIB. potentiometer R-106 to calibrate the range of the front panel DEVIATION control. This adjustment is accomplished utilizing an external battery source of five volts or more. The battery must be capable of maintaining five volts on 600 ohms.

Step ]. Connect the battery to the keyer input jack J-101. Connect the positive lead to pin **C** and the negative lead to pin B.

Step 2. Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at

#### ORIGINAL

7–11



Figure 7-11. Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT with Panel Door Open

PHOTO and the METERING switch at INPUT. Set the DEVIATION control at maximum deviation. Adjust the PHOTO INPUT control for a reading of 5 volts on the front panel meter.

Step 3. Connect cable W-107 between the keyer Frequency Meter R.F. output jack J-110 and the input of a frequency meter such as NAVY MODEL LM or equivalent. Note the reading on the frequency meter.

Step 4. Remove the battery and note the reading on the Frequency Meter. The difference between this reading and the one obtained in Step 3 should be exactly 2000 cycles. If this is not true, adjust the DEV. CALIB. potentiometer for the correct difference frequency. Check by reconnecting the battery.

If a battery source is not available, the above adjustment of the DEV. CALIB. control can be made on frequency shift. There is some reaction between controls and repetition of steps will be required to obtain the necessary accuracy. Proceed as follows:

Adjust the DEV. CALIB. potentiometer so that changing the TEST-OPERATE switch from SPACE to MARK causes a 2.5 volt change on the panel meter and exactly 1000-cycle change in the R.F. output. It should be noted that movement of the DEV. CALIB. control causes a change in the frequency of both SPACE and MARK. Repeated adjustments will be required to obtain accurate measurements.

(c) LINEARITY ADJUSTMENT.-After the deviation adjustments are completed, the remaining adjustments can be made as follows:

Step 1. Set the DEVIATION control at zero and note the R.F. output frequency as read on the frequency meter. This is the true carrier frequency and is the assigned frequency of the keyer. This frequency can only be varied by changing the frequency determining crystal or external oscillator. The panel CARRIER CALIBRATE control provides a means of adjusting the frequency over a narrow range.

Step 2. With the TEST-OPERATE switch at CARRIER, set the DEVIATION control at maximum. Adjust the LINEARITY potentiometer R-122 for the same R.F. output frequency as obtained with the DEVIATION control at zero in Step 1. After this adjustment is completed, movement of the DEVIATION control will not change the carrier when the TEST-OPERATE switch is set at CARRIER.

Step 3. Set the DEVIATION control at maximum. Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at SPACE. Adjust the FSK CAR. potentiometer until SPACE is 500 cycles lower than the carrier as measured in Step 2.

Step 4. Set the DEVIATION control at maximum

Section Paragraph 5 a (4)

7

and the TEST-OPERATE switch at Photo. Adjust the PHOTO CAR. potentiometer until the frequency is 1000 cycles lower than the carrier. If a battery is available the accuracy of the adjustment can be ascertained by applying 5 volts to the photo input circuit. The frequency should then be 1000 cycles higher than the assigned carrier frequency.

(d) PHASE MODULATOR FREQUENCY CON-TROL.

Step 1. Connect the vertical plates of an oscilloscope between pin 1 of V-106 and chassis.

Step 2. Connect the horizontal plates of the oscilloscope to a variable audio oscillator. Adjust the oscillator to 200 cycles.

Step 3. Adjust the phase modulator frequency control R-168 until the phase modulation oscillator circuit is tuned to exactly 200 cycles. The 200cycle voltage will appear as a circular 1:1 frequency ratio pattern on the oscilloscope screen. The range of R-168 is approximately 40 cycles.

Step 4. Remove the oscilloscope and variable audio oscillator.

(e) PHASE MODULATION ADJUSTMENT.

Step 1. Connect a low-reading high impedance voltmeter such as a Ballantine model 300 between pin 1 of V-106 and chassis.

Step 2. Set the PHASE MODULATION control at one radian.

Step 3. Adjust the PHASE MOD. CALIB. potentiometer R-162 for a reading of 0.0875 volts RMS on the voltmeter. The PHASE MODULATION control is now calibrated for the correct voltage to produce one radian at 57.3 degrees on the dial scale.

Step 4. Remove the voltmeter.

(f) CARRIER BALANCE ADJUSTMENT.-This adjustment is more accurately made at frequencies above 4 megacycles.

Step 1: Set the METERING switch at PLATE.

Step 2. Remove the 200-Kc. oscillator tube V-107 so that only one point of drive can be found.

Step 3. Set the TUNING control at the point of maximum drive. Adjust the CATHODE BALANCE potentiometer R-189 for the least amount of grid drive as indicated on the panel meter.

Step 4. Replace the 200-Kc. oscillator tube.

(g) CARRIER CALIBRATE ADJUSTMENT.

Step 1. After the crystal oven has reached its operating temperature of 70° set the plate switch at ON. Set the CARRIER CALIBRATE control at 50. Set the TEST-OPERATE switch at CARRIER. Set the CRYSTAL-OSC. switch and the FREQ. RANGE switch at corresponding positions. Set the TUNING control at the keyer output frequency.

Step 2. Open the oven door and adjust the runing core of L-103 until the frequency as observed on the frequency meter is 200 kcs. above the crystal fre-

S-110



THERMOSWITCH ADJ. Figure 7-12. Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of Amplifier Oscillator AM-655/URT with Panel Door Open

ORIGINAL

# 7 Section

# NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

## Paragraph 5 a (4)

quency. Close the oven door.

Step 3. Set the METERING switch at GRID. Adjust the tuning core of L-104 for maximum reading on the panel meter. Readjust the final tuning as explained in Step 10 of paragraph 5 a. (1) (d). of this section.

Step 4. Remove all test equipment.

(b) OVEN THERMOSTAT ADJUSTMENT.

Step 1. Open the oven door. Turn the screwdriver adjustment on the thermostat S-110 in a counterclockwise direction to increase the temperature at which the thermoswitch opens. See Figure 7-12.

Step 2. To lower the thermoswitch threshold turn the screwdriver adjustment in a clockwise direction. Close the oven door.

**b.** MECHANICAL ADJUSTMENTS.-Tools required for the mechanical adjustments described herein consist of:

1. No. 8 Allen Wrench (mounted at the rear of the crystal oven).

2. Medium size Phillips screwdriver, Federal Staudard Stock Catalogue No. 3-41-S-1640 or No. 4-41-S-1642.

3. Medium size screwdriver, Federal Standard Stock Catalogu No. 41-S-1104.

4. Lon ;-nose pliers.

5. Soldering iron and accessories.

(1) CONTROL KNOBS AND COUPLINGS.-All control knobs are fastened to their respective shafts by 8-32 Allen set-screws. To remove the knobs, insert a No. 8 Allen wrench into the ends of the screws, rotate a few turns counterclockwise until the knob turns freely on the shaft. It can then be lifted off the shaft. All shaft couplings are secured by means of 8-32 Allen set-screws.

(2) DISASSEMBLY.-Refer to paragraph 5 a (1) and 5 a (2) for disassembly instructions.

(3) REMOVAL OF AM-655/URT BOTTOM.-Loosen the 23 captivated type screws around the outer edges of the bottom and lift the bottom off.

(4) REMOVAL OF MD-165/URT BOTTOM.-Loosen the 16 captivated screws around the outer edges of the bottom and lift the bottom off.

(5) REMOVAL OF CRYSTAL OVEN.

Step 1. Loosen the three 4-40 screws that secure the thermometer to the front panel. Remove the thermometer.

Step 2. Unsolder the nine bus leads between terminal boards TB-101 and TB-102.

Step 3. Loosen and remove the two 6-32 screws securing the oven to the bottom of the chassis.

Step 4. Loosen and remove the four 8-32 screws on each side of the crystal oven.

Step 5. Lift the oven up and away from the chassis.

# TABLE 7-1. TUBE OPERATING VOLTAGES AND CURRENTS

TUBE TYPE	FUNCTION	PLATE (E)	PLATE (MA)	SCREEN (E)	SCREEN (MA)	SUPP (E)	CATH (E)	GRID (E)	HEATER A.C. (E)
1/2 6Н6	Limiter	0	0				19		6.3
1/2 6H6	Limiter	19	.15				19		6.3
1/2 6Н6	Limiter	0	0				12.4		6.3
1/2 6H6	Limiter	12.4	.03				12.7		6.3
1/2 6SN7W	Cathode Follower	150	7				15	12	6.3
1/2 6SN7W	Cathode Follower	150	4.8				10	5	6.3
6J5	Cathode Follower	270	9				9		6.3
6SJ7W	Phase Modulation Osc.	215	2.5	90	1.0	3.3	3.3	0	6.3
1/2 6SN7W	Reactance Modulator	150	1.5				7.8	.3	6.3
1/2 6SN7W	Reactance Modulator	150	1.5				7.8	•4	6.3
6SJ7W	200 Kc. Osc.	85	2.7	62	.082	· 0	0	1.6	6.3
6SJ7W	Crystal Osc.	88	2.0	80	.68	0	.1	-3	6.3
6SA7	Balanced Mixer	205	1.2	100	5.5	0	3.7	-5	6.3
6SA7	Balanced Mixer	205	1.2	100	5.5	0	3.7	-5	6.3
6AC7W	Buffer Amp.	270	10	62	2.25	0	0	0	6.3
807	R.F. Power Amp.	270	74	170	<u>,</u> 10		3	-7.5	6.3
VR150	Voltage Regulator	150							· · · · ·
5U4	Rectifier	360 A.C.	200				340	·	5.0
VR150	Voltage Regulator	150						·	
VR75	Voltage Regulator	75							

في الد

7-15

NAVSHIPS 91543

Section

-

CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE

7-16

# TABLE 7-2. RATED TUBE CHARACTERISTICS

	FILA- MENT VOLT-	FILA- MENT CUR-	PLATE VOLT-	GRID	SCREEN VOLT-	PLATE	SCREEN CUR-	A.C. PLATE RESIS-	VOLTAGE AMPLI- FICATION	TRANSCON (MICRO	DUCTANCE DMHOS)	EMI	ISSION
TUBE TYPE	AGE (V)	RENT (A)	AGE (V)	BIAS (V)	AGE (V)	CURRENT (MA)	RENT (MA)	TANCE (OHMS)	FACTOR (MU)	NORMAL	MINIMUM	IS (MA)	TEST VOL T.
6Н6	6.3	0.3	150 A.C.*			8*						15**	20
6SN7W	6.3	0.6	250	-8		9		7700	20	3000	2400	40*	30
6]5	6.3	0.3	250	-8		9		7700	20	2600	2075	40	30
6AC7W	6.3	0.45	300	160 *	150	10	2.5	1,000,000	6750	9000	7000	40	10
6SJ7W	6.3	0.3	250	-3	100	3	0.8	1,500,000	2500	1650	1325	60	30
6SA7	6.3	0.3	250	0***	100	8	3.4	800,000		4700*** 13 <i>*</i> #	3500*** 0.5##	70	30
807	6.3	0.9	400	-45	250	100	7.5	4,000				300	50
5U4	5	3	450*			225			:			225*	· 75
OD3/ VR150			150			5-40							
OA3/ VR75			75			5-40							

\*Per plate

\*\*Per diode

\*Cathode resistor - ohms

**\*\***#Grid bias - 2 volts if separate oscillator excitation is used

\*\*\*Oscillator transconductance

##Conversion transconductance

NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT 4

.

ORIG	TABLE 7-3. WINDING DATA CHART												
ORIGINAL	SYMBOL DESIG.	NAT. PT. NO.	DIAGRAM	WINDING	WIRE SIZE	TURNS	D.C. RES. IN OHMS	IMPED- ANCE RATIO	HIPOT AC VOLTS	REMARKS	RECTIVE		
	L-101 L-102	SA:4884		5 pie univer- sal wnd	*38 ESN	370 per pie, total 1850	1.5			10 mh, brush on bakelite resin varnish	CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE		
	L-103	SA:8886	$ \begin{array}{c} 2 \\ 13'' \\ -1 \\ 64 \\ -1 \\ 64 \\ -1 \\ -1 \\ -1 \\ -1 \\ -1 \\ -1 \\ -1 \\ -1$	univer- sal wnd	*10/41 ESN	20 to tap, total 99	0.52 to tap, total 2.84			10 microhenries to tap, total 205 microhenries, tapped at 20 turns, apply Q-max lacquer	NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT		
7-	L-104	SA:8885	START $3^{2}$ 	2 pie univer- sal wnd	#10/41 ESN	90 C.T.	1.12 to tap, total 2.36			42 microhenries to tap, total 117 microhenries, center tapped, apply Q-max lac- quer	Section		
17			L					L <u></u>			<b>」</b> ~		

\$

ŧ



.

1

ORIGINAL

.

**T**Section



.

ORIGINAL

٠

Section

CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE

٠

8

NAVSHIPS 91543



Section

CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE


N

٠

			TABLE 7-3.	WINDING		T (Cont'	d)				CORR
	SYMBOL DESIG.	NAT. PT. NO.	DIAGRAM	WINDING	WIRE SIZE		D.C. RES. IN OHMS	IMPED- ANCE RATIO	HIPOT AC VOL TS	REMARKS	RECTIVE
	L-119	SA:8874	$\frac{5}{3} = \frac{5}{32} = \frac{7}{16}$	single	#26 E	34 C.T.	0.207 to C.T., total 0.414			32 microhenries w/slug, center tapped, apply Q-max lacquer	CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE NAV: KY-58/GRT
	L-120	SA:8875	$\frac{9}{32} \frac{1}{132} \frac{1}{$	2 pie univer- sal wnd	#26 ESN	24 first pie, 32 second pie, total 56	0.318 first pie, 0.420 second pie, total 0.738			108 microhenries w/slug, tapped at 24 turns, ap- ply Q-max lac- quer	NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
7-21	L-122 L-123	H391	00000	layer wnd	#27 PE (AWG)	2900	125		2000 v RMS	8 henries at 200 ma., in vacuum impregnated her- metically sealed can	Section 7

.

.

7-22

#### TABLE 7-3 WINDING DATA CHART (Cont'd)

IMP ED-ANCE SYMBOL D.C. RES. NAT. HIPOT DESIG. PT. NO. DIAGRAM RATIO WINDINGWIRE SIZE TURNS IN OHMS AC VOLTS REMARKS L-124 SA:8892 2 pie #20 E 75 per 0.5 0.6 mh w/slug, ᆔᆤ┝ L-125 pie, apply bakelite universal wnd total 150 resin varnish 0 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT -2-5" MAX. NAVSHIPS 91543 T-101 P632-1 2000 v layer wnd RMS primary #21 PE 200 2.05 115 VAC (A₩G) #1 and #2 #3 and #4 #21 PE 200 2.25 115 VAC (AWG) 012 1300 secondary #28 PE 106.7 720 VAC at 250 30-#5, 6 and (A₩G) ma., center tap CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE 7 at terminal #6 000 secondary electrostatic **#8** shie ld secondary 24 #15 PE 0.174 12.6 VAC at 3 #9 and (**A₩G**) amp. **#10** secondary #18 PE 10 0.074 5.25 VAC at 3 #11 and (A₩G) amp. **#12** 

1

×.

7 Section

ORIGINAL



CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE

Section





Figure 7-13. Frequency Response of 60-cycle Keying - ilter Z-101



Figure 7-14. Frequency Response of 100-cycle Keying Filter Z-102





Figure 7-15. Frequency Response of 200-cycle Keying Filter Z-103



Figure 7-16. Frequency Response of 240-cycle Keying Filter Z-104



Figure 7-17. Transient Response of Waveshaping Filters



Figure 7-18. Overall Dynamic Response of Photo Circuits



Figure 7-19. Frequency-Shift vs. Key Line Voltage, Static Test



Figure 7-20. Overall Photo Linearity, Static Test



#### CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE

#### NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

Figure 7-21. Schematic Diagram, KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT Keyers



eyers 7-29 , 7-30

#### CORRECTIVE MAINTENANCE

## NAVSHIPS 91543

KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT





ORIGINAL

Section 7



7-31, 7-32





Figure 7-23. Practical Wiring Diagram, Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT 7-33, 7-34

Section 7



Figure 7-24. Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT

7-35

Section 7



Figure 7-25. Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT

ORIGINAL



Figure 7-26. Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT



Figure 7-27. Miscellaneous Component Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT

ORIGINAL

NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT



Figure 7-28. Component Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT

7-39

Section 7



Figure 7-29. Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT

ORIGINAL



Figure 7-30. Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT

Section 7



Figure 7-31. Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT



Figure 7-32. Practical Wiring Diagram of Blister Assembly, KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT Keyers
CHANGE 1
7-43

## TABLE 8-1. WEIGHTS AND DIMENSIONS OF REPAIR PARTS BOXES

		EQUIPME	NT SPARES		
REPAIR		OVERALL DIMENSIONS		VOLUME	WEIGHT
PARTS BOX	HEIGHT	WIDTH	DEPTH	cu. ft.	lbs.
1	12¼″	181/4"	91⁄8″	1.18	52

## TABLE 8-2. SHIPPING WEIGHTS AND DIMENSIONS OF REPAIR PARTS BOXES

		EQUIPM	INT SPARES			
SHIPPING	REPAIR		OVERALL DIMENSIONS		VOLUME	WEIGHT
BOX NO.	PARTS BOX	HEIGHT	WIDTH	DEPTH	cu. ft.	lbs.
1	1	137⁄8″	215%"	107/8″	1.89	65

#### TABLE 8-3. LIST OF MAJOR UNITS

[	SYMBOL GROUP	QUANTITY	LIST OF MAJOR UNIT	STANDARD NAVY STOCK NUMBER	DESIGNATION
	101 to 299	1	Keyer	F16-K-47681-1001	KY-58/GRT
	101 to 299	or 1	Keyer	F16-K-47672-9201	KY-75/SRT

NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

PARTS LIST

۲

ω Section

#### TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

			PARTS						;		UIP.	rs
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	STANDARD NAVY AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION	CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.		8 /GRT .NENO	KY-7 XOg	S /SR
			PA	NELS		, I	<b>I</b>		I	L		
A-101	Panel, indicator: aluminum w/gray enamel finish; 19" lg $\times 6^{3}_{22}$ " wd $\times \frac{3}{6}$ " thk; mts by four threaded inserts, $\frac{3}{6}$ " diam and chamfered to $\frac{13}{22}$ " diam; on 18.312" $\times 4.000$ " mtg/c; special markings: "Carrier Calibrate," "Tuning," "Output Level," "Crystal Oscillator," "Fre- quency Range"; "Output Tun- ing"; panel photo etched according to dwg P654-I w/black characters on gray background; front panel for AM-655/URT panel	AM-655/URT front panel		*	1; P654-1	P654-1	A-101	1				
A-102	Panel, indicator: aluminum; gray enamel finish; $19'' \lg \times 8^{23}_{32}''$ wd $\times \frac{3}{6}''$ thk; mts by eight threaded inserts, $\frac{3}{8}''$ diam and chamfered to $\frac{13}{22}''$ diam; inserts on irregularly spaced mtg/c; special markings: "Frequency Meter Audio," "Power," "On, Power," "Meter- ing," "Multiplier," "Oven," "Plate," "On, Plate," "Devia- tion," "Photo Input," "Filter," "Phase Modulation," "Test Oper- ate"; panel photo-etched accord- ing to dwg L609-1 w/black char- acters on gray background; front panel for MD-165/URT	MD-165/URT front panel		+	1; L609-1	L609-1	A-102	1				
A-103*	Panel, blank: front panel; alumi- num w/gray enamel finish; 19" lg $\times$ 13 <sup>31</sup> / <sub>2</sub> " wd $\times$ <sup>3</sup> / <sub>6</sub> " thk; 8 mtg holes <sup>1</sup> / <sub>2</sub> " lg $\times$ <sup>1</sup> / <sub>4</sub> " wd on 18 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>4</sub> " $\times$ 3 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>2</sub> " mtg/c	Front panel		‡	1; P675-1	P675-1	A-103	1				
A-104*	Cabinet, electrical equipment: steel, w/gray enamel finish; empty; $22\frac{1}{8}''$ lg $\times 19''$ wd $\times 41\frac{1}{16}''$ h; includes O-148, O-176, O-177	KY-58/GRT cabinet	CY-1132/GRT	‡	1; BM545	BM545	A-104	1				
* { ‡ ]	upplied on KY-58/GRT only ot furnished as a maintenance part.	If failure occurs, d	o not request replacen	nent unless the ite	n cannot be i	repaired or fat	ricated.					

ORIGINAL

PARTS LIST

NAVSHIPS 91543 58/GRT and KY-75,

Section

ω

# TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

			PARTS						R	EQU EPAIR	JIP. PARTS
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE)	STANDARD NAVY AND (SIGNAL CORPS)	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG -	CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING &	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.			KY-75/SR
			NO.	STOCK NO.	NATION	PART NO.	INVOLVED	EQ.	BOX	QUAN.	BOX QUAN.
			PANELS	(continued)							
A-105†		KY-75/SRT cabinet	CY-1133/SRT	+	1; BM546	BM546	A-105	1			
			CAP	ACITORS			I				
C-101	Capacitor, fixed: paper dielectric; 1 section; case style 15, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 2 mfd, $-10\%$ to +20%; 600 vdew; hermetically sealed metal can; $2\%''$ lg $\times 11/2''$ diam; 2 solder lug type "B" term located at one end, spaced $\frac{3}{16}''$ apart min on phenolic pillars; oil impregnated char "D"; oil filled char "D"; no internal grd connec- tion; $\frac{3}{4}''$ -16 thrd mtg bushing $\frac{1}{2}''$ lg w/hex nut; JAN-C-25 spec	Part of deviation control filter net- work	CP41B1DF205V	N16-C-49221 -9933	14	H641-3	C-101	1			
C-102	Capacitor, fixed: paper dielectric; 1 section; case style 41, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 1mfd $\pm 10\%$ ; 600 vdew; hermetically sealed metal can; $1\frac{3}{16}$ " lg $\times 4\frac{9}{64}$ " wd $\times 2\frac{3}{4}$ " h max; 2 solder lug term, $\frac{3}{4}$ " h max, located at one end, $\frac{5}{6}$ " apart c to c, on porcelain pillars; requires single hole mtg clamp; JAN-C-25 spec	V-103 cathode-to V-104 cathode coupling	CP61B1EF105K	N16-C-48817 -1090	14	L895-3	C-102, C-104	2			
C-103	Capacitor, fixed: paper dielectric; 1 section; case style 41, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 500,000 mmf $\pm 10\%$ ; 600 vdcw; hermetically sealed metal can; $1\%$ 'g $\times 4\%$ '' wd $\times$ 2" h; 2 solder lug term, $3\%$ '' h max; located at one end, spaced %'' apart c to c, on porcelain pil- lars; no internal grd connection; requires single hole mtg clamp; JAN-C-25 spec	Part of deviation- control filter net- work	CP61B1EF504K	N16-C-47297 -1111	14	L895-5	C-103, C-106	2			
C-104	Same as C-102	V-105 cathode by-									

8 Section A-105–C-10

ORIGINAL	C-105	Capacitor, fixed: mica dielectric; case style no 22, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 10,000 mmf $\pm 20\%$ ; 300 vdcw; no specified temp coef; molded bakelite case; ${}^{53}\!$		CM35B103M	N16-C-33627 -7705	173	11377-3	C-105, C-113, C-119, C-126, C-128, C-136, C-137, C-143, C-145, C-149, C-152, C-154, C-156, C-160, C-164	15	PARTS LIST
	C-106	Same as C-103	V-105 screen by- pass							
	C-107	Capacitor, fixed: mica dielectric; case style no 22, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 1300 mmf $\pm 5\%$ ; 500 vdcw; temp coef -20 to +100 parts/million/degree C; molded bakelite case; ${}^{53}_{64}$ " lg $\times {}^{9}_{22}$ " d $\times$ ${}^{53}_{64}$ " wd max; 2 axial wire lead term at each end; term mtd; JAN- C-5 spec	Part of V-105 phase shifting net- work	CM30E132J	N16-C-31349 -1699	14	H640-24	C-107, C-108, C-109	3	
A	C-108	Same as C-107	Part of V-105 phase shifting network							KY-5
	C-109	Same as C-107	Part of V-105 phase shifting net- work							NAVSH 8/GRT
r	C-110	Capacitor, fixed: mica dielectric; case style no 22, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 1000 mmf $\pm 10\%$ ; 500 vdew; no specified temp coef; molded bakelite case; ${}^{58}\!$	V-106 grid filter	СМ35А102К	N16-C-31090 -4203	242	J174-4	C-110	1	NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
	C-111	Capacitor, fixed: mica dielectric; case style no 22, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 4700 mmf $\pm 10\%$ ; 500 vdcw; no specified temp coef; molded bakelite case; ${}^{53}_{44}''$ lg $\times$ ${}^{11}_{52}''$ d $\times$ ${}^{53}_{64}''$ wd max; 2 axial wire lead term at each end; term mtd; JAN-C-5 spec	Audio filter	CM35B472K	N16-C-32646 -6808	173	H377-7	C-111, C-112, C-134, C-135, C-138	5	
	C-112	Same as C-111	Audio filter							
	C-113	Same as C-105	V-106 to V-107 coupling							
-	C-114	Capacitor, variable, air dielectric; 1 section, plate meshing type; 17 to 325 mmf; SLC tuning charac- teristic; 750 V.A.C. peak voltage; $2^{23}_{52}''$ lg $\times 1^{5}_{8}''$ wd $\times 1^{7}_{8}''$ h; $7_{16}''$ -27 thrd bushing, $^{13}_{52}''$ lg;	Carrier Calibra- tion control		N16-C-61716 -5075	1; SA: 8754	SA: 8754	C-114, C-150	2	Section C-105-C
8- 3	† 8 ‡ 1	 Supplied on KY-75/SRT only Not furnished as a maintenance part.	If failure occurs, do	not request replacem	ent unless the iten	n cannot be re	paired or fab	icated.		c-114

œ

# TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Sec C-114

			PARTS						R	EQI EPAIR		5
				STANDARD NAVY	MFGR.	CON-			KY-51	B/GRT	KY -7	/SRT
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION	TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	BOX	QUAN.	BOX	QUAN.
17 - 17 - 18 - 19 - 19 - 19 - 19 - 19 - 19 - 19			CAPACITOR	S (continued)								2
C-114 (cont)	$^{31}_{64''}$ lg $\times$ 0.250'' diam shaft; extension shaft adjustment, w/180° CCW rotation; ceramic in- sulated base; 2 solder lug termin- als; single hole mtg by $\frac{7}{6}$ ''-27 bushing and two #6-32 tapped holes $\frac{3}{4}$ '' c to c; contains 35 alu- minum plates w/polished finish											
C-115	Capacitor, fixed: mica dielectric; case style no 22, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 620 mmf $\pm 5\%$ ; 500 vdcw; temp coef $-20$ to $+100$ parts/mil- lion/degree C; molded bakelite case; ${}^{58}_{64}$ " lg $\times {}^{11}_{22}$ " d $\times {}^{53}_{64}$ " wd max; 2 axial wire lead term; term mtd; JAN-C-5 spec; part of Z-106		CM35E621J	N16-C-30373 -1943	173	H377-16	C-115	1				
C-116	Capacitor, fixed: mica dielectric; case style no 22, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 2700 mmf $\pm 5\%$ ; 500 vdcw; temp coef $-20$ to $+100$ parts/million/degree C; molded bakelite case; $^{53}_{64''}$ lg $\times ^{11}_{52''}$ d $\times$ $^{53}_{64''}$ wd max; 2 axial wire lead term; term mtd; JAN-C-5 spec; part of Z-106	L-103 tuning	СМ35Е272Ј	N16-C-32140 -4743	173	H377-18	C-116	1				
C-117	Capacitor, fixed: mica dielectric; case style no 22, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 270 mmf $\pm 10\%$ ; 500 vdcw; no specified temp coef; molded bakelite case; ${}^{51}\!$	V-106 to V-107 coupling	CM20B271K (-481519-B10)	N16-C-29613 -2676	242	H371-9	C-117, C-122, C-124	3				
C-118	Capacitor, fixed: paper dielectric; 1 section; case style 41, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 100,000 mmf $\pm 10\%$ ; 600 vdcw; hermetically sealed metal can; $1\frac{5}{16}$ " lg $\times 4\frac{9}{64}$ " wd $\times$ $2\frac{3}{4}$ " h max; 2 solder lug term, $\frac{3}{4}$ " h max, located at one end, $\frac{5}{8}$ " apart c to c, on porcelain pillars; requires single hole mtg clamps; JAN-C-25 spec	V-107 plate filter	CP61B1EF104K	N16-C-45777 -1074	14	L895-6	C-118	1				

ORIGINAL	C-119 C-120	Same as C-105 Not used	V-107 to Z-105 coupling							PARTS LIST
F	C-121	Capacitor, fixed: mica dielectric; case style no 22, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 4700 mmf $\pm 5\%$ ; 500 vdcw; no specified temp coef; molded bakelite case; ${}^{5}\!$	L-104 tuning	CM35B472J	N16-C-32641 -6328	173	H377-19	C-121	1	IST
	C-122	Same as C-117	Ext Osc input coupling		1		-			
	C-123	Capacitor, fixed: ceramic dielec- tric; case style no 2, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 22 mmf $\pm 10\%$ ; temp coef $-330 \text{ mmf/mf}^\circ$ C; temp coef tolerance $-718$ to $+500 \text{ mmf/}^\circ$ mf/°C; insulated; phenolic jacket; 0.562" lg $\times$ 0.250" diam max; 2 axial wire lead term; term mtd; JAN-C-20 spec	V-110 grid to cath- ode feedback	CC21SL220K	N16-C-16157 -6400	83	H872-8	C-123, C-125	2	NAVSHIPS KY-58/GRT and
	C-124	Same as C-117	V-110 cathode by- pass							NAVSHIPS 3/GRT and
	C-125	Same as C-123	V-110 fixed plate tuning							
	C-126	Same as C-105	V-110 screen by- pass							91543 KY-75/SRT
	C-127	Capacitor, variable, air dielectric: plate meshing type; 4 sections; 375 mmf max, 12.5 mmf min; straight line frequency tuning character- istic; 700 v 60 cycles AC peak volt- age; $8\frac{1}{2}$ " lg $\times 1^{27}$ " h $\times 3^{3}$ /6" wd excl shaft; shaft 1" lg $\times 0.250$ " diam; extension shaft adjustment; 180° CCW rotation; ceramic insu- lated base; 8 solder lug term; four 0.130" diam mtg holes, 2 at each end of front plate $\frac{1}{2}$ " c to c; 25 aluminum plates per section w/pol- ished finish	Main tuning con- trol		N16-C-63576 -1001	284	P633-1	C-127		/SRT
	C-127A	Part of C-127	V-110 plate tuning							
	C-127B	Part of C-127	V-108 plate tuning							
	C-127C	Part of C-127	V-109 plate tuning							Section C-119_C
	C-127D	Part of C-127	V-111 plate tuning							9-C-
8-5 5	C-128	Same as C-105	V-110 output coupling							-128

8-6-

# TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Section C-129--C-14

			PARTS						R	EQU EPAIR	JIP. PARTS	/SRT
				STANDARD NAVY	MFGR.	CON-			KY-5	B/GRT	KY-75	SRT
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	AND MFGR'S. DESIG - NATION	TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	BOX	QUAN.	вох	QUAN.
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	CAPACITO	RS (continued)		-			I			
C-129	Capacitor, variable: ceramic die- lectric; single section rotary type; temp coef $-300$ parts/million/°C; 3.0 to 13 mmf capacity; 500 vdcw; $^{27}\%''$ lg $\times ^{41}\%''$ wd $\times ^{13}\%''$ d max; 2 solder lug type term located on each side; two 0.120'' diam mtg holes spaced 0.438'' c to c in base; screwdriver slot adjustment; stea- tite base; JAN-C-81 spec	L-106 tuning	CV11B130	N16-C-63965 -2800	83	K277-6	C-129, C-130, C-131, C-140, C-141, C-142, C-146, C-147, C-148	9				
C-130	Same as C-129	L-107 tuning				,						
C-131	Same as C-129	L-108 tuning										
C-132	Not used											
C-133	Capacitor, fixed: ceramic dielec- tric; case style no 2, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 47 mmf ±10%; temp coef -330 mmf/mf/°C; temp coef tolerance -718 to +500 mmf/mf/ °C; insulated: phenolic jacket; 0.562" lg × 0.250" diam, max; 2 axial wire lead term; term mtd; JAN-C-20 spec	V-108 fixed plate tuning	CC21SL470K	N16-C-16541 -7014	83	H872-5	C-133, C-139, C-144	3				
C-134	Same as C-111	V-108 screen by- pass										
C-135	Same as C-111	V-108 cathode by- pass										
C-136	Same as C-105	V-110 to V-108 and V-109 cou- pling										
C-137	Same as C-105	V-109 plate filter										
C-138	Same as C-111	V-109 cathode by- pass										
C-139	Same as C-133	V-109 fixed plate tuning										
C-140	Same as C-129	T-102 tuning										

OR	C-141	Same as C-129	T-103 tuning							PA
ORIGINAL	C-142	Same as C-129	T-104 tuning							PARTS
AL	C-143	Same as C-105	V-111 screen by- pass							S LIST
	C-144	Same as C-133	V-111 fixed plate tuning							-
	C-145	Same as C-105	V-111 to V-112 coupling							
	C-146	Same as C-129	L-113 tuning							
	C-147	Same as C-129	L-114 tuning							
	C-148	Same as C-129	L-115 tuning							
	C-149	Same as C-105	V-112 cathode by- pass							
	C-150	Same as C-114	Output tuning control							5
	C-151	Not used								-5
	C-152	Same as C-105	V-112 screen by- pass							NAVSHIPS KY-58/GRT and
	C-153	Capacitor, fixed: paper dielectric; 1 section; case style no 40, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 100,000 mmf $\pm 10\%$ ; 600 vdcw; hermetically sealed metal can; $11\frac{3}{6}$ " lg $\times 1''$ wd $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " dp; 3 solder lug term, $\frac{3}{4}$ " h, max, located on top, spaced $\frac{1}{2}$ " apart c to c, on porcelain pillars; no internal ground connections; two $\frac{3}{6}$ " diam mtg holes on $2\frac{1}{3}$ " mtg/c; JAN-C-25 spec	V-112 plate filter	CP54B1EF104K	N16-C-45777 -3177	14	H564-3	C-153	1	HIPS 91543 f and KY-75/SRT
	C-154	Same as C-105	V-112 output coupling							
	C-155	Capacitor, fixed: ceramic dielec- tric; case style no 2, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 5 mmf $\pm 0.25$ mmf; temp coef $-330$ mmf/mf/°C; temp coef tolerance $-718$ to $+500$ mmf/mf/°C; insulated; phenolic jacket; 0.562'' lg $\times 0.250''$ diam, max; 2 axial wire lead term; term mtd; JAN-C-20 spec	V-112 to J-110 coupling	CC21SL050C	N16-C-15625 -4505	83	H872-9	C-155	1	
	C-156	Same as C-105	V-112 plate RF filter							Section C-141-
8-7	C-157	Capacitor, fixed: paper dielectric; 1 section; case style no 15, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 4 mfd, -10% to +20%; 600 vdcw; hermetically	Power supply filter	CP41B1DF405V	N16-C-49981 -9993	14	H641-2	C-157, C-158, C-159	3	Section 8 .141-C-157

8-8

# TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Section C-157–E-1

			PARTS						R		UIP. PART	rs	57-E-101
			JAN AND	STANDARD NAVY AND	MFGR. AND	CON- TRACTOR	ALL	TOT.	KY-58	3 /GRT	KY-75	5/SRT	-101
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	(NAVY TYPE) NO.	(SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	MFGR'S. DESIG - NATION	DRAW- ING & PART NO.	SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	NO. PER EQ.	вох	QUAN.	BOX	QUAN.	
		1	CAPACITO	RS (continued)		1		L					
C-157 (cont)	sealed metal can; $4\frac{1}{2}'' \lg \times 1\frac{1}{2}''$ diam; 2 solder lug type "B" term, $\frac{1}{6}''$ h max, located at one end, spaced $\frac{5}{16}''$ apart, min, on porce- lain pillars; no internal grd connec- tions; $\frac{3}{4}'' \times 16$ thrd single hole mtg bushing; JAN-C-25 spec												
C-158	Same as C-157	Power supply filter											KY-58/GRT
C-159	Same as C-157	Power supply filter											/GRT and KY-75,
C-160	Same as C-105	V-107 screen by- pass											and
C-161	Capacitor, fixed: paper dielectric; 2 sections; case style no 40, MBCA ref dwg group 1; 100,000 mmf per section, $+20$ %-10%; 600 vdcw; hermetically sealed metal can; 1 <sup>13</sup> %'' wd × 1'' d × <sup>3</sup> %'' h; 3 solder lug term, <sup>3</sup> %'' h max, located on top, spaced <sup>1</sup> %'' apart c to c, on porcelain pillars; internally grounded; two <sup>3</sup> %'' diam mtg holes on 2 <sup>1</sup> %'' mtg/c; JAN-C-25 spec		CP54B6EF104V	N16-C-53204 -4098	13	H564-4	C-161, C-162	2					KY-75/SRT
C-161A	Part of C-161												
C-161B	Part of C-161												
C-162	Same as C-161	AC line filter											
C-162A	Part of C-162												
C-162B C-163	Part of C-162 Not used												
C-164	Same as C-105	V-111 plate by- pass											
			MISCELLANEOUS	ELECTRICAL PARTS	Г				L	L			
E-101*	Blister assembly: multiconnector; consists of two rectangular com-	Blister assembly MARKEJ: PHOTO NPUT INCLUSES J113			1; SA:7284	SA:7284	E-101	1					

ORIGINAL	E-101* (cont)	partments electrically connected by 2 cables and containing various receptacle connectors peculiar to National Company, Inc. part/dwg SA:7284; each compartment $10\frac{1}{4}''$ lg $\times 4\frac{3}{8}''$ wd $\times 4\frac{3}{32}''$ d; mts by 4 captive thumb nuts, 2 on each compartment spaced diagonally on $8\frac{3}{4}'' \times 1\frac{1}{8}''$ mtg/c; marked: Keyer Output, Freq Meter, RF Ext Oscillator, FM Audio, Key- line, AC Power; includes J-101, J-102, J-103, J-105, O-186, O-187, O-188, O-189, O-190, O-143, O-161, J-109, J-111, J-106							PARTS LIST	3 - 3 45 - 194
	E-102	Insulator, standoff: grade XXP natural bakelite; wax impregnated; flat plate, rectangular w/rounded end shape, MBCA ref dwg group 9, item code no 225, MBCA ref dwg group 9; 1" lg $\times$ 34" wd; two 0.125" diam mtg holes on 0.438" mtg/c; 34" from flat end; JAN- P-13 spec			68	P349-4	E-102	9	KY-	
	E-103	Insulator, bushing:grade L-5 white ceramic; round, flat w/flange, MBCA ref dwg group 9; item code no 210, MBCA ref dwg group 9; D-0.362", B-0.187", T-0.125", E-0.094"; 0.093" diam ctr hole	Feedthru insula- tors	N17-I-49475 -1171	254; D868	K673-1	E-103	18	NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT	
.*	E-104	Insulator, standoff: grade L-4 white ceramic; side surfaces glazed; standoff, cylindrical pillar MBCA ref dwg group 9; item code no 19 MBCA ref dwg group 9; L-1/2", C-3/6", D-3/8", T-6-32"	C-128, R-184 R-196, R-198 mtg	N17-I-69154 -6206	86	M040-1	E-104	4	91543 KY-75/SRT	) = 1 1 2
	E-105	Knob: round black bakelite; de- signed to accommodate round shaft $\frac{1}{4}''$ diam $\frac{1}{6}''$ deep shaft hole, fastened $\frac{1}{40}$ with $\frac{1}{8}$ -32 set screws; cadmium plated brass in- sert; $\frac{15}{8}''$ lg $\times \frac{1}{2}''$ diam $\times \frac{7}{8}''$ thk; arrow marking $\frac{1}{42}''$ wd $\times \frac{1}{46}''$ d groove filled w/white lacquer	Freq Range sw knob	N16-K-700346 -101	1; SA:8880	SA:8880	E-105 thru E-112	8	i,	
	E-106	Same as E-105	Crystal Osc sw knob							
	E-107	Same as E-105	Test Op sw knob							
	E-108	Same as E-105	Phase Mod Cont knob						m	
	E-109	Same as E-105	Filter sw knob						-101	2
8	E-110	Same as E-105	Photo Input cont knob						Section C -101-E-110	•
Ĩ 9		Supplied on KY-58/GRT only								x

ထု

# TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

m 00

PARTS LIST

			PARTS						R	EQU EPAIR	JIP. PARTS	
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	STANDARD NAVY AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION	CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG, INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	КҮ-58 ХОД	/GRT	KY-75	SRT
		MIS	CELLANEOUS ELECT						<u> </u>			-
E-111	Same as E-105	Multiplier sw knob										
E-112	Same as E-105	Metering sw knob										
E-113	Knob: round black bakelite; de- signed to accommodate round shaft $\frac{1}{4}$ diam $\frac{1}{2}$ deep shaft hole, fastened $\frac{1}{2}$ deep shaft hole, fastened $\frac{1}{2}$ set screws; $\frac{1}{16}$ diam $\times$ $\frac{3}{8}$ thk	Access door knobs		N16-K-700310 -997‡	1; SA:7304	SA:7304	E-113, E-118	2				
E-114	Knob: round black bakelite; de- signed to accommodate round shaft 0.250" diam $w/\%_6$ " deep shaft hole, fastened w/set screws; cadmium plated brass insert; scored line on clear vinylite dial pointer; $2^{23}\%''$ lg $\times 2''$ diam $\times$ %'' thk; two #8-32 tapped mtg holes; one located at 6 o'clock and one at 9 o'clock	Tuning control knob and pointer			1; SA:8879	SA:8879	E-114	1				
E-115	Knob: round black bakelite; de- signed to accommodate round shaft 0.375" diam $w/9_{16}$ " deep shaft hole, fastened w/set screws; cadmium plated brass insert; w/o markings; 2" diam $\times 27_{52}$ " thk; two #8-32 tapped mtg holes, one located at 6 o'clock and one at 9 o'clock	Deviation control knob			1; SA:8889	SA:8889	E-115	1	-			
E-116	Knob: round black bakelite; de- signed to accommodate round shaft 0.250" diam $W/_{16}$ " deep shaft hole, fastened w/set screws; cadmium plated brass insert; w/o markings; 2" diam $\times 27_{52}$ " thk; two #8-32 tapped mtg holes, one located at 6 o'clock and one at 9 o'clock	trol knob			1; SA:8895	SA:8895	E-116, E-117	2				
E-117	Same as E-116	Output tuning knob										
E-118	Same as E-113	Control knob					1					

ORIGINAL	E-119	Oven, crystal: for 6 crystal units in 3 crystal holders type HC-1/U or in 3 crystal holders type HC-6/U; 70°C oven temp $\pm 1°$ C tolerance; operates on 115/230 v, 50/60 cycles, single phase, 305 watts; built-in thermometer w/0°C to 100°C range; 9 double ended stud type term on back of oven; alumi- num case, 10 <sup>13</sup> / <sub>16</sub> " lg $\times$ 7 $\frac{7}{8}$ " wd $\times$ 6 <sup>25</sup> / <sub>64</sub> " h; eight 0.218" diam mtg holes on irregularly spaced mtg/c; holds 3 of 1 type crystal at one time only; includes Z-106, XY-101 thru XY-106, O-140, O-141, O-142, O-137, O-138, O-139, S-110, HR- 101 thru HR-104, O-181, O-182, O-183, O-185, TB-101	Crystal oven		+	1; SA:8877	SA:8877	E-119	1		PARTS LIST
	E-120	Insulator, standoff: grade L-4 white ceramic; glazed surface; cylindrical pillar shape MBCA ref dwg group 9; item code no 20; C-3%", D-14", T-#6-32 tap, L-1 <sup>15</sup> / <sub>16</sub> "; single #6-32 tapped mtg hole in base of pillar	sulator			46	B837-1	E-120	1		кү-58
	E-121	Cap, tube: grid-plate style 9, MBCA ref dwg group 37; beryllium copper grip w/ceramic cap; grip tinned, cap glazed finished; $1\frac{1}{8}''$ lg $\times \frac{5}{8}''$ wd $\times \frac{17}{22}''$ h; ceramic insulation; single cap type term; 0.369'' max jaw opening; used as electron tube contact clip	V-112 plate cap grip		N17-C-800646 -151	1; SA:91	SA:91	E-121	1		NAVSHIPS 91543 -58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
	E-122†	Blister assembly: multiconnector; consists of 2 rectangular compart- ments electrically connected by 2 cables and containing various re- ceptacle connectors peculiar to National Company, Inc. part/dwg SA:7285; each compartment 1014'' lg × 43%'' wd × 43%'' d; mtd by 4 captive thumb nuts, 2 on each compartment spaced diagonally on 834'' × 11%'' mtg/c; marked: keyer output, freq meter, RF ext oscillator, FM audio, Keyline, AC power; includes J-101, J-102, J-103, J-105, J-106, J-109, J-110, J-111, O-186 thru O-190, O-143, O-161	Blister assembly MARKed, Photo INPUT INCLUSES J-113		+	1; SA:7285	SA:7285	E-122	1		/SRT
			1	FL	JSES	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				·····	m
œ	F-101	Fuse, cartridge: 8 amp, 250 volt; continuous 110%, blows within 60 minutes at 135%; ferrule type,	1	(-28032-8)	N17-F-16302 -160	76	F135-17	F-101, F-102, F-104, F-105	4		Section 119_F-1
Ē	‡	Supplied on KY-75/SRT only Not furnished as a maintenance part	If failure occurs, do	not request replacer	nent unless the ite	m cannot be	repaired or fal	pricated.			10 <sup>1</sup> 00

**8** 

# TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Section F-101–I-10

		PARTS							R	EQ	JIP. PAR	rs
				STANDARD NAVY	MFGR.	CON-		101	KY-5	8/GRT	KY -7	5 /SRT
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION	TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	BOX	QUAN.	BOX	QUAN.
		VA	FUSES (a	ontinued)	·							
F-101 (cont)	$\frac{1}{4}''$ lg $\times \frac{1}{4}''$ diam; glass body; one time; visual inspection of fuse wire continuity thru glass tube enclosure; $1\frac{1}{4}''$ lg $\times \frac{1}{4}''$ diam											
F-102	Same as F-101	AC line fuse										
F-103	Fuse, cartridge: $\frac{1}{2}$ amp, 250 volt; continuous 110%, blows within 60 minutes at 135%; ferrule type $\frac{1}{4}''$ lg $\times$ $\frac{1}{4}''$ diam; glass body; one time; visual inspection of fuse wire continuity thru glass tube enclo- sure; $\frac{1}{4}''$ lg $\times$ $\frac{1}{4}''$ diam	B+ fuse	(-28032-1/2)	N17-F-16302-60	76	F135-13	F-103, F-106	2				
F-104	Same as F-101	F-101 spare										
F-105	Same as F-101	F-102 spare										
F-106	Same as F-103	F-103 spare										
			HAR	DWARE			1		I			
H-101	Wrench: allen set screw; $\frac{5}{64''}$ across flats; $1^{61}/_{64''} \times 1^{1}/_{16''}$ o/a; cadmium plated steel; L-shaped hexagonal metal rod; for #8 allen set screw	Allen wrench		N41-W-2446	1: F131-7	F131-7	H-101	1				
H-102	Bolt, machine: brass, nickel plated; rd head w/Phillips head drive; flat point; #10-32 NFT class 2 fit, $1\frac{1}{2}$ " lg	Supplementary blister mtg screws		‡	1 ; G965-20	G965-20	H-102	4				
			INDICATI		1	1	I		·			
I-101	Lamp, incandescent: 6-8 v, 0.15 amp; miniature bayonet base MBCA ref dwg group 7, $T-3\frac{1}{4}$ bulb, clear; brown bead color; single CR filament; $1\frac{3}{8}$ " max o/a height; any burning position	Oven indicator	TB-14	G17-L-6297	18	F136-6	I-101, I-102, I-103	3				
I-102	Same as I-101	Plate indicator										
I-103	Same as I-101	Power indicator										

		· · ·	٠JA	CKS									
J-101	Connector, receptacle: 3 round male contacts; polarized; straight; $2\%_2''$ lg $\times 1\%_6''$ wd $\times 1\%_6''$ h; excl protruding contacts; cylindrical shaped aluminum body w/clear lacquer finish; molded phenolic insert; $2\%_2''$ diam cable opening; four 0.120'' diam mtg holes, $5\%_4''$ lg, $2\%_2'''$ c to c; $7\%''$ -20 thrd cou- pling; AN-C-591 spec; part of E-101 or E-122	Key line connector	AN 3102-14S-1P	N17-C-72604 -1338	128	P604-1	J-101, J-102 J-11 3	m					
J-102	Same as J-101; part of E-101 or E-122	Audio Freq meter connector											
J-103	Connector, receptacle: 3 flat male contacts; polarized; straight; $2.312'' \lg \times 1.750'' wd; 1.125'' h;$ 10 amps, 250 v; steel plated cylin- drical body; locking type; molded black bakelite insert; two 0.156'' diam mtg holes on 1.937'' mtg/c; flush base; part of E-101 or E-122	AC power connector		N17-C-73471 -6417	93; 7556G	P615-1	J-103	1					KY
J-104	Not used												58
J-105	Connector receptacle: 20 round female contacts and 3 coaxial male contacts; straight type; $3\frac{3}{6}''$ lg × $1\frac{37}{64}''$ wd × $1\frac{11}{16}''$ h; 8 amp, 250 v; aluminum alloy rec- tangular shaped body w/tin plate and clear lacquer finish; mela- mine "G" insert; four 0.144" diam mtg holes, $\frac{5}{22}''$ lg, on 1" × 2.875" mtg/c; coax, solid connec- tors and associated hardware silver plated; $\frac{1}{16}''$ raised charac- ters; adapter bushing furnished to accommodate RG-59/U cable in each coaxial fitting; part of E-101 or E-122	receptacle			339	P645-1	J-105	1	1	1	1	1	KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
J-106	Connector, receptacle: 20 round female contacts; straight type; $3\frac{3}{8}''$ lg × $1\frac{37}{64}''$ wd × $1\frac{11}{16}''$ h; 8 amps, 250 v; aluminum alloy rectangular shaped body w/tin plate and clear lacquer finish; melamine "G" insert; four 0.144" diam mtg holes, $\frac{5}{22}''$ lg, on 1" × 2.875" mtg/c; connectors and as- sociated hardware silver plated; $\frac{1}{6}''$ raised characters; part of E-101 or E-122; Same as J-105 less the three coaxial connectors	receptacle		(For replace ment use J-105 by removing coaxial con- nectors)	339	P645-2	J-106	1					1-L
J-107	Not used												01-
	Not used							I I		1			1.1

ထို

# TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Section J-109A-J-

NAVSHIPS 91543 -58/GRT and KY-75/S

PARTS LIST

				PARTS						R		UIP. PARI	ſS
	SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	STANDARD NAVY AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION	CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INYOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	KY-5	8 /GRT NYNO	KY-7 XOg	5 /SRT NYNO
				JACKS	(continued)								
	J-109A	Connector, receptacle: single round female contact; straight type; $1^{9}_{22}''$ lg $\times 1''$ wd $\times 1''$ h; excl protruding contacts; round silver plated steel body; molded phe- nolic insert; four 0.125'' diam mtg holes on 0.719'' mtg/c; $5'_{8}''$ -24 thrd coupling; part of E-101 or E-122	Ext Ose con- nector	SO-239 (-49194)	N17-C-73108 -5890‡	262	P506-1	J-109, J-110, J-111	3				
J	I-109B	Shell, electrical connector: brass, silver plate finish; rectangular base w/cylindrical hood shape; $1'' \lg \times 1'' \operatorname{vd} \times \frac{3}{4}'' \operatorname{dp}$ ; four $\frac{1}{8}''$ diam mtg holes on $\frac{23}{32}'' \times \frac{23}{32}''$ mtg/c; used as inner hood on receptacle connector	hood			1; H969-1	H969-1	J-109B J-110B J-111B	3				
	f-109C	Shell, electrical connector: brass, silver plate finish; rectangular base w/cylindrical hood shape; 1" $\lg \times 1$ " wd $\times \frac{7}{6}$ " dp; four $\frac{1}{8}$ " diam mtg holes on $\frac{23}{22}$ " $\times \frac{23}{22}$ " mtg/c; used as outer hood on receptacle connector	J-109 outer hood			1; H969-2	H969-2	J-109C J-110C J-111C	3				
J	-110	Same as J-109A; part of E-101 or E-122	RF Freq meter connector										
J	-110B	Same as J-109B	J-110 inner hood	- - 									
	-110C	Same as J-109C	J-110 outer hood										
	-111	Same as J-109A; part of E-101 or E-122	Keyer output connector										
J	-111B	Same as J-109B	J-111 inner hood										
J	-111C	Same as J-109C	J-111 outer hood										
J	I-112	Jack, telephone: for 2 conductor plug; 0.250" diam $\times$ 1.00" lg shank; contact arrangement J1-A; MBCA ref dwg group 4; 1.271" lg $\times$ 1.00" wd $\times$ 0.750" h; requires $\frac{3}{8}$ "-32 thd bushing, $\frac{5}{16}$ " lg; hex nut and washer mtg accessory; JAN-J-641 spec	jack		N1 <b>7-J-3</b> 9248 -4423	5	H464-2	J-112	1				
	J-113	Sent to J-101	Photo input	ſ	,	1			1	1			

ORIGINAL

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		RELAYS								r-	
K-101	Relay, armature: single-pole single throw; normally open; single break; AC-DC; 300 VDC, 100 ma contact rating; 1 inductive wind- ing; 115 VAC, AC; 2 term on con- tact; 2 term on coil; vacuum impregnated for high humidity; $2\frac{1}{6}$ lg $\times 1\frac{1}{2}$ wd $\times 1\frac{1}{2}$ d; mtd by means of 2 mtg posts $\frac{3}{6}$ high w/tapped 6-32 thread, mtg posts $1\frac{3}{8}$ c to c	B minus relay	N17-461		1302	P610-1	K-101	1				
			INDUCTORS	) 			p					
L-101	Choke, RF: 75 ma current rating; grid lead RF choke; for use at audio frequencies; cylindrical shape; $1^{15}/_{6}$ " lg $\times \frac{9}{6}$ " dia, excl term; 2 solder lug term located one on each end of coil form	Audio filter		1 5	1; SA:4884	SA:4884	L-101, L-102	2	1	1	1	1
L-102	Same as L-101	Audio filter										
L-103	Coil, RF: 205 microhenries over- all, 10 microhenries to tap, at 1000 cycles; 2.89 ohms overall, 0.52 ohms to tap, DC resistance; 99 turns total, 20 turns to tap; #10/41 ESN copper conductor, 1 pie universal wnd; tapped at 20 turns; unshielded; glass melamine form; air core; coil $^{29}\%''$ diam $\times ^{3}\%''$ lg; coil form $2^{13}\%''$ lg $\times \frac{1}{2}''$ diam; 3 wire pigtail type term located on universal wnd coil; mts between 2 plates of can; part of Z-106				1 ; SA :8886	SA:8886	L-103	1	1	1	1	1
L-104	Coil, RF: 117 microhenries over- all, 43 microhenries to tap at 1000 cycles; 1.24 ohms overall, 1.12 ohms to tap, DC resistance; 90 turns total, 45 turns to tap; #10/41 ESN copper conductor; 1 winding, 2 pie universal wnd; tapped at 45 turns; glass melamine form; air core; coil $^{23}_{52}''$ diam $\times \frac{7}{16}''$ lg; coil form $2^{13}_{56}''$ lg $\times \frac{1}{2}''$ diam; 3 wire pigtail term, located on universal wnd coil; mts between 2 mtg plates of can; part of Z-105	Z-105 tuning		1 S	1 ; SA :8885	SA:8885	L-104	1	1	1	1	1
L-105	Choke, RF: 125 ma current rating; cylindrical shape; $1^{15}/_{16}''$ lg $\times \frac{1}{2}''$ diam excl term; 2 solder lug term located one on each end of coil form	V-110 cathode lead			l; 3A:35A	SA:35A	L-105	1	1	1	1	1

\*\*
## TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

			PARTS						R		UIP. R PARI	s
			JAN AND	STANDARD NAVY	MFGR.	CON- TRACTOR	ALL	тот.	KY-58	/GRT	KY-7	/SRT
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	(NAVY TYPE) NO.	AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION	DRAW- ING & PART NO.	SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	NO. PER EQ.	вох	QUAN.	вох	QUAN.
		\$	INDUCTORS	(continued)		······································						
L-106	Coil, RF: 5.45 microhenries at 1000 cyclės, 0.148 ohms DC re- sistance; 17 turns of #26AWG enamel coated copper conductor; single winding, single layer wound; untapped, unshielded; ceramic form w/powdered iron core; coil $1^{9}\%''$ lg $\times 2^{5}\%''$ dia; excl term; coil form $1^{9}\%''$ lg $\times 3^{4}$ '' dia; adjustable iron core tuning w/screw-driver adjust- ment located on bottom of coil form; 2 solder lug term located one on each end; one $\frac{1}{4}$ ''-32 thrd mtg bushing, $1^{1}\%'$ lg, through bottom of coil form				1; SA:8864	SA:8864	L-106	1				
L-107	Coil, RF: 23.7 microhenries at 1000 cycles, 0.316 ohms DC re- sistance; 36 turns of #26AWG enamel coated copper conductor; single winding, single layer wound; untapped, unshielded; ceramicform w/powdered iron core; coil $\frac{5}{5}$ ?" $\lg \times \frac{25}{32}$ " dia; coil form $1\frac{1}{16}$ " $\lg \times \frac{34}{4}$ " diam; adjustable iron core tuning w/screwdriver adjust- ment located on bottom of coil form; 2 solder lug term, located one on each end; one $\frac{1}{4}$ "-32 thrd mtg bushing, $\frac{1}{16}$ " lg, through bottom of coil form	Crystal osc tank, 1.8-3.5 mcs			1; SA:8865	SA:8865	L-107	1				
L-108	Coil, RF: 102 microhenries at 1000 cycles, 1.825 ohms DC resistance; 52 turns of #10/41 litz wire each strand of wire enamel covered w/all 10 strands having a single nylon covering; single winding, universal wound; untapped, un- shielded; ceramic form, w/pow- dered iron core; coil $\frac{1}{6}$ " lg $\times$ 1" dia; coil form 1%6" lg $\times$ 34" dia; adjustable iron core tuning w/ screwdriver adjustment located on bottom of coil form; 2 solder lug term, located one on each end; one $\frac{1}{4}$ "-32 thrd mtg bushing, $\frac{1}{6}$ " lg, through bottom of coil form	Crystal osc tank, 1.0-1.8 mcs			1; SA:8866	SA:8866	L-108	1				

ORI	L-109	Not used											PAR
ORIGINAL	L-110 L-111	Not used											PARTS LIST
F	L-112	Not used											
	L-113	Coil, RF: 4.5 microhenries at 1000 cycles, 0.13 ohms DC resistance; 15 turns #26AWG enamel coated copper conductor; single winding, single layer wound; untapped, un- shielded; ceramic form; w/pow- dered iron core; coil $\frac{9}{6}$ lg $\times \frac{25}{22}$ diam; coil form $1\frac{9}{6}$ lg $\times \frac{34}{4}$ diam; adjustable iron core w/screw- driver adjustment located on bottom of coil form; 2 solder lug term, located one on each end; one $\frac{14}{16}$ lg, through bottom of coil form	Buffer tank, 3.5-6.7 mcs	-	1; SA:8870	SA:8870	L-113	1	1	1	1	1	
	L-114	Coil, RF: 17.1 microhenries at 1000 cycles, 0.256 ohms DC re- sistance; 28 turns #26 enamel coated copper conductor; single winding; single layer wound; un- tapped, unshielded; ceramic form w/powdered iron core; coil $\frac{1}{2''}$ lg $\times {}^{25}_{22''}$ dia; coil form ${}^{19}_{16''}$ lg $\times {}^{34''}_{2}$ dia; adjustable iron core w/screw driver adjustment located on bottom of coil form; 2 solder lug term located one on each end; one ${}^{14''}_{4''}$ -32 thrd mtg bushing through bottom of coil form	Buffer tank, 1.8-3.5 mcs		1; SA:8871	SA:8871	L-114	1	1	1	1	1	NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
	L-115	Coil, RF: 67 microhenries at 1000 cycles, 1.345 ohms DC resistance; 41 turns #10/41 litz wire, each strand enamel coated w/all 10 strands having a single nylon covering; single winding, universal wound; untapped, unshielded; cer- amic form, w/powdered iron core; coil $\frac{1}{16}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{16}$ " dia; coil form $1^{9}$ f6" lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " dia; adjustable iron core tuning w/serewdriver adjust- ment located on bottom of coil form; 2 solder lug term located one on each end; one $\frac{1}{4}$ "-32 thrd mtg bushing through bottom of coil form	Buffer tank, 1.0-1.8 mcs		1; SA:8872	SA:8872	L-115	1	1	1	1	1	
8-17	L-116	Coil, RF: 5.0 mh at 1000 cycles, 20 ohms DC resistance, 300 ma; 1020 turns, #32 AWG, enamel single nylon covered copper con- ductor; 1 winding, 3 pie universal wnd; untapped, unshielded; ce-	RF Filter		1; SA:4014	SA:4014	L-116	1	1	1	1	1	Section 8 109-L-116

# TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

r 00

			PARTS						R		UIP. PAR	rs
				STANDARD NAVY	MFGR.	CON-				/GRT	KY-7	5/SRT
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION	TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	BOX	QUAN.	BOX	QUAN.
			INDUCTOR	S (continued)				·				
-116 cont)	ramic form and core; coil $^{25}_{52'}$ dia $\times \frac{3}{4''}$ lg o/a; coil form $^{15}_{16''}$ lg $\times \frac{3}{8''}$ OD; 2 cotter pin type terminations, located one at each end; single #6-32 tapped mtg hole, $^{3}_{8''}$ dp, located in base of coil form; RF choke coil											
-117	Choke, RF: plate lead RF choke; for use w/frequencies of 1-7 mcs; cylindrical shape; $\frac{3}{4}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{46}$ " dia, excl term; 2 wire pigtail type term located on each end of coil form	V-112 plate lead			1; SA:6073	SA:6073	L-117	1	1	1	1	1
-118	Coil, RF: 78 microhenries at 1000 cycles 0.052 ohms DC resistance; 17 turns #20 AWG enamel coated copper conductor; single winding, single layer wound; untapped, unshielded; ceramic form w/pow-dered iron core; coil $^{19}_{52}$ " lg $\times 1^{1}_{16}$ " dia; coil form $^{13}_{67}$ " lg $\times 1^{7}$ dia; adjustable iron core tuning w/screw-driver adjustment located on bottom of coil form; 2 solder lug term, located one on each end; one $\frac{1}{4}$ "-32 thrd mtg bushing, $\frac{1}{16}$ " lg, through bottom of coil form	Output tank, 3.5-6.7 mes			1; SA:8873	SA:8873	L-118	1	1	1	1	1
-119	Coil, RF: 32 microhenries at 1000 cycles, 0.414 ohms DC resistance; 34 turns #26 AWG enamel coated copper conductor; single winding, single layer wound; center tapped; unshielded; ceramic form w/pow- dered iron core; coil $\frac{19}{52}$ " lg $\times 1\frac{1}{52}$ " dia; coil form $1\frac{3}{16}$ " lg $\times 1$ " dia; ad- justable iron core tuning w/screw- driver adjustment located on top of coil form; 3 solder lug term, located one on bottom and 2 on top end of coil form; one $\frac{1}{4}$ "-32 thrd mtg bushing, $\frac{11}{16}$ " lg, through bottom of coil form	Output tank, 1.8-3.5 mcs			1; SA:8874	SA:8874	L-119	1	1	1	1	1
120	Coil, RF: 108 microhenries at 1000 cycles, 0.738 ohms DC resistance;	Output tank, 1.0-1.8 mcs			1; SA:8875	SA:8875	L-120	1	1	1	1	1

ORIGINAL

ORIGINAL	L-120 (cont)	56 turns #10/41 litz wire, each strand enamel coated, all ten strands having a single nylon cover- ing; single winding, 2 pie universal wound; tapped at 32 turns; un- shielded; ceramic form w/pow- dered iron core; coil $\frac{1}{2}$ " lg $\times 1\frac{1}{2}$ " dia; coil form $1^{13}$ /6" lg $\times 1$ " dia; ad- justable iron core tuning w/screw- driver adjustment located on top of coil form; 3 solder lug term, located one on bottom, 2 on top end of coil form; one $\frac{1}{4}$ "-32 thrd mtg bushing, $\frac{1}{16}$ " lg through bot- tom of coil form												PARTS LIST
	L-121	Coil, RF: 24 turns #14 AWG silver plated copper conductor; single winding, single layer wound, un- tapped, unshielded; ceramic form w/air core; coil $2^{61}_{44}$ " lg $\times 15_{22}$ " OD; $6^{1}_{44}$ " lg min $\times 33_{4}$ " wd $\times 35_{66}$ " h excl extension shaft; sliding roller contact tuning w/ex- tension shaft adjustment, shaft mtd in center of coil form, contact mtd along upper rim of coil; 8 stud type term, located 4 at each end, on ceramic mtg plate; 2 ce- ramic mtg plates, supported by four $6^{1}_{4}$ " lg, $\frac{1}{8}$ "-32 thrd stud bolts on $3.187$ " $\times 2.695$ " mtg/c, attached to 2 mtg brackets at base of plates by the 2 lower sup- porting stud bolts	Output Level control			738	P606-1	L-121	1					NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
	L-122	Reactor: filter choke; 1 section; 8 henries inductance; 125 ohms DC resistance; 250 ma DC current rating; 2500 VDC test voltage; hermetically sealed metal case; $5.062''$ lg $\times 3.500''$ wd $\times 5.125''$ h, excl term; mts by four $0.218''$ dia mtg holes on $4.562'' \times 2.250''$ mtg/c; 2 stud type term located on bottom of case	Filter choke	(-302510)	N16-R-29190 -2218	332	H391-1	L-122, L-123	2	1	1	1	1	13 75/SRT
8-19	L-123 L-124	Same as L-122 Reactor: RF filter choke; 1 section; 0.6 mh, no DC rating; 0.5 ohms DC resistance; 1000 V rms test voltage; $1^{3}/_{22}$ " lg excl tuning slug $\times 1^{7}/_{6}$ " diam; two #4-40 tapped mtg holes on 0.427" diam circle of brass nickel plated plug held to coil form thru three #40-40 tapped mtg holes $\frac{5}{22}$ " dp set 120° apart; 2 solder lug term, located one on each end of coil form; sprayed w/moisture and fungus resistant lacquer	Filter choke A.C. line filter			1; SA:8892	SA:8892	L-124, L-125	2	1	1	1	1	Section 8 L-120–L-124

φ

#### TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

- ∞



			MECHANIC	CAL PARTS					 ] ]
O-101	Retainer, electron tube: type 302 stainless steel; 1 clip type fastening device; $1\frac{1}{4}$ " ID $\times \frac{17}{22}$ " h; mtd by mtg bracket w/1 hole for #6-32 screw located 60 deg from tension loop, 115 deg from hinge on $\frac{27}{22}$ " radius; designed to hold mat'l of $1\frac{1}{4}$ " max dia	V-101 clamp		N16-C-300442 -625	296	F-892-7	O-101, O-102, O-103, O-104, O-105, O-106, O-107, O-108, O-109	9	PARIS LISI
0-102	Same as O-101	V-102 clamp							
O-103	Same as O-101	V-104 clamp							
O-104	Same as O-101	V-105 clamp							
O-105	Same as O-101	V-107 clamp							
O-106	Same as O-101	V-108 clamp							
O-107	Same as O-101	V-109 clamp							
0-108	Same as O-101	V-110 clamp							~
O-109	Same as O-101	V-111 clamp							Y-58
O-110	Retainer, electron tube: type 302 stainless steel: 1 clip type fastening device; $136''$ ID $\times 34''$ h; mtd by mtg bracket w/1 hole for #6-32 screw located 60 deg from tension loop, 120 deg from hinge on $2952''$ radius; designed to hold mat'l of 138'' max dia	V-112 clamp		N16-C-300798 -866	296	F892-2	O-110,O-134	2	NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
0-111	Retainer, electron tube: type 302 stainless steel; 1 clip type fastening device; $1\frac{5}{32}''$ ID $\times \frac{3}{4}''$ h; mtd by mtg bracket w/1 hole for #6-32 screw located 65 deg from tension loop, 100 deg from hinge on $5\frac{1}{4}''$ radius; designed to hold mat'l of $1\frac{5}{22}''$ max dia	V-113 clamp		N16-C-300798 -452	296	F892-3	O-111, O-112, O-113	3	/SRT
0-112	Same as O-111	V-114 clamp							
0-113	Same as O-111	V-115 clamp							
0-114	Retainer, electron tube: type 302 stainless steel; 1 clip type fastening device; $1\frac{1}{4}$ " ID $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " h; mtd by mtg bracket w/1 hole for #6-32 screw, located 60 deg from tension loop, 115 deg from hinge, on $2\frac{7}{42}$ " radius; designed to hold material $1\frac{1}{4}$ " max dia	V-103 clamp		N16-C-300798 -621	296	F892-1	O-114, O-115, O-116	3	Sect 0-101-
0-115	Same as O-114	V-106 clamp							- 0- ition
t	Not furnished as a maintenance part.	If failure occurs, do not :	request replacen	ent unless the iter	ı n cannot be	repaired or fa	bricated.		 115

## TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

°11 °5 8

			PARTS						R	EQ	UIP. PAR	rs 5/srt
				STANDARD NAVY	MFGR.	CON-		TOT	KY-5	8/GRT	KY-7	5/SRT
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION	TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	BOX	QUAN.	BOX	QUAN.
		•	MECHANICAL P	ARTS (continued)				<u> </u>	L		1	L
D <b>-</b> 116	Same as O-114	R-203 clamp										
0-117	Detent, switch: provisions for 3 switch positions; non-adjustable stops; $1^{11}/6''$ lg $\times 1^{23}/4''$ wd $\times 1^{7}/8''$ h; mts by $3'8''$ lg, $3'8''-32$ bushing w/non-turn device located $1'/32''$ from center at 9 o'clock	Freq Range sw detent			111	L636-1	0-117	1				
0-118	Bushing: bearing for extension shaft support; leaded brass, nickel plated; male; $\frac{1}{2}''$ across flats of hex end $\times \frac{35}{64}'' \text{ lg} \times 0.252''$ ID, w/ $\frac{3}{64}''$ shoulder and 0.435''-27 thread	Tuning control shaft bushing		· ‡	1; B713-34	B713-34	0-118, 0-203	2				
D-119	Mounting: aluminum; caustic etch finish w/water dip lacquer; mts air inductor by four 0.156" dia mtg holes on mtg ctrs of: 3.187", 1.125" and 1.875"; mts to chassis w/three 0.156" dia mtg holes on irregularly spaced mtg/c; "L" shaped, $3^{13}$ /6" lg $\times 2^{3}$ /4" h $\times 0.091$ " thk; for mtg air inductor	L-121 mtg		N16-M-61518 -6457‡	1; P630-1	P630-1	O-119	1				
O-120	Shaft: rotary switch extension shaft; cadmium plated brass; round w/2 flatted faces; $9\frac{1}{4}''$ lg $\times 0.248''$ dia $\times 0.185''$ across flats	Freq Range sw ext shaft		N16-S-21048 -7974‡	1; M979-14	M979-14	O-120	1				
0-121	Shaft: rotary switch extension; cadmium plated brass; round w/2 flatted faces; $3'' \lg \times 0.248''$ dia $\times 0.185''$ across flats	Freq Range sw ext shaft		N16-S-20980 -3492‡	1; M979-16	M979-16	0-121	1				
0-122	Coupling, flexible: tuning shaft coupling; assembly consists of 2 hubs and disc assemblies, sepa- rated by $\frac{1}{4}$ " grade L-4 ceramic insulator, w/four $\frac{5}{6}$ " diam brass spacers; brass hub, phosphor bronze disc, nickel plated; $-1\frac{3}{8}$ " dia $\times 1\frac{1}{8}$ " lg o/a; hubs bored for 0.250" dia shaft and mtd by four #8-32 allen-head set screws				1; SA:8887- 2	SA:8887-2	O-122, O-124, O-125,O-126	4				

1   PARTS LIST				1 NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT 1	1	1			2	<b>o</b>	Section 0-123-0-
O-123				O-127	O-128	O-129	O-130, O-131			0-132, 0-133	0-132, 0-133
SA:8887-1				SA:8774	P626-1	P627-1	L896-1			L896-3	L896-3
1; SA:8887- 1				1; SA:8774	1; P626-1	1366	14			14	14
(For replace- ment use O-122 by reversing hubs)					‡	N17-G-161530 -484‡	N16-M-60958 -3591			N16-M-60906 -8018	
							CPO6SA4		CDOCCLC	CPO6SA6	CPU6SA6
Output Level control shaft coupling	Tuning control shaft coupling	Output Tuning control shaft coupling	Freq Range sw shaft coupling	Freq Range sw ext shaft coupling	Thermometer mtg	Thermometer gasket	C-102 mtg	C-106 mtg	CI 100	C-103 mtg	C-103 mtg
Coupling, flexible: tuning shaft coupling; assembly consists of 2 hubs and disc assemblies, sepa- rated by $\frac{1}{4}$ " grade L-4 ceramic insulator, w/four $\frac{5}{16}$ " diam brass spacers; brass hub, phosphor bronze disc, nickel plated; $1\frac{3}{8}$ " dia $\times 1\frac{1}{4}$ " lg o/a; hubs bored for 0.250" dia shaft and mtd by four #8-32 allen-head set screws	Same as O-122	Same as O-122	Same as O-122	Coupling, flexible: tuning shaft coupling; assembly consists of 2 hubs and spiders w/1 disc, riveted together; brass; $11_{16}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ dia $\times$ 0.541'' lg o/a; hubs bored for 0.250'' dia shaft and mtd by four #8-32 allen set screws	Bezel: brass w/black enamel finish; 2.375" OD $\times$ 1.531" ID $\times$ 0.312" h; three 0.125" dia mtg holes on 1.046" radius spaced 120° apart	Gasket: shock mtg; neoprene; single hole; round, $1.750''$ OD $\times 1.531''$ ID $\times \frac{3}{22}''$ thk	Clamp, electrical: aluminum w/caustic etch and water dip lacquer finish; two #6-32 spade- bolt fasteners; $1^{9}/_{6}''$ lg × $4^{9}/_{4}''$ max wd × $1^{15}/_{6}''$ h; mtd by two #6-32 spadebolts w/thrd $\frac{1}{2}''$ min lg on $1^{9}/_{16}''$ mtg/c; JAN-C-25 spec	Same as O-130		Clamp, electrical: aluminum w/caustic etch and water dip lacquer finish; two #6-32 spade- bolts fasteners; $19_{16}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ lg $\times 4_{24}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ max wd $\times 2^{11}_{16}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ h; mtd by two #6-32 spadebolts w/thrd $\frac{1}{2}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ min lg on $1_{16}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ mtg/c; JAN-C-25 spec	w/caustic etch and water dip lacquer finish; two #6-32 spade- bolts fasteners; $1\%'_{6}$ lg $\times 4\%'_{4}$ max wd $\times 2^{11}\%'_{6}$ h; mtd by two #6-32 spadebolts w/thrd $\frac{1}{2}$ min
O-123	<b>Ò-12</b> 4	O-125	O-126	O-127	0-128	O-129	O-130	0-131	0.100	0-132	0-132 0-133
ORIGINAL											œ

### TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Section 0-135-0-1

NAVSHIPS 91543

PARTS LIST

			PARTS						R		UIP. PART	rs
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	STANDARD NAVY AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG - NATION	CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	КҮ-5 Х09	8 /GRT .NYNO	KY-7 X Og	S S/SRT V V N O
	1		MECHANICAL	PARTS (continued)	1	1		L	L			
0-135	Clamp, electrical: aluminum w/caustic etch and water dip lacquer finish; two #6-32 spade- bolt fasteners; $19_{16}^{\prime\prime}$ lg $\times$ $49_{64}^{\prime\prime}$ wd $\times$ $15_{16}^{\prime\prime}$ h; mtd by two #6-32 spade- bolts w/thrd $1_{2}^{\prime\prime}$ min lg on $19_{16}^{\prime\prime}$ mtg/c; JAN-C-25 spec	C-118 mtg	CPO6SA2	N16-M-60958 -3571	14	L896-5	O-135	1				
O-136	Plate, bearing: outer bearing; cad- mium plated brass; rectangular shape; w/top end rounded; $1\frac{1}{2}''$ h $\times \frac{5}{8}''$ wd $\times \frac{15}{4}''$ thk; two $\frac{5}{2}''$ $\times \frac{1}{2}''$ mtg slots on $\frac{1}{2}''$ mtg/c; supports a $\frac{1}{2}''$ dia brass bearing w/0.251'' dia shaft hole	Output Level control shaft bearing		<b>‡</b>	1; SA:8755	SA:8755	O-136	1				
O-137	Retainer, crystal holder: brass; dull nickel finish; designed to retain crystal socket and clamp; $1.155'' \text{ lg} \times \frac{1}{2}'' \text{ wd} \times \frac{5}{16}'' \text{ h}$ ; mtd by one $0.125''$ dia hole; used as crystal socket base plate; part of E-119	XY-101 retainer		N16-R-501081 -117‡	1316	K689-1	O-137, O-138, O-139	3				
O-138	Same as O-137; part of E-119	XY-102 retainer										
O-139	Same as O-137; part of E-119	XY-103 retainer										
O-140	Clamp, electrical: brass dull nickel finish; pressure type fastener; $1\frac{1}{4}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ lg $\times$ 0.937" h $\times$ 0.050" thk; mts in 0.052" dia hole 1.093" apart; designed to hold crystal 0.937" h max; part of E-119	Y-101 clamp		N17-C-805751 -551‡	1; K690-1	K690-1	0-140, 0-141, 0-142	3				
O-141	Same as O-140; part of E-119	Y-102 clamp										
O-142	Same as O-140; part of E-119	Y-103 clamp										
O-143	Nut, plain knurled: brass w/dull nickel finish; knurled thumb drive w/30 TPI straight knurl; #10-32 NFT class 2 fit; 1" OD $\times$ 0.781" h; part of E-101 or E-122	Blister mtg nuts		‡	665	P648-1	O-143	4				
O-144	Screw, captive: knurled thumb drive w/screwdriver slot on head;	Front panel mtg screws			665	L610-1	O-144	12	1	2	1	2

ORIGINAL

ORIGINAL	O-144 (cont)	knurled thumb head; steel w/black nickel finish; #12-24 NC-2 thrd; $1\frac{1}{16}$ lg o/a, $\frac{1}{4}$ lg thrd, $\frac{5}{8}$ dia head; $\frac{5}{8}$ dia $\times \frac{5}{16}$ lg shoulder								PARTS
۴	O-145	Grommet: rubber; fits $\frac{1}{16}$ hole; $\frac{5}{16}$ ID $\times \frac{1}{6}$ groove width, $\frac{9}{22}$ o/a width $\times \frac{5}{8}$ OD	L-121 shock mts		‡	187	E923-11	O-145	3	LIST
	O-146	Plate, back: oven door plate backing; black masonite; $4''$ lg $\times 2''$ wd $\times \frac{1}{3}''$ thk; four $0.156''$ dia mtg holes on $2\frac{1}{4}'' \times 1\frac{1}{4}''$ mtg/c	Oven door plate backing		<b>‡</b>	68	Q659-1	O-146	1	
	O-147	Seal: door seal; sponge rubber; $4\frac{9}{6}$ lg $\times 2\frac{1}{2}$ wd $\times \frac{3}{3}$ thk; four $\frac{1}{4}$ dia (approx) mtg holes on $2\frac{1}{4}$ $\times \frac{1}{4}$ mtg/c	Oven door rubber seal		+	1366	P636-1	O-147	1	
	O-148*	Mounting: steel; gray enamel finish; holds 4 shock mts by means of bolts thru ${}^{13}\!_{22}$ '' dia holes on $151/_{2}$ '' $\times 14''$ mtg/c; sixteen 0.257'' mtg holes, four at each corner of plate, on $3{}^{3}\!_{8}$ '' $\times 2{}^{3}\!_{8}$ '' mtg/c; 14'' dia center hole cut out of plate; part of A-104	Mtg plate for casters		‡	238	P691-1	O-148	1	NA KY-58/GR
	O-149†	Clamp, electrical: aluminum alloy; sand blast w/clear lacquer finish; 2 bolt type pressure fastening device; $1\frac{5}{64}''$ lg $\times 1\frac{5}{16}''$ OD; mts by $\frac{3}{4}''$ -20 female thrd; designed to hold $\frac{1}{2}''$ dia cable; part of A-105	cable clamp	AN 3057-6	N17-C-781366 -251	339	Q675-2	O-149	4	NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
	O-150†	Ring, bonding: bonding ring for AN shell size 14 and 14S; tinned copper;round; $0.682''OD \times 0.557''$ ID; part of A-105	Bonding ring		N17-R-650211 -112	339	P145-3	O-150	4	3 SRT
	O-151 thru O-153	Not used								
	O-154	Shaft: extension shaft; cadmium plated steel; $8!_{16}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ lg $\times$ 0.250 $^{\prime\prime}$ dia	Output Level con- trol ext shaft		‡	1; D644-4	D644-4	O-154	1	
	O-155	Shaft: extension shaft; cadmium plated steel; $14\frac{1}{8}$ " lg $\times$ 0.250" dia	Output Tuning control ext shaft		‡	1; D644-5	D644-5	O-155	1	
	O-156	Shaft: extension shaft; cadmium plated steel; $2^{\prime\prime} \log \times 0.250^{\prime\prime}$ dia	Tuning control ext shaft		‡	1; D644-6	D644-6	O-156	1	
	O-157	Arm: latching arm; type 302 stainless steel; $45_{8}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ lg $\times \frac{9}{22}^{\prime\prime}$ wd $\times 1^{\prime\prime}$ h; one 0.312 <sup>''</sup> dia mtg hole; right hand latch arm	Chassis release latch (right side)			512	Q474-1	O-157	2	Sect 0-144-
8-25	† U	Jsed on KY-58/GRT only Jsed on KY-75/SRT only Not furnished as a maintenance part.	If failure occurs, do	not request replacen	nent unless the iter	m cannot be	repaired or fal	pricated.		-0-157

8

#### TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Section 0-158-0-1 N 0 EQUIP. PARTS **REPAIR PARTS** KY-58/GRT KY-75/SRT STANDARD 167 CON-NAVY MFGR. JAN AND TRACTOR ALL TOT. AND AND SYMBOL NAME OF PART AND (NAVY DRAW-SYMBOL NO. FUNCTION (SIGNAL MFGR'S. DESIG. DESCRIPTION TYPE) ING & DESIG. PER CORPS) QUAN. DESIG-QUAN. NO. PART INVOLVED EQ. STOCK NATION BOX BOX NO. NO. **MECHANICAL PARTS** (continued) 0-158 Arm: latching arm; type 302 stain-Chassis release 512Q474-2 0-158  $\mathbf{2}$ less steel;  $4\frac{5}{8}$ " lg  $\times$   $\frac{9}{22}$ " wd  $\times$  1" h; one 0.312" dia mtg hole; left latch (left side) hand latch arm O-159 Chassis release Spring: torsion type; for latching Q477-4 O-159  $\mathbf{2}$ 1 1 1 1 arm; 0.048" dia music wire, nickel latch tension Q477-4 plated;  $1\frac{1}{8}''$  lg  $\times$   $1\frac{1}{8}''$  wd  $\times$  0.048'' thk; right hand turns; spring (right side) KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT plain straight ends; 1/2" mtg hole O-160 Chassis release Spring: torsion type; for latching  $\mathbf{2}$ 1: Q477-3 O-160 1 1 1 1 NAVSHIPS 91543 arm; 0.048" dia music wire, nickel latch tension Q477-3 plated;  $1\frac{1}{8}$ " lg  $\times$   $1\frac{1}{8}$ " wd  $\times$  0.096" thk; left hand turns; spring (left side) plain straight ends; 1/2" mtg hole O-161 Ring, retainer: cadmium plated **Retaining rings** 289H602-10 0-161 8 beryllium copper; circular; 0.312''OD  $\times 0.028''$  wd  $\times 0.281''$  ID; part of E-101 or E-122 O-162 Handle: front panel; aluminum Front panel N16-H-150001 298P656-1 O-162 4 w/black alumite finish;  $4\frac{3}{6}$ " lg  $\times 1\frac{7}{6}$ " h  $\times \frac{3}{6}$ " dia; two #12-24 tapped mtg holes on 4" mtg/c handles -289‡ O-163 Output Level Bushing: bearing for drive shaft: ‡ Q672-1 O-163 1 steel; male;  ${}^{3}_{4}{}^{\prime\prime}$  across flats of hex end  $\times 0.531^{\prime\prime}$  lg  $\times 0.437^{\prime\prime}$  ID  $\times$ control shaft Q672-1 bushing 0.624" OD Bearing: bearing for gear drive; cadmium plated brass;  $^{11}/_{16}''$  lg O-164 O-198 bearing ‡ 344Q668-1 O-164 1  $\times \frac{3}{8}''$  across flats of hex  $\times 0.249''$ OD; one #8-32 tapped hole at hex end, ¼" d O-165 Ring, retainer: cadmium plated | Retaining ring 289H602-7 O-165  $\mathbf{5}$ beryllium copper; circular; 0.250" PARTS LIST  $OD \times 0.028'' \text{ wd} \times 0.225'' \text{ ID}$ O-166 ORIGINAL Shaft: latching shaft: cadmium | Control access İ 344P647-1 O-166 1 single #6-32 tapped hole  $\frac{5}{16}$  door latch shaft O-167 Washer, spring tension: round, U | Control access t 30J728-9 O-167 1 bend type; phosphor bronze; ead- door latch washer

O-167 (cont)	$ \begin{array}{ l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l$							PARTS
0-168	Latch: door latch; cadmium plated brass; circular; $\frac{3}{4}$ " OD $\times \frac{1}{6}$ " wd; single mtg hole $\frac{1}{4}$ " dia $\times \frac{3}{6}$ " wd across flats	Control access door latch	+ +	1; P646-1	P646-1	O-168	1	S LIST
O-169	Nut, round: round cap nut; stain- less steel; #10-32 inside thread; $0.281'' \lg \times \%'_{16}'' OD$	Chassis release latch pivot	‡	1372	Q475-1	O-169	4	
O <b>-170</b>	Not used							
O <b>-1</b> 71	Not used							
O-172	Not used							
0-173	Hinge: butt type; cadmium plated wrought steel; $2\frac{1}{2}$ " lg $\times 1^{11}\frac{1}{6}$ " wd; non-removable type pin; four $\frac{3}{22}$ " dia mtg holes on $1\frac{3}{4}$ " $\times 1\frac{3}{16}$ " mtg/c	Control access door hinge	N16-II-500001 -131‡	$^{1;}_{ m L551-2}$	L551-2	O-173	1	~
O-174	Spring: flat type; for door hinge; 0.032'' cadmium plated phosphor bronze; $2\frac{3}{8}''$ lg $\times$ $1\frac{1}{8}''$ wd $\times$ $0.32''$ thk; two $\frac{5}{22}''$ dia mtg holes on $1\frac{3}{4}''$ mtg/c; T-shaped	Control access door spring	‡	1; L615-1	L615-1	O-174	1	NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
O-175	Board: for writing surface; fixed type; black masonite; plain; $18\frac{1}{16}$ " $\lg \times 15\frac{3}{6}$ " wd $\times \frac{1}{8}$ " thk; rec- tangular shape	Cabinet top	ŧ	158	P699-1	O-175	1	NAVSHIPS 91543 3/GRT and KY-75
O-176*	Mount, vibration: cadmium plated steel; holds cabinet by center hole 1" $\lg \times 0.391$ " dia; four 0.257" dia mtg holes on $2\frac{1}{2}$ " $\times 2\frac{1}{2}$ " mtg/c; 45 lb. load, 3" sq $\times 1\frac{1}{2}$ " h; for mtg Frequency Shift Keyer cabinet; part of A-104	Cabinet shock mts	N17-M-75215 -9751	125	P682-1	O-176	4	13 75/SRT
0-177*	Caster: olive drab painted steel; $4\frac{1}{8}^{\prime\prime}$ lg $\times 3\frac{1}{8}^{\prime\prime}$ wd $\times 3^{15}\frac{6}{16}^{\prime\prime}$ h; four $\frac{5}{16}^{\prime\prime}$ dia mtg holes on $3\frac{3}{8}^{\prime\prime} \times 2\frac{3}{8}^{\prime\prime}$ mtg/c; part of A-104	Cabinet casters		1367	P690-I	O-177	4	
O-178	Mounting: cadmium plated steel; holds item by means of #8-32 screw; single 0.170" dia mtg hole; shock mts over rubber grommet; $\%_6$ " dia $\times \frac{1}{8}$ " max h; for mtg bracket	1	N16-B-750001 -523	8	H888-3	0-178	6	ę
O-179	Spring: flat type; for grounding contact; 0.020" phosphor bronze; $1^{23}_{32}$ " lg $\times \frac{1}{8}$ " wd $\times \frac{5}{16}$ " h; straight flat ends	trol shaft ground-	· +	24	K451-1	O-179	1	Section 4 -167-0-179

 $\mathbf{\omega}$ 

## TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

ဝု ထ

			PARTS						R		UIP. PARTS	
				STANDARD NAVY	MFGR.	CON-			KY -5	8/GRT	KY-75	/SRT
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION	TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	BOX	QUAN.	BOX	QUAN.
			MECHANICAL I	ARTS (continued)							4hu	
O-180	Nut, round: round cap nut; stain- less steel; #6-32 inside thread; 0.281" lg × 0.375" OD	Chassis release latch stop		‡	1372	Q476-1	O-180	4				
0-181	Asbestos: sheet form; for heat insulation; $6\frac{1}{2}$ " lg $\times$ $5\frac{5}{8}$ " wd $\times \frac{1}{4}$ " thk; high temperature ap- plication, maintained at a constant $70^{\circ}$ C; a $\frac{1}{2}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{8}$ " wd notch at one corner; part of E-119	Right side oven insulation		‡	1; P661-1	P661-1	O-181	1				:
O-182	Asbestos: sheet form; for heat insulation; $6\frac{1}{8}$ " lg $\times 5\frac{5}{8}$ " wd $\times \frac{1}{4}$ " thk; high temperature ap- plication; maintained at a constant 70°C; part of E-119	Left side oven insulation		‡	1; P661-2	P661-2	0-182	1				
0-183	Asbestos: sheet form; for heat insulation; $6\frac{1}{8}''$ lg $\times 6\frac{5}{6}''$ wd $\times \frac{1}{4}''$ thk; high temperature ap- plication maintained at a constant 70°C; part of E-119	Top side oven insulation		‡	1; P662-1	P662-1	0-183, 0-184	2				
O-184	Same as O-183	Bottom side of oven insulation										
O-185	Asbestos: sheet form; for heat in- sulation; $6\frac{5}{6}$ lg $\times 6\frac{1}{8}$ wd $\times \frac{5}{8}$ thk; high temp application, maintained at a constant 70°C; part of E-119	Back side of oven insulation		++	1; P663-1	P663-1	O-185	1				
O-186	Clamp, electrical: aluminum alloy; sand blast w/clear lacquer finish; 1 screw type fastening device; 1" $\lg \times 1\frac{1}{8}$ " dia; mts by $\frac{7}{8}$ " 20 inside thd; $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg; designed to hold cable $\frac{9}{6}$ " dia; used as cable clamp; part of E-101 or E-122	cable clamps		N17-C-781444 -504	128	P640-2	O-186	2				
O-187	Clamp, electrical: aluminum alloy; sand blast w/clear lacquer finish; 1 screw type fastening device; $17_{41}''$ lg $\times 117_{41}''$ dia; mts by 1''-20 inside thrd, $38''$ lg; designed to hold cable $58''$ dia; used as cable clamp; part of E-101 or E-122		AN 3057-10		128	P640-1	0-187	2				

O-188	Bushing: reducing fitting for cable; aluminum alloy; male; $\frac{7}{6}$ " lg $\times 1\frac{1}{4}$ " across hex end flats $\times 0.604$ " ID $\times \frac{3}{6}$ " across shoulder; part of E-101 or E-122	Interconnecting cable feedthru	AN 3064-10		128	P641-2	O-188	2	PARTS L
O-189	Bushing: reducing fitting for cable; aluminum alloy; male; $\mathcal{V}_{8}^{\prime\prime}$ lg $\times 1\frac{1}{16}^{\prime\prime}$ across hex end flats $\times 0.473^{\prime\prime}$ ID $\times \frac{3}{6}^{\prime\prime}$ across shoulder; part of E-101 or E-122	Interconnecting cable feedthru	AN 3064-8		128	P641-1	O-189	2	LIST
O-190	Bushing: reducing fitting for mtg screws; cadmium plated steel; $0.187'' \lg \times \frac{3}{8}'' OD \times 0.140'' ID$ $\times 0.078''$ across shoulder; part of E-101 or E-122	J-105, J-106 mtg hole bushings		* *	1373	P638-1	O-190	8	
O-191	Not used								
O-192	Latch, fastener: door latch; cad- mium plated brass; circular bev- eled washer attached to round shaft w/flatted end; ${}^{5}\!\%_{4}''$ lg $\times 1{}^{5}\!\%_{1}''$ OD	Oven door latch		ţ	1; SA:7308	SA:7308	O-192	1	KY-
O-193†	Mounting: metal parts—steel, rub- ber parts—natural rubber; cad- mium plated finish; holds cabinet by means of bolt thru a center 5%"-11 tapped hole $7%$ " d; two 1%" diam mtg holes on vertical center line spaced 6" c to c; 4 shock mts attached to base of cabinet; for mtg Frequency Shift Keyer cabinet; part of A-105	Cabinet shock mts			1370	L631-1	O-193	4	NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
O-194	Ring, retainer: cadmium plated steel; for ¼" dia shaft; 0.260" ID open, 0.187" ID closed, 0.031" wd	Oven door latch retaining ring			97	P491-3	O-194	1	SRT
O-195	Hinge: butt type; cadmium plated steel; $3\frac{1}{4}$ " lg $\times 1\frac{5}{22}$ " wd $\times \frac{9}{22}$ " d; nonremovable type pin; two 0.156" dia mtg holes and two #6-32 tapped mtg holes on 2.250" mtg/c	Oven door hinge		ŧ	1; P652-2	P652-2	O-195	1	
O-196	plated; brass finish; 5/8" round	Power sw and Plate sw panel mtg nuts			1; J703-3	J703-3	O-196	2	
O-197†	Washer, flat: rd; cadmium plated steel; ${}^{21}\!$	O-193 shock pads			238	L620-1	O-197	4	Section 0-188_0-1
† ‡	 Supplied on KY-75/SRT only. Not furnished as a maintenance part.	l If failure occurs, do	not request replacem	ent unless the ite	m cannot be i	repaired or fal	pricated.	-	-197

### TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Section 0-198-0-2

NAVSHIPS 91543

			PARTS						R		UIP. PART	ſS
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	STANDARD NAVY AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION	CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	KY-5	8 /GRT NYND	KY-7 XOg	S/SRT NYNO
			MECHANICAL P	ARTS (continued)								
O-198	Gear assembly: for gear driving; cadmium plated brass; $2\%'_{6}$ OD $\times 1\%'_{64}$ thk w/0.250" dia bore; hub gear $\%''$ OD; mts on stud bearing 0.249" dia w/washer and retaining ring; spur type gear w/std involute tooth form having 80 teeth w/32 pitch and 2.5 pitch dia, hub gear has 16 teeth w/32 pitch and $\frac{1}{2}$ pitch dia	O-199 driving gear			1; SA:8763	SA:8763	O-198	1				
O-199	Gear assembly: for dial driving; cadmium plated brass; $2\%_{6}^{\prime\prime}$ OD $\times$ $5\frac{1}{44}^{\prime\prime}$ thk w/0.250'' dia bore; hub bushing 0.435'' OD $\times$ $5\frac{1}{44}^{\prime\prime}$ lg; bushing mts on shaft 0.249'' dia, gear rolled and soldered on bushing; spur type gear w/std involute tooth form having 80 teeth w/32 pitch and 2.5 pitch dia	Output Level con- trol dial drive gear			1; SA:8764	SA:8764	O-199	1				
O <b>-200</b>	Pinion, gear: spur type; cadmium plated brass; for gear and shaft driving; AGMA std involute tooth form; 16 teeth, 32 pitch, $\frac{1}{2}$ pitch dia; $3\frac{1}{2}$ " lg × $\frac{9}{6}$ " OD; hub $3\frac{1}{2}$ " lg × 0.249" dia	trol driving gear			1; SA:8765	SA:8765	O-200	1				
O-201	Drive, tuning: steel disc w/satin polish finish, brass bearing, handle and stud w/black nickel finish; $2\frac{3}{8}^{"}$ OD $\times 1^{21}$ incl handle; single axial mtg hole 0.250" dia w/two #8-32 tapped mtg holes set 90 deg apart on bearing	Output Level con-			1; SA:8767	SA:8767	0-201	1				
0-202	Dial, locking clamp: brass; dull nickel finish; 1 spring clamp fasten- ing device; ${}^{6}\!\!\!/_{4}''$ lg $\times {}^{6}\!\!\!/_{4}''$ wd $\times$ ${}^{19}\!\!/_{6}''$ h; two ${}^{9}\!\!/_{4}''$ dia mtg holes on ${}^{5}\!\!/_{6}''$ mtg/c; designed to hold disc ${}^{1}\!\!/_{16}''$ max thk	C 150 T 191			1; SA:5810	SA:5810	O-202	5				
O-203	Same as O-118	Output Tuning control shaft bush- ing						and the second se				

2			<b>, ,,,,,</b> ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	PLU	JGS									] <b>P</b>
	P-101	Connector, plug: 20 round male contacts; straight type; $3\frac{3}{8}''$ lg $\times 1\frac{5}{8}''$ wd $\times 1^{11}/6'$ h; 8 amp, 250 v; aluminum alloy rectangular shaped body w/tin plate and clear lacquer finish; melamine "G" in- sert; four 0.144" diam mtg holes, $\frac{5}{42}''$ lg on 1" $\times 2.875''$ mtg/c; connectors and associated hard- ware silver plated; $\frac{1}{16}''$ raised characters; same as P-102 less coaxial connectors	multiconnector plug for MD-165/URT		(For replace- ment use P-102 by removing co- axial connec- tors)	339	P644-2	P-101	1					ARTS LIST
	P-102	Connector, plug: 20 round straight type male contacts and 3 rt angle type coaxial female contacts; $3\frac{3}{3}''$ lg $\times 1\frac{5}{3}''$ wd $\times 1^{11}\frac{1}{16}''$ h; 8 amps, 250 v; aluminum alloy rectangular shaped body w/tin plate and clear lacquer finish; melamine "G" in- sert; four 0.144″ diam mtg holes, $\frac{5}{32}''$ lg, on 1″ $\times 2.875''$ mtg/c; coax and solid connectors, and as- sociated hardware silver plated; $\frac{1}{3}''$ raised characters; adapter bushing furnished to accommodate RG-59/U cable in each coaxial fitting	multiconnector plug for AM-165/URT			339	P644-3	P-102	1	1	1	1	1	NAVSHIPS KY-58/GRT and
	P-103† thru P-108	Connector, plug: 1 rd male con- tact; straight type; $1\frac{3}{6}$ dia $\times 1\frac{9}{6}$ lg approx; cylindrical brass body silver plated; mica-filled bakelite insert; cable opening for 0.410" dia cable; multiple piece construction, tapered removable back shell which provides extra cable grip in single mtg hole; mts by $\frac{3}{8}$ "-24 threaded body; P-103 & P-104 part of W-108, P-105 & P-106 part of W-107, P-107 & P-108 part of W-106	J-109, J-110, J-111 connectors	PL-259A (-49195)	N17-C-71413 -4752	262	F505-1	P-103 thru P-108	6					NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
	P-109†	Connector, plug: 3 rd female con- tacts; polarized; straight type; $1^{11}/_{6}$ lg $\times 1^{1}/_{6}$ dia; aluminum cylindrical body, sand blasted w/clear lacquer finish; locking type w/split shell; molded pheno- lic insert; $\frac{1}{2}$ dia max cable open- ing; multiple piece construction w/single mtg hole, $\frac{1}{2}$ dia, for cable; body mtd by $\frac{3}{4}$ -20 conduit thd, $\frac{3}{8}$ lg; $1^{1}/_{16}$ OD coupling nut w/ $\frac{1}{8}$ -20 thd; part of W-102	Audio Freq meter connector	AN 3106B-14S-1S	N17-C-70328 -1332	339	Q676-1	P-109, P-111 P-115	38					Sect P-101
ထို	P-110†	Connector, plug: 3 rd male con- tacts; polarized; straight type;		AN 3106B-14S-1P	N17-C-70588 -1327	339	Q677-1	P-110, P-112 <i>P-1/6</i>	31					Section 8 P-101 - P-110
ယ်	† \$	Supplied on KY-75/SRT only												δα

 $\boldsymbol{\omega}$ 

#### TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

 $\infty$ 



ORIGINAL

ORIGINAL	R-102	Resistor, variable: wire wnd; 1 section; 750 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 2 watt nominal power rating; std A taper MBCA ref dwg group 3; 3 solder lug term; enclosed metal case 1.28" diam max $\times 0.62$ " d max; round, metal shaft, $\frac{1}{4}$ " diam $\times \frac{7}{8}$ " lg; high torque; insulated contact arm, no "off" position; $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg; non- turn device located on $\frac{17}{42}$ " radius at 9 o'clock; JAN-R-19 spec	Photo Input con- trol	RA20A2RD751 -AK		11	11345-18	R-102	1		PARTS LIST
	R-103	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 10,000 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; re- sistant to humidity; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	input metering	RC30BF103K (-63288-103)	N16-R-50283 -0231	63	H370-24	R-103, R-188, R-193	3		
	R-104	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 68 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F char- acteristic; 0.750''lg $\times$ 0.280'' diam max; insulated; resistant to hu- midity; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	Metering switch shunt	RC30BF680K (-63288-680)	N16-R-49500 -0231	273	11370-11	R-104, R-197	2	KY-58/GRT	NAVSH
	R-105	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 3300 ohms, ±10%; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; re- sistant to humidity; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	voltage divider	RC30BF332K (-63288-332)	N16-R-50067 -0231	63	H370-59	R-105	. 1	KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT	NAVS HIPS 91543
	R-106	Resistor, variable: wire wnd; 1 section; 3500 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 2 watt nominal power rating; std A taper MBCA ref dwg group 3; 3 solder lug term; enclosed metal case 1.28" diam max $\times 0.62$ " d max; slotted metal shaft w/0.047" wd $\times 0.063$ " d slot in end; $\frac{1}{4}$ " diam $\times \frac{1}{2}$ " lg; high torque; insulated contact arm; no "off" position; $\frac{3}{8}$ " -32 thd mtg bushing, $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg; non-turn de- vice located on $\frac{1}{22}$ " radius at 9 o'clock; JAN-R-19 spec	-	RA20A2SA352-AK	N16-R-90933 -3980	11	H345-21	R-106	1		
833	R-107	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14 MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 220 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750'' lg × 0.280'' diam max; insulated; re- Supplied on KY-75/SRT only	photo filtering	RC30BF221K (-63288-221)	N16-R-49662 -0231	273	H370-46	R-107	1	K-102-K-107	Section 8

 $\mathbf{\omega}_{\mathbf{i}}$ 

# TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Section R-107–R-1

			PARTS						R	EQU EPAIR		T&
				STANDARD NAVY	MFGR.	CON-			KY-58	B/GRT	KY -7	5/SRT
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION	TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	вох	QUAN.	BOX	QUAN.
			RESISTORS	(continued)								
R-107 (cont)	sistant to humidity; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec											
R-108	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 220,000 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; re- sistant to humidity; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	V-101 input filter	RC30BF224K (-63288-224)	N16-R-50715 -0231	63	H370-31	R-108, R-109, R-112, R-119, R-170	5				
R-109	Same as R-108	V-101 cathode										
R-110	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 2200 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; re- sistant to humidity; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	V-101 cathode	RC30BF222K (-63288-222)	N16-R-50013 -0231	63	H370-58	R-110, R-192	2				
R-111	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 6800 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; re- sistant to humidity; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	V-101 cathode dropping	RC30BF682K (-63288-682)	N16-R-50202 -0231	63	11370-60	R-111	1				
R-112	Same as R-108	V-101 to V-102 coupling										
R-113	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 4700 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; re- sistant to humidity; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	V-102 cathode dropping	RC30BF472K (-63288-472)	N16-R-50130 -0231	63	H370-49	R-113	1				
R-114	Resistor, variable: wire wnd; 1 section; 5000 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 2 watt nominal power rating; std A taper	FSK Mark adj	RA20A2SA502-AK	N16-R-91031 -1135	11	H345-20	R-114	1				

ORIGINAL	R-114 (cont)	MBCA ref dwg group 3; 3 solder lug term; enclosed metal case; 1.28" diam max $\times$ 0.62" d max; slotted metal shaft w/0.047" wd $\times$ 0.063" d slot in end; $\frac{1}{4}$ " diam $\times$ $\frac{1}{2}$ " lg; high torque; insulated con- tact arm; no "off" position; $\frac{3}{8}$ "-32 thd mtg bushing, $\frac{3}{4}$ " lg; non-turn device located on $\frac{1}{22}$ " radius at 9 o'clock; JAN-R-19 spec									PARTS LIST
	R-115	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 470 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; resist- ant to humidity; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	Part of V-102 cathode adj net- work	RC30BF471K (-63288-471)	N16-R-49770 -0231	63	H370-6	R-115, R-187	2		
	R-116	Resistor, variable: wire wnd; 1 section; 2500 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 2 watt nominal power rating; std A taper MBCA ref dwg group 3; 3 solder lug term; enclosed metal case; $1.28''$ diam $\times 0.62''$ d max; slotted metal shaft w/0.047'' wd $\times 0.063''$ d slot in end; $\frac{1}{4}''$ diam $\times \frac{1}{2}''$ lg; high torque; insulated contact arm; no "off" position; $\frac{3}{8}''$ lg, $\frac{3}{8}''$ -32 thrd mtg bushing; non-turn device located on $\frac{1}{22}''$ radius at 9 o'clock; JAN-R-19 spee	Photo carrier adj	RA20ASA252AK	N16-R-87419 -5160	11	11345-19	R-116	1		NAVSHIPS 91 KY-58/GRT and KY
	R-117	Resistor, variable: wire wnd; 1 section; 1000 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 2 watt nominal power rating; std A taper MBCA ref dwg group 3; 3 solder lug term; enclosed, metal case; 1.28" diam $\times 0.62"$ d max; slotted metal shaft w/0.047" wd $\times$ $0.063"$ d slot in end; $\frac{1}{4}$ " diam $\times$ $\frac{1}{2}$ " lg; high torque; insulated con- tact arm; no "off" position; $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg, $\frac{3}{8}$ "-32 thrd mtg bushing; non-turn device located on $\frac{1}{29}$ " radius at 9 o'clock; JAN-R-19 spec	FSK carrier adj	RA20A2SA102AK	N16-R-90754 -3631	11	H345-17	R-117, R-189	2		41PS 91543 and KY-75/SRT
	R-118	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 680 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750'' lg × 0.280'' diam max; insulated; resist- ant to humidity; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	V-102 cathode	RC30BF681K (-63288-681)	N16-R-49842 -0231	63	H370-51	R-118, R-125	2		Se R-11
ထု	R-119	Same as R-108	V-103 plate filter				-				ection { 14-R-120
-35	R-120	Same as R-101	V-103 grid								<b>8</b> 120

### TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

			PARTS						R		UIP, PAR	rs
SYMBOL	NAME OF PART AND	FUNCTION	DAA AAL YVAN)	STANDARD NAVY AND (SIGNAL	MFGR. AND MFGR'S.	CON- TRACTOR DRAW-	ALL SYMBOL	TOT. NO.	KY -58	B/GRT	KY-7	5 /SR
DESIG.	DESCRIPTION		TYPE) NO.	CORPS) STOCK NO.	DESIG - NATION	ING & PART NO.	DESIG. INVOLVED	PER EQ.	BOX	QUAN.	вох	QUAN.
			RESISTORS	(continued)			·····			·		
R-121	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 1500 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; resist- ant to humidity; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	V-103 cathode	RC30BF152K (-63288-152)	N16-R-49968 -0231	63	11370-21	R-121, R-123	2				
R-122	Resistor, variable: wire wnd; 1 sec- tion; 10,000 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 2 watt nominal power rating; std A taper MBCA ref dwg group 3; 3 solder lug term; enclosed, metal case; 1.28" diam max $\times 0.62"$ d max; slotted metal shaft w/0.047" wd $\times$ 0.063" d slot in end; $\frac{1}{4}$ " diam $\times$ $\frac{1}{2}$ " lg; high torque; insulated con- tact arm; no "off" position; $\frac{3}{8}$ " -32 thrd mtg bushing, $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg; non-turn device located on $\frac{11}{2}$ " radius at 9 o'clock; JAN-R-19 spec	Linearity adjust- ment	RA20A2SA103AK	N16-R-91291 -4930	11	L882-4	R-122	1				
R-123	Same as R-121	Part of V-103 cathode bias net- work										
R-124	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 22,000 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; resist- ant to humidity; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	V-106 grid filter	RC30BF223K (-63288-223)	N16-R-50373 -0231	63	11370-7	R-124, R-166, R-179, R-180	4				
R-125	Same as R-118	V-103 cathode										
R-126	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; total resistance 4415 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; <sup>1</sup> / <sub>4</sub> watt power dissipation, 105 °C max continuous oper temp; <sup>1</sup> / <sub>5</sub> / <sub>2</sub> " lg × <sup>3</sup> / <sub>4</sub> " OD max, excl term; lacquer coating; resist- ant to high humidity; 2 radial tab term, <sup>3</sup> / <sub>8</sub> " lg × 0.016" min thk; chassis mtg; requires hole for #6	Part of ×4 volt- age divider net- work	RB10B44150F		1368	P753-18	R-126, R-144	2	1	1	1	1

8 Section R-121–R-126

NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

ORIGINAL	R-126 (cont) R-127	screw; temp coef $\pm 0.002\%/^{\circ}$ C; JAN-R-93 spec Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; total resistance 4220 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; <sup>1</sup> / <sub>4</sub> watt power dissipation; 105 °C max continuous oper temp; <sup>1</sup> / <sub>52</sub> " lg $\times$ <sup>3</sup> / <sub>4</sub> " OD max, excl term; lacquer coating; resist- ant to high humidity; 2 radial tab term, <sup>3</sup> / <sub>8</sub> " lg $\times$ 0.016" min thk; chassis mtg, requires holes for #6 screw; temp coef $\pm 0.002\%/^{\circ}$ C;	Part of ×3 volt- age divider net- work	RB10B42200F		1368	P753-16	R-127, R-145	2	1	1	1	1	PARTS LIST
	R-128	JAN-R-93 spec Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 3830 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; $\frac{1}{4}$ watt power dissipation; 105°C max continuous oper temp; $\frac{1}{5}$ ?'' lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " OD max; lacquer coating; resistant to high humidity; 2 radial tab term, $\frac{3}{6}$ " lg $\times 0.016$ " min thk; chassis mtg, requires hole for #6 screw; temp coef $\pm 0.002\%$ /°C; JAN-R-93 spec	Part of ×2 volt- age divider net- work	RB10B38300F	N16-R-79173 -5665	1368	P753-22	R-128, R-146	2	1	1	1	1	NAVS KY-58/GRT
	R-129	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 2660 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; $\frac{1}{4}$ watt power dissipation; 105°C max continuous oper temp; $\frac{15}{2}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " OD max; lacquer coating; resistant to high humidity; 2 radial tab term, $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg $\times 0.016$ " min thk; chassis mtg, requires hole for #6 screw; temp coef $\pm 0.002\%$ /°C; JAN-R-93 spec	Part of ×1 volt- age divider net- work	RB10B26600F	N16-R-79154 -5459	1368	P753-20	R-129, R-147	2	1	1	1	1	NAVSHIPS 91543 /GRT and KY-75/SRT
	R-130	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 4610 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; $\frac{1}{4}$ watt power dissipation; 105°C max continuous oper temp; $\frac{15}{20}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " OD max; lacquer coating; resistant to high humidity; 2 radial tab term, $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg $\times 0.016$ " min thk; chassis mtg, requires hole for #6 screw; temp coef $\pm 0.002\%$ /°C; JAN-R-93 spec	Part of ×6 volt- age divider net- work	RB10B46100F		1368	P753-12	R-130, R-148	2	1	1	1	1	
837	R-131	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 4708 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; $\frac{1}{4}$ watt power dissipation; 105°C max continuous oper temp; $\frac{1}{52}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " OD max; lacquer coating; resistant to high humidity; 2 radial tab term, $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg $\times 0.016$ " min thk; chassis mtg, requires hole for #6 screw; temp coef $\pm 0.002\%$ /°C; JAN-R-93 spec	Part of ×8 volt- tage divider net- work	RB10B47080F	N16-R-79193 -3519	1368	P753-14	R-131, R-149	2	1	1	1	1	Section 8 R-126-R-131

### TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Section R-132-R-135

NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

			PARTS						R	EQU EPAIR		rs
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	STANDARD NAVY AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG - NATION	CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	KY-58 X 08	B/GRT .NYNO	КҮ -7: ХОД	5 /SR NAUQ
			RESISTORS	(continued)				<b>_</b>				
R-132	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 4740 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; $\frac{1}{4}$ watt power dissipation; 105°C max continuous oper temp; $\frac{15}{22}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " OD max; lacquer coating; resistant to high humidity; 2 radial tab term, $\frac{3}{6}$ " lg $\times 0.016$ " min thk; chassis mtg, requires hole for #6 screw; temp coef $\pm 0.002\%$ /°C; JAN-R-93 spec	Part of X9 volt- age divider net- work	RB10B47400F	N16-R-79193 -6399	1368	P753-8	R-132, R-150	2	1	1	1	1
R-133	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 4805 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; $\frac{1}{4}$ watt power dissipation; 105°C max continuous oper temp; $\frac{15}{22}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " OD max; lacquer coating; resistant to high humidity; 2 radial tab term, $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg $\times 0.016$ " min thk; chassis mtg, requires hole for #6 screw; temp coef $\pm 0.002\%$ /°C; JAN-R-93 spec	Part of X12 volt- age divider net- work	RB10B48050F		1368	P753-10	R-133, R-151	2	1	1	1	1
R-134	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 764 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; $\frac{1}{4}$ watt power dissipation; 105°C max continuous oper temp; $\frac{1}{52}$ " $\lg \times \frac{3}{4}$ " OD max; lacquer coating; resistant to high humidity; 2 radial tab term, $\frac{3}{5}$ " $\lg \times 0.016$ " min thk; chassis mtg, requires hole for $\frac{3}{6}$ 6 screw; temp cocf $\pm 0.002\%$ /°C; JAN-R-93 spec	Part of X4 volt- age divider net- work	RB10B07640F		1368	P <b>753-</b> 19	R-134, R-152	2	1	1	1	
R-135	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 1134 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; $\frac{1}{4}$ watt power dissipation; 105°C max continuous oper temp; $\frac{15}{22}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " OD max; lacquer coating; resistant to high humidity; 2 radial tab term, $\frac{3}{6}$ " lg $\times 0.016$ " min thk; chassis mtg, requires hole for #6 screw; temp coef $\pm 0.002\%$ /°C; JAN-R-93 spec	Part of X3 volt- age divider net- work	RB10B11340F		1368	P753-17	R-135, R-153	2	1	1	1	]

ORIGINAL	R-136	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 2200 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; $\frac{1}{4}$ watt power dissipation; 105°C max continuous oper temp; $\frac{15}{52}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " OD max; lacquer coating; resistant to high humidity; 2 radial tab term, $\frac{3}{6}$ " lg $\times$ 0.016" min thk; chassis mtg, requires hole for #6 screw; temp coef $\pm 0.002\%$ /°C; JAN-R-93 spec	Part of X2 volt- age divider net- work	RE10B22000F		1368	P753-23	R-136, R-154	2	1	1	1	1	PARTS LIST
	R-137	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 36,560 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; $\frac{1}{4}$ watt power dissipation; 105°C max continuous oper temp; $\frac{15}{22}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " OD max; lacquer coating; resistant to high humidity; 2 radial tab term, $\frac{3}{3}$ " lg $\times 0.016$ " min thk; chassis mtg requires hole for $\frac{4}{6}$ screw; temp coef $\pm 0.002\%$ /°C; JAN-R-93 spec	Part of X1 volt- age divider net- work	RB10B36561F	N16-R-79321 -2251	1368	P753-21	R-137, R-155	2	1	1	1	1	
	R-138		Part of X6 volt- age divider net- work	RB10B04620F		1368	P753-13	R-138, R-156	2	1	1	1	1	NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
	R-139	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 331 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; $\frac{1}{4}$ watt power dissipation; 105 °C max continuous oper temp; $\frac{1}{50}$ " lg × $\frac{3}{4}$ " OD max; lacquer coating; re- sistant to high humidity; 2 radial tab tern, $\frac{3}{6}$ " lg × 0.016" min thk; chassis mtg requires hole for #6 screw; temp coef $\pm 0.002\%$ /°C; JAN-R-93 spec	Part of X8 volt- age divider net- work	RB10B03310F		1368	P753-15	R-139, R-157	2	1	1	1	1	13 75/SRT
	R-140	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 290 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; $\frac{1}{4}$ watt power dissipation; 105 °C max continuous oper temp; $\frac{1}{5}\%''$ lg × $\frac{3}{4}''$ OD max; lacquer coating; re- sistant to high humidity; 2 radial tab term, $\frac{3}{6}''$ lg × 0.016'' min thk; chassis mtg requires hole for #6 screw; temp coef $\pm 0.002\%$ /°C; JAN-R-93 spec	Part of X9 volt- age divider net- work	RB10B02900F	N16-R-78987 -6666	1368	P753-9	R-140, R-158	2	1	1	1	1	Section R-136—R-
839	R-141	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 211 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; $\frac{1}{4}$	Part of X12 volt- age divider net- work	RB10B02110F	N16-R-78964 -7599	1368	P753-11	R-141, R-159	2	1	1	1	1	Section 8 -136–R-141

 $\infty$ 

### TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

40 EQUIP. PARTS **REPAIR PARTS** KY-58/GRT KY-75/SRT STANDARD CON-NAVY MFGR. TOT. TRACTOR ALL JAN AND AND AND (NAVY DRAW-SYMBOL NO. NAME OF PART AND SYMBOL (SIGNAL MFGR'S. FUNCTION ING & DESIG. PER TYPE) DESIG. DESCRIPTION QUAN. QUAN. CORPS) DESIG -EQ. INVOLVED PART NO. BOX BOX STOCK NATION NO. NO. **RESISTORS** (continued) watt power dissipation; 105°C max **R-141** continuous oper temp;  $^{15}\%''$  lg X (cont) "" OD max; lacquer coating;  $2^{*}_{4}$ " OD max; lacquer coating; resistant to high humidity; 2 radial tab term,  $3^{*}_{8}$ " lg  $\times 0.016$ " min thk; chassis mtg requires hole for #6 screw; temp coef ±0.002%/°C; JAN-R-93 spec V-106 grid filter **R-142** Same as R-101 N16-R-92495 1369P624-1 R-143 1 Resistor, variable: wire wnd ele-Deviation control R-143 ment; 2 sections, 2500 ohms  $\pm 1\%$ ; -9360 6 watt nominal power dissipation; std A taper MBCA ref dwg group 3; 3 solder lug term each section; enclosed bakelite body,  $2\frac{3}{8}$  lg  $\times$  3" diam; round bakelite shaft  $\frac{3}{8}$ " diam  $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " lg, w/normal torque; insulated contact w/no "off" posi-tion; three #6-32 tapped mtg holes, spaced 120° apart on 1.750" diam bolt circle; linearity of taper is  $\pm 1\%$  of total resistance Part of deviation R-143A Part of R-143 control network Part of deviation R-143B Part of R-143 control network Part of X4 volt-R-144 Same as R-126 age divider network Part of X3 volt-R-145 Same as R-127 age divider network Part of X2 volt-R-146 Same as R-128 age divider net-ORIGINAL work Part of X1 volt-R-147 Same as R-129 age divider net-

work

 $\boldsymbol{\infty}$ R-141-R-147 Section

KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT NAVSHIPS 91543

ORIGINAL	R-148 R-149 R-150	Same as R-130 Same as R-131 Same as R-132	Part of X6 volt- age divider net- work Part of X8 volt- age divider net- work Part of X9 volt-							PARTS LIST
	K-150		age divider net- work							
	R-151	Same as R-133	Part of X12 volt- age divider net- work						-	
	R-152	Same as R-134	Part of X4 volt- age divider net- work							
	R-153	Same as R-135	Part of X3 volt- age divider net- work							-
	R-154	Same as R-136	Part of X2 volt- age divider net- work							NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
	R-155	Same as R-137	Part of X1 volt- age divider net- work							AVSHIF SRT and
	R-156	Same as R-138	Part of X6 volt- age divider net- work							°S 9154 4 KY-75
	R-157	Same as R-139	Part of X8 volt- age divider net- work							3 /SRT
	R-158	Same as R-140	Part of X9 volt- age divider net- work							
	R-159	Same as R-141	Part of X12 volt- age divider net- work							
	R-160	Not used								
8-4	R-161	Resistor, variable: wire wnd ele- ment; 1 section, 1000 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 3 watts nominal power rating; std A taper MBCA ref dwg group 3; 3 solder lug term; enclosed body as per JAN-R-19; 1.28" lg $\times$ 1.64" dia max incl sw term; 1 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>4</sub> " lg $\times$ 0.250" dia metal shaft, flatted to 0.216"; high torque; insulated contact arm w/no "off" position; <sup>3</sup> / <sub>8</sub> "-32 thrd bushing, 0.375" lg, w/non-turn device located on 1 <sup>7</sup> / <sub>22</sub> "	$\operatorname{control}$	RA25B2FG -102AK	N16-R-90754 -3965	M366-2	R-161	1		Section 8 R-148-R-161

## TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

			PARTS						R		UIP. PARI	rs
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	STANDARD NAVY AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION	CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	<u>КҮ-5</u> 1 Х О	S /GRT	KY-7 X Og	5 /SR
		<u> </u>	RESISTORS	(continued)				J				
R-161 (cont)	radius at 9 o'clock; single-pole, single throw switch, 3 amp, 117 VAC, normally open operates at 50° rotation, 2 solder lug term; includes S-105											
R-162	Resistor, variable: composition element; 1 section, 500,000 ohms $\pm 20\%$ ; $\frac{1}{8}$ watt nominal power dissipation; std F taper MBCA ref dwg group 3; 3 solder lug term; enclosed case as per JAN-R-94, $^{31}_{42}$ " diam $\times ^{29}_{44}$ " thk max; round slotted metal shaft, $\frac{1}{4}$ " diam $\times ^{12}_{12}$ " ig w/high torque; no shaft locking device; insulated contact arm w/o "off" position; $\frac{3}{8}$ "-32 thrd mtg bushing w/non-turn device on $\frac{7}{16}$ " radius at 9 o'clock; JAN-R-94 spec	Phase Modulation Calibration adj	RV2AYSA504F		11	M364-17	R-162, R-168	2	1	1	1	1
R-163	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 1,000,000 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; re- sistant to humidity and salt water immersion cycling; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	V-105 plate filter	RC30BF105K (-63288-105)	N16-R-50976 -0231	63	H370-34	R-163	1				
R-164	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 820 ohms $\pm 5\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F char- acteristic; $0.750'' \text{ lg} \times 0.280''$ diam max; insulated; resistant to hu- midity and salt water immersion cycling; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	V-105 cathode	RC30BF821J (-63288-821)	N16-R-49876 -0751	63	H370-64	R-164	1			-	
R-165	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 47,000 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; resist-	V-105 screen drop- ping	RC30BF473K (-63288-473)	N16-R-50481 -0231	63	H370-3	R-165, R-177	2				

8 Section R-161-R-165

NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

	(cont)	ant to humidity and salt water immersion cycling; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec												PARTS LIST
	R-166	Same as R-124	V-105 plate load											Ë
1	R-167	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 330,000 $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F char- acteristic; 0.750'' lg $\times 0.280''$ diam max; insulated; resistant to humid- ity and salt water immersion cy- cling; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN- R-11 spec	Part of V-105 phase shifting net- work	RC30BF334K (-63288-334)	N16-R-50760 -0231	63	H370-44	R-167, R-169	2					ĬT
1	R-168	Same as R-162	Part of V-105 phase shifting network											
1	R-169	Same as R-167	Part of V-105 phase shifting network											
	R-170	Same as R-108	Part of V-105 phase shifting network											NAVS KY-58/GRT
	R-171	Not used												GR
]	R-172	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 7, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 2500 ohms $\pm 1\%$ ; $\frac{1}{4}$ watt power dissipation; 105°C max continuous oper temp; $\frac{1}{52}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " OD max; lacquer coating; resistant to high humidity; 2 solder lug term, $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg $\times 0.016$ " min thk; chassis mtg, requires hole for #6 screw; temp coef $\pm 0.002\%$ /°C; JAN-R-93 spec	V-106 cathode	RB10B25000F	N16-R-79298 -6139	1368	P753-7	R-172	1	1	1	1	1	NAVSHIPS 91543 /GRT and KY-75/SRT
1	R-173	Not used												
1	R-174	Not used												
1	R-175	Not used												
]	R-176	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 33,000 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; resist- ant to humidity and salt water immersion cycling; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	V-108 and V-109 screen dropping	RC30BF333K (-63288-333)	N16-R-50418 -0231	63	H370-41	R-176, R-186, R-190	3					Se R-1(
	R-177	Same as R-165	V-107 grid bias											55-1 i
' ' ; _	R-178	Same as R-101	V-107 screen dropping											Section 8 R-165-R-178

### TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

ω
<sup>2</sup>
2

EQUIP.

NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

			PARTS						R	EQI EPAIR		s
				STANDARD		CON-			KY-58	B/GRT	KY -7.	5 / S
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	NAVY AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG - NATION	TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	вох	QUAN.	вох	
			RESISTORS	(continued)								
R-179	Same as R-124	V-107 plate balance										
R-180	Same as R-124	V-107 plate balance										
R-181	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 20, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 4000 ohms $\pm 5\%$ ; 12 watt power dissipation; 275°C max cont operating temp; 2" lg $\times \frac{19}{22}$ " OD; vitreous enamel coated, most resistant to salt water immersion; 2 solder lug term $\frac{5}{6}$ " dig $\times \frac{21}{44}$ " wd max; re- quires $\frac{5}{6}$ " diam mtg hole for $2\frac{1}{2}$ " lg mtg screw; JAN-R-26A spec	V-113 plate dropping	RW32F402	N16-R-66214 -5436	63	MO43-30	R-181, R-201	2				
R-182	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 16, MBCA ref dwg group 2; non-inductive wnd; 75 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 20 watt power dissipation; $340^{\circ}$ C max cont operating temp; $3\frac{1}{6}$ " lg $\times 1\frac{1}{4}$ " wd $\times \frac{1}{2}$ " thk; vitreous enamel coating, resistant to humidity; 2 solder lug, radial, term; $\frac{1}{2}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{6}$ " wd; requires $\frac{5}{6}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{6}$ " wd mtg hole for vertical mtg bracket	J-109 terminating		N16-R-65619 -7696	190	P602-1	R-182	1				
R-183	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 4,700,000 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; re- sistant to humidity and salt water immersion cycling; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	V-110 grid	RC30BF475K (-63288-475)	N16-R-51174 -0231	63	11370-65	R-183	1				
R-184	Same as R-101	V-110 screen dropping										
R-185	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 27,000 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation;	V-110 plate dropping	RC30BF273K (-63288-273)	N16-R-50400 -0231	63	H370-40	R-185	1				

R-185 (cont)	F characteristic; $0.750''$ lg $\times$ 0.280'' diam max; insulated; re- sistant to humidity and salt water immersion cycling; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec									PAKIS LISI
R-186	Same as R-176	V-108 and V-109 screen dropping								-
R-187	Same as R-115	V-108 cathode								
R-188	Same as R-103	V-108 and V-109 grid bias								
R-189	Same as R-117	V-109 cathode bal adj								
R-190	Same as R-176	V-109 plate dropping								
R-191	Resistor, fixed: composition body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 1000 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; resist- ant to humidity and salt water immersion cycling; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	V-112 grid metering	RC30BF102K (-63288-102)	N16-R-49923 -0231,	63	H370-48	R-191	Ţ		KY-58/GRT and I
R-192	Same as R-110	V-112 grid metering								nd KY-75
R-193	Same as R-103	V-112 grid metering								KY-75/S RT
R-194	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 150 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; resist- ant to humidity and salt water immersion cycling; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	V-112 grid	RC30BF151K (-63288-151)	N16-R-49626 -0231	273	H370-45	R-194	1		RT
R-195	Same as R-101	V-111 screen dropping								
R-196	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 12,000 ohms $\pm 5\%$ ; 1 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 0.750" lg × 0.280" diam max; insulated; resist- ant to humidity and salt water immersion cycling; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	metering	RC30BF123J (-63291-123)	N16-R-50308 -0751	63	H370-63	R-196	1		3ection R-185-R-1
R-197	Same as R-104	V-112 cathode								R-197

# TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Section R-198–R-20

NAVSHIPS 91543 (Y-58/GRT and KY-75/SF

			PARTS						R		UIP. PART	s
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	STANDARD NAVY AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG - NATION	CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	КΥ-51 ХОД	B/GRT	KY-7 XOg	S/SRT
	1	I	RESISTOR	5 (continued)								
R-198	Resistor, fixed: composition; body style no 14, MBCA ref dwg group 2; total resistance 10,000 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 2 watt power dissipation; F characteristic; 1.78" lg $\times 0.405$ " diam max; insulated; resistant to humidity and salt water immer- sion cycling; 2 axial wire lead term; JAN-R-11 spec	V-112 screen dropping	RC41BF103K	N16-R-50283 -711	63	P634-39	R-198	1				
R-199	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 20, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 4 ohms $\pm 5\%$ ; 12 watt power dissipation; 275°C max cont operating temp; 2" lg $\times {}^{1}\%'_{2}$ OD; vitreous enamel coated; resistant to salt water im- mersion; 2 solder lug term; $5\%$ " lg $\times {}^{2}\%'_{4}$ " wd max; requires $5\%$ " diam mtg hole for $2\%$ " lg mtg screw; JAN-R-26A spec	divider	RW32D4RO	N16-R-65141 -3896	190	MO43-36	R-199, R-200	2				
R-200	Same as R-199	I-101 voltage divider										
R-201	Same as R-181	V-115 plate dropping										
R-202	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 20, MBCA ref dwg group 2; inductive wnd; 6300 ohms $\pm 5\%$ ; 18 watt power dissipation; 275°C max cont operating temp; 3" lg $\times 1\%2$ " OD; vitreous enamel coated, resistant to salt water im- mersion; 2 solder lug term, $5\%$ " lg $\times 21/4$ " wd max; requires $5/6$ " diam mtg bracket for vertical mtg bracket; JAN-R-26A	V-114 plate dropping	RW33G632		190	MO43-35	R-202	1				
R-203	Resistor, thermal: 10 ohms nomi- nal resistance, 120°F ambient temp; 0.6 amp nominal operating current; 7.7 volt max operating voltage, 3 volt working range; de- signed for AC/DC; ballast tube type, 9-T		6-4	N16-T-56090	6-4		R-203	1	1	1	1	1

ORIGINAL	R-203 (cont)	bulb, MBCA ref dwg group 7, $3\%_6''$ lg o/a; octal base for socket mtg; moisture resistant; ballast tube type 6-4												PARTS LIST
ŕ				SWI	CHES									.IST
	S-101	Switch, rotary: 3 sections; 5 posi- tions, max no of switching posi- tions possible; non-"pile-up" type; 6 poles, 5 throws; spring brass con- tacts; silver plated contact finish; grade L-4 ceramic wafer body; 2" lg max $\times 1\frac{5}{8}$ " wd $\times 1\frac{7}{8}$ " h; mts by $\frac{3}{8}$ "-32 thrd bushing, $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg, and $\frac{1}{8}$ " wd key, $\frac{1}{32}$ " from vertical center line at 9 o'clock, double flatted type shaft, 0.218" sq $\times \frac{7}{8}$ " lg; solder lug term			N17-S-66104 -4501	111	P611-1	S-101	1					
	S-101A	Switch section, rotary: 1 section, 5 positions max no of switching positions possible; non-"pile-up" type contact arrangement, 2 poles, 5 throws; spring brass contacts, silver plated contact finish; grade L-4 ceramic wafer body; $1\frac{5}{8}$ " wd $\times 1\frac{7}{8}$ " h; mts by two 0.128" diam holes on vertical center line $1\frac{9}{16}$ " c to c; solder lug terminals; part of S-101	switch section			111	P611-2	S-101A, S-101B, S-101C	3	1	1	1	1	NAVSHIPS KY-58/GRT and
	S-101B	Same as S-101A	S-101 rotary switch section											
	S-101C	Same as S-101A	S-101 rotary switch section											91543 KY-75/ SRT
	S-101D	Detent, switch: provisions for 5 switch positions; non-adjustable stop; $2\frac{7}{8}'' \lg \times 1^{33}_{64}'' \text{ wd} \times 1\frac{7}{8}''$ 'h; mts by a $\frac{3}{8}''-32$ thrd bushing, $\frac{3}{8}''$ lg, and a $\frac{1}{8}''$ wd key, $\frac{17}{42}''$ from vertical center line at 9 o'clock; two 0.128'' diam mtg holes on vertical center line spaced $1^{9}_{16}''$ c to c; part of S-101	detent			111	P611-3	S-101D	1					
8-47	S-102	Switch, rotary: 1 section; 3 posi- tions, max no of switching posi- tions possible; non-"pile-up" type; 3 poles, 3 throws; spring brass contacts; silver-plated contact finish; grade L-4 ceramic wafer body; $1\frac{1}{8}$ " lg $\times 1\frac{5}{8}$ " wd $\times 1\frac{7}{8}$ " h; mts by a $\frac{3}{8}$ "-32 thrd bushing $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg, and a $\frac{1}{8}$ " wd key $1\frac{1}{22}$ " from vertical center line at 9 o'clock; double flatted type shaft; $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg $\times 0.218$ " across flats w/0.250" o/a diam; solder lug term			N17-S-62120 -9601	111	P619-1	S-102	1	1	1	1	. 1	Section 8 R-203–S-102

•

# TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Section \$-103–S-10

NAVSHIPS 91543

►	
고	
-	
S	
-	
Ś	

			PARTS						R		UIP. E PART	s
			JAN AND	STANDARD NAVY AND	MFGR. AND	CON- TRACTOR	ALL	τοτ.	KY-58	B/GRT	KY -7	5 /SR1
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	(NAVY TYPE) NO.	(SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	MFGR'S. DESIG - NATION	DRAW- ING & PART NO.	SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	NO. PER EQ.	вох	QUAN.	BOX	QUAN.
			SWITCHES	(continued)			•					*****
S-103	Switch, rotary: 1 section; 5 positions, max no of switching positions possible; non-"pile-up" type; 2 poles, 5 throws; spring-brass contacts; silver plated contact finish; grade L-4 ceramic wafer body; $1\frac{1}{8}$ " lg $\times 1\frac{5}{8}$ " wd $\times 1\frac{7}{8}$ " h; mts by a $\frac{3}{8}$ "-32 thrd bushing $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg, and a $\frac{1}{8}$ " wd key $\frac{17}{32}$ " from vertical center line at 9 o'clock; double flatted type shaft; $\frac{7}{8}$ " lg $\times 0.218$ " across flats w/0.250" o/a diam; solder lug term	Input filter sw		N17-S-61497 -1571	111	P612-1	S-103	1	1	1	1	1
8-104	Switch, rotary: 4 sections; 8 positions max no of switching positions possible; non-"pile-up" type; 4 poles, 8 throws; spring brass contacts; silver plated contact finish; grade L-4 ceramic wafer body; $27_{6}^{\prime\prime}$ lg $\times 15_{8}^{\prime\prime}$ wd $\times 17_{8}^{\prime\prime}$ h; mts by a $3_{8}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ -32 thrd bushing $3_{6}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ lg, and a $1_{8}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ wd key $17_{2}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ from vertical center line at 9 o'clock; double flatted type shaft; $7_{8}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ lg $\times 0.218^{\prime\prime}$ across flats w/0.250" o/a diam; solder lug term			N17-S-66533 -6071	111	P613-1	S-104	1				
S-104A	Switch section, rotary: 1 section; 8 positions, max no of switching positions possible; non-"pile-up" contact arrangement, single pole, 8 throws; spring brass contacts; silver plated contact finish; grade L-4 ceramic wafer body; $15\%''$ wd $\times 17\%''$ h; mts by two 0.128'' diam holes on vertical center line $19\%''$ c to c; solder lug terminals; part of S-104	S-104 rotary switch section			111	P613-2	S-104A, S-104B, S-104C, S-104D	4	1	1	1	1
S-104B	Same as S-104A	S-104 rotary switch section										
S-104C	Same as S-104A	S-104 rotary switch section										
S-104D	Same as S-104A	S-104 rotary switch section										

ORIGINAL	S-104E	Detent, switch: provisions for 8 switch positions; non-adjustable stop; $3\frac{5}{16}'' \lg \times 1\frac{33}{54}'' \text{ wd} \times 1\frac{7}{8}''$ h; mts by a $\frac{3}{8}''-32$ thrd bushing, $\frac{3}{8}''$ lg, and a $\frac{1}{8}''$ wd key $\frac{17}{82}''$ from vertical center line at 9 o'clock; two 0.128'' diam mtg holes on vertical center line spaced $1\frac{9}{16}''$ c to c; part of S-104	S-104 switch detent			111	P613-3	S-104E	1					PARTS LIST
	S-105	Switch, rotary: single pole, single throw	Phase Mod sw				Part of R-161	S-105	1					
	S-106	Switch, rotary: 1 section; 4 posi- tions, max no of switching posi- tions possible; non-"pile-up" type; 2 pole, 4 throws; spring brass con- tacts; silver plated contact finish; grade L-4 ceramic wafer body; $1\frac{1}{8}$ " lg $\times 1\frac{5}{8}$ " wd $\times 1\frac{7}{8}$ " h; mts by a $\frac{3}{8}$ "-32 thrd bushing $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg, and a $\frac{1}{8}$ " wd key $1\frac{7}{22}$ " from vertical center line at 9 o'clock; double flatted type shaft, $\frac{7}{8}$ " lg, 0.218" across flats w/0.250" o/a diam; solder lug term	Crystal Osc sw		N17-S-61361 -5285	111	P601-1	S-106	1	1	1	1	1	KY-5
	S-107	Switch, rotary: 7 sections	Freq Range sw											N N
	S-107A	Switch section, rotary: 1 section; 3 positions, max no of switching positions possible; non-"pile-up" type; 2 poles, 8 contacts; spring brass contacts; silver plated con- tact finish; grade L-4 ceramic wafer body; $\frac{3}{6}$ " h $\times 1\frac{5}{8}$ " wd $\times 1\frac{7}{8}$ " lg; mtg hole at center of wafer for flatted shaft 0.187" across flats and 0.250" across diam; solder lug term	V-110 crystal osc plate		N17-S-91897 -8781‡	111	P625-1	S-107A, S-107B, S-107C, S-107D, S-107E, S-107F, S-107G	7	1	1	1	1	NAVSHIPS 91543 I/GRT and KY-75/SRT
	S-107B	Same as S-107A	V-108 balanced mixer plate											
	S-107C	Same as S-107A	V-109 balanced mixer plate											
	S-107D	Same as S-107A	V-111 buffer amp grid											
	S-107E	Same as S-107A	V-111 buffer amp plate											
	S-107F	Same as S-107A	V-112 RF power amp plate											
	S-107G	Same as S-107A	Output tuning											s
<b>8</b>	S-108	Switch, toggle: double pole, single throw; 6 amp, 125 v; bakelite body; ${}^{2}\%{}^{2''}$ lg $\times$ ${}^{2}\%{}^{2''}$ wd $\times$ 1% ${}^{2''}$ h max, excl term, barriers, bushing	Power sw		N17-S-73028 -9028	3	H340-5	S-108, S-109	2					Section -104E-S-
49	‡ 1	Not furnished as a maintenance part.	If failure occurs, do	not request replacer	nent unless the ite	m cannot be	repaired or fab	pricated.						စ်ဆ

ω

#### TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Section

S-108-T-102 **U** EQUIP. O PARTS C. **REPAIR PARTS** KY-58/GRT KY-75/SRT STANDARD CON-NAVY MFGR. TOT. JAN AND TRACTOR ALL AND AND SYMBOL NO. SYMBOL NAME OF PART AND (NAVY DRAW-(SIGNAL MFGR'S. FUNCTION PER TYPE) ING & DESIG. DESIG. DESCRIPTION QUAN. QUAN. CORPS) DESIG -INVOLVED EQ. NO. PART BOX BOX STOCK NATION NO. NO. SWITCHES (continued) and handle; bat type actuating handle,  ${}^{11}\!\!/_{6}$  g excl lgth of bushing; 4 solder lug term located on S-108 (cont) back; <sup>15</sup>/<sub>32</sub>"-32 thrd single mtg hole bushing; dull white nickel handle; JAN-S-23 spec S-109 Same as S-108 Plate sw KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT S-110 Oven thermostat N17-S-69871 858 P609-1 Switch, thermostatic: single pole, S-110 1 single throw; nickel plated brass -7951 NAVSHIPS 91543 case;  $3^{23}$ %'' lg  $\times 0.625''$  diam max;  $-100^{\circ}$  to  $+400^{\circ}$  F range,  $\pm 1^{\circ}$  F differential; 10 amp 115 vac, 5 amp 230 vac; 2 wire pigtail type term, located axially at one end; requires 2 mtg brackets; adjustable operating temp, contacts to close on temp decrease. contacts set at 70°C; part of E-119 TRANSFORMERS T-101 Transformer, power step-down and Power trans-332P632-1 **T-101** 1 1 1 1 1 step-up: metal case, hermetically former sealed; input data: 115/230 vac RMS, 60 cycles, single phase; 4 output windings, no. 1 secondary 720 v, no. 2 secondary 12.6 v, no. 3 secondary 5.25 v, no. 4 secondary 6.6 v, no. 1 secondary 0.250 amp, no. 2 secondary 3 amp, no. 3 secondary 3 amp, no. 4 secondary 10 amp, no. 1 and no. 4 secondary center tapped; vacuum impregnated and compound filled; MBCA ref dwg group 12, 5.875" lg incl mounting flanges, 4.875" wd max 5.125" h max; 16 pillar type terminals, 1" lg max,  $\frac{1}{2}$ " OD max, located on bottom; four PARTS LIST 0.218'' dia mounting holes on  $3.500'' \times 5.375''$  mtg centers; in-ORIGINAL ternal shielding T-102 Transformer, RF: 2 windings, Mixer tank, SA:8867 T-102 single laver wound; inductance at 3.5-6.7 mcs SA:8867

ORIGINAL	<b>T-102</b> (cont)	1000 cycles: primary 9.6 micro- henries, secondary 3.2 micro- henries; 20 turns on primary, 9 turns on secondary, #26AWG enameled copper wire; DC re- sistance: primary 0.25 ohms, secon- dary 0.116 ohms; 3.4 to 7 mc fre- quency range; primary center tapped; unshiekded; 21 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>22</sub> " (g × 1" dia; ceramic coil form 1 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>16</sub> " (g × 1" dia; adjustable iron core tuning w/screwdriver adjustment located on bottom of coil form; 5 solder lug term, two located on bottom end and 3 located on top end									PARTS LIST
	T-103	Transformer, RF: 2 windings, 2 pie universal wound; inductance at 1000 cycles: primary 35.8 micro- henries, secondary 8.9 microhenries; 31 turns on primary, 15 turns on secondary #10/41 litz wire; DC resistance: primary 0.99 ohms, secondary 0.62 ohms; 1.75 to 3.6 mc frequency range; untapped, un- shielded; $2\frac{3}{22}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " dia; ce- ramic coil form $1\frac{9}{16}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " dia; adjustableironcoretuningw/screw- driver adjustment located on bot- tom of coil form; one $\frac{1}{4}$ "-32 thrd mtg bushing, $\frac{1}{16}$ " lg, through bottom of coil form; 4 solder lug term located 2 on each end	Mixer tank, 1.8-3.5 mcs			1; SA:8868	SA:8868	T-103	1		NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
	T-104	Transformer, RF: 2 windings, 2 pie universal wound; inductance at 1000 cycles: primary 121 micro- henries, secondary 8.3 micro- henries; 59 turns on primary, 15 turns on secondary #10-41 litz wire; DC resistance: primary 1.94 ohms, secondary 0.63 ohms; 0.95 to 1.85 mc frequency range; un- tapped, unshielded; $2\frac{3}{22}''$ lg $\times \frac{3}{4}''$ dia; ceramic coil form w/pow- dered iron core; coil form 19'6'' lg $\times \frac{3}{4}''$ dia; adjustable iron core tuning w/screwdriver adjustment located on bottom of coil form; one $\frac{1}{4}''$ -32 thrd bushing, $\frac{11}{16}''$ lg, through bottom of coil form; 4 solder lug term, located 2 on each end	Mixer tank, 1 0-1.8 mcs			1; SA:8869	SA:8869	T-104	1		-T S
$\infty$		A		ELECTRO	ON TUBES	L		<u>.</u>	<b>[</b>	<u> </u>	
-51	V-101	Electron tube: twin diode; metal envelope, RMA envelope MT-8;	Pulse limiter	6H6	N16-T-56346	6H6		V-101, V-102	2		v-101
8-52

# TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Section V-101\_V-11

NAVSHIPS 91543

σ
≥
ਸ਼
3
2
-

9				PARTS	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					R		UIP. E PARI	rs	-Y-1
	SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	STANDARD NAVY AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG - NATION	CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	KY-5 XOg	8 /GRT .NYNO	KY-7 X Og	S/SRT NYNO	112
				ELECTRON TU	BES (continued)									
	V-101 (cont)	7 pin type terminations located on bottom; receiving tube; JAN-1A spec												
	V-102	Same as V-101	Pulse limiter											
	V-103	Electron tube: twin triode; glass envelope; RMA envelope T-9; 8 pin type terminations located on bottom; receiving tube; JAN-1A spec	Cathode follower	6SN7WGT	N16-T-56684-25	6SN7WGT		V-103, V-106	2					KY-58/GRT
	V-104	Electron tube: triode; metal en- velope; RMA envelope MT-8; 6 pin type terminations located on bottom; receiving tube; JAN-1A spec	Cathode follower	6J5	N16-T-56350	6J5		V-104	1					and
	V-105	Electron tube: pentode; metal en- velope; RMA envelope MT-8; 8 pin type terminations located on bottom; receiving tube; JAN-1A spec	Phase mod osc	6SJ7W		6SJ7W		V-105, V-107, V-110	3					<b>KY-75/SRT</b>
	V-106	Same as V-103	Reactance mod											
	V-107	Same as V-105	Frequency mod osc											
	V-108	Electron tube: pentagrid con- verter; metal envelope; RMA en- velope MT-8; 8 pin type termina- tions located on bottom; receiving tube; JAN-1A spec	Balanced mixer	68A7	N16-T-56611	6SA7		V-108, V-109	2					
	V-109	Same as V-108	Balanced mixer											
	V-110	Same as V-105	Crystal osc											
001014	V-111	Electron tube: pentode; metal en- velope; RMA envelope MT-8; 8 pin type terminations located on bottom; receiving tube; JAN-1A spec	Buffer amp	6AC7W	N16-T-56140	6AC7W		V-111	1					
	V-112	Electron tube: pentode; glass en- velope; RMA envelope ST-16; 5		807	N16-T-68070	807		V-112	1					

ORIGINAL

	pin type terminations located on bottom $w/1$ cap type termination located on top; transmitting tube; JAN-1A spec										PARIS
]	Electron tube: diode; glass enve- lope; RMA envelope ST-12; 6 pin type terminations located on bot- tom; voltage regulator; JAN-1A spec	Voltage regulator	OD3/VR150	N16-T-53060	OD3/ VR150		V-113, V-115	2			L91
	Electron tube: diode; glass enve- lope; RMA envelope ST-12; 6 pin type terminations located on bot- tom; voltage regulator; JAN-1A spec	Voltage regulator	OA3/VR75	N16-T-53030	OA3/ VR75		V-114	1			
V-115 8	Same as V-113	Voltage regulator									
	Electron tube: twin diode; glass envelope; RMA envelope ST-16; 5 pin type terminations located on bottom; rectifier tube; JAN-1A spec	Full wave rectifier	5U4G	N16-T-55464	5U4G		V-116	1			ĸ
			INTERCONN	ECTING CABLES	- L	· · · · · ·		ļ <b>I</b>	I	<u>l</u>	1-5
	Cable assembly, power, electrical: type AN MCOS-2; 2 conductors of #18 AWG stranded wire w/syn- thetic resin insulation; jute filler, copper braid shield, cotton wrap, rubber jacket covering; 2000 v dielectric test between conductors, 1500 v dielectric test between 1 conductor and gnd; 12' lg overall; 1 AN plug connector type AN 3106B-14S-1S at first end; 1 AN plug connector type AN 3106B -14S-1P at second end; marked: Keyline; includes P-111, P-112	Keyline cable		+	1; SA:8762	SA:8762	W-101 W-110	2			KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
	Cable assembly, power, electrical: type AN MCO2-2; 2 conductors of #18 AWG stranded wire w/syn- thetic resin insulation; jute filler, copper braid shield, cotton wrap, rubber jacket covering; 2000 v dielectric test between conductors, 1500 v dielectric test between 1 conductor and gnd; 12' long over- all; 1 AN plug connector type AN 3106 14S-1S at first end; 1 AN plug connector type AN 3106B 14S-1P at second end; marked: FM audio; includes P-109, P-110	FM Audio cable		+	1; SA:8761	SA:8761	W-102	1			Y-
W-103*	Cable assembly, power, electrical: type AN MCOS-2; 2 conductors	AC Power cable		‡	1; SA:8900	SA:8900	W-103	1			Section 0 112-W-103

8-54

### TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

8 Section W-103\_W-107

> NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT

7	
$\triangleright$	
R	
S	
-	
_	
S	

			PARTS						R	EQI EPAIR	UIP. PART	rs
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	STANDARD NAVY AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK NO.	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG - NATION	CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	КҮ-58 Х	B/GRT	KY -7:	5 /SR
		L	INTERCONNECTING	CABLES (continued	)			<u> </u>				L
W-103 (cont)	of #18 AWG stranded wire w/syn- thetic resin insulation; jute filler, copper braid shield, cotton wrap, rubber jacket; 2000 v dielectric test between conductors, 1500 v dielectric test between 1 conductor and gnd; 12' lg overall; 1 Hubbell body connector type #7559-6 at first end; 1 Hubbell armored cap type #7311-G at second end; marked: AC Power; includes P-113, P-114											
W-104	Clamp, electrical: beryllium copper w/silver plate finish; $1\frac{1}{6}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{8}$ " wd $\times 0.260$ " h when shaped; two $0.156$ " diam mtg holes, $1\frac{1}{6}$ " c to c; used as grounding strap	L-121 frame gnd strap		‡	1; Q665-1	Q665-1	W-104	1				
W-105	Clamp, electrical: beryllium copper w/silver plate finish; $1.145''$ lg $\times \frac{3}{8}''$ wd $\times 0.380''$ h approx when shaped; one $0.156''$ diam mtg hole; used as grounding strap	L-121 tap con- necting lead		ŧ	1; L623-1	L623-1	W-105	1				
W-106*	Cable assembly, RF: AN type RF coaxial cable No RG-59/U; 52 ohms characteristic impedance, 4000 v rms max operating volt- age; single conductor, 7 strands of No 21 AWG copper wire, plain finish; synthetic resin insulation, 0.285" dia; single tinned copper shield; rd shape; 0.405" OD; black vinyl jacket; 12' Ig overall; 1 Navy type plug -49195 located at each end; marked: Ext. Osc; includes P-107, P-108	Ext Osc cable		‡	1; SA:8760	SA:8760	W-106	1				
W-107*	Cable assembly, RF: AN type RF coaxial cable No RG-8/U; 52 ohms characteristic impedance, 4000 v rms max operating voltage; single conductor, 7 strands of No 21 AWG copper wire, plain finish; synthetic resin insulation, 0.285" dia; single tinned copper shield;	RF Freq meter cable		. <b>‡</b>	1; SA:8758	SA:8758	W-107	1				

W-107* (cont)	rd shape, 0.405" OD; black vinyl jacket; 12' lg overall; 1 Navy type plug - 49195 located at each end; marked: Freq Meter RF; includes P-105, P-106									PARTS LIST
W-108*	Cable assembly, RF: AN type RF coaxial cable No RG-8/U; 52 ohms characteristic impedance, 4000 v rms max operating voltage; single conductor, 7 strands of No 21 AWG copper wire, plain finish; synthetic resin insulation, 0.285" dia; single tinned copper shield; rd shape, 0.405" OD; black vinyl jacket; 12' lg overall; 1 Navy type plug - 49195 located at each end; marked: Keyer Output; includes P-103, P-104	Keyer Output cable		ţ	1; SA:8759	SA:8759	W-108	1		ST
W-109†	Cable assembly, special purpose: 3 type RG-59/U conductors of No 22 AWG stranded wire w/poly- ethylene insulation; 10 type SR1R -1/2(7)-18 conductors of no 18 AWG stranded wire w/synthetic resin insulation; 10 type SR1R-1 (7)-20 conductors of No 20 AWG stranded wire w/synthetic resin insulation; vinylite tape w/lacquered covered nylon cord jacket; tinned copper braid shield around each of the 3 type RG-59/U conductors; 6' 3'' Ig o/a; 1 Cannon plug connector type DPD-33P w/special insert on first end; 1 Cannon plug connector type DPD-33S w/special insert on second end	Service cable	le	<b>‡</b>	1; SA:8903	SA:8903	W-109	1		NAVSHIPS 91543 KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
				STALS		-	- <b>-</b>		J	1
Y-101#	Crystal unit						Y-101, Y-102, Y-103	3		]
Y-102#	Same as Y-101									
Y-103#	Same as Y-101									
	an a	<u>.</u>	FILT	ERS						]
Z-101	Filter, low pass: 300 cycle cutoff, 0 to 300 cycle bandwidth; 5000 ohms input, 5000 ohms output; 3" $\lg \times 3$ " wd $\times 3^{13}$ %" h; round, metal case; four 0.1695" diam mtg holes on $2^{3}$ %" $\times 2^{3}$ %" mtg/c; 3			N16-F-44012 -8347	123	P623-1	Z-101	1		W-10
† \$ ‡ ]	Supplied on KY-58/GRT only Supplied on KY-75/SRT only Not furnished as a maintenance part. Government furnished	If failure occurs, do no	ot request replacem	ent unless the ite	m cannot be	repaired or fal	bricated.			107-Z-101

8-56

## TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

			PARTS						RE		UIP. PART	s
SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	STANDARD NAVY AND (SIGNAL CORPS) STOCK	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG - NATION	CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	KY-58 X 0	GRT	KY-7: X08	S/SRT
			FILTERS	NO. (continued)					8	0	4	0
Z-101 (cont)	solder lug .term; hermetically sealed; JAN-T-27 spec											
Z-102	Filter, low pass: 500 cycle cutoff, 0 to 500 cycle bandwidth; 5000 ohms input; 5000 ohms output; $3'' \lg \times 3'' wd \times 3^{13}_{16}''$ h; round, metal case; four 0.1695'' diam mtg holes on $2^{3}_{16}'' \times 2^{3}_{16}''$ mtg/c; 3 solder lug term; hermetically sealed; JAN-T-27 spec	100 dot-cycle filter		N16-F-44017 -3341	123	P622-1	Z-102	1				
Z-103	Filter, low pass: 1000 cycle cutoff; 0 to 1000 cycle bandwidth; 5000 ohms input, 5000 ohms output; $2^{9}_{16}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ lg $\times 2^{9}_{16}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ wd $\times 3^{5}_{16}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ h; round metal case; four 0.1695'' diam mtg holes on $2^{3}_{22}^{\prime\prime\prime} \times 2^{3}_{22}^{\prime\prime\prime}$ mtg/c; 3 solder lug term; hermeti- cally sealed; JAN-T-27 spec			N16-F-44028 -4351	123	P621-1	Z-103	1				
Z-104	Filter, low pass: 1200 cycle cutoff; 0 to 1200 cycle bandwidth; 5000 ohms input; 5000 ohms output; $2\%''$ lg $\times 2\%''_{6}$ wd $\times 35\%''_{6}$ h; round metal case; four 0.1695'' diam mtg holes on $2\%'_{2}$ $\times 2\%''_{2}$ mtg/c; 3 solder lug term; hermeti- cally sealed; JAN-T-27 spec	240 dot-cycle filter		N16-F-44030 -6361	123	P620-1	Z-104	1				
Z-105	Transformer, RF: 1 winding, 2 pie universal wnd; 43 microhenries to tap, 117 microhenries total at 1000 cycles; 45 turns to tap, 90 turns total of #10/41 ESN wire; 1.12 ohms to tap; 1.24 ohms total DC resistance; 200 kc $\pm$ 1 kc peak freq; tapped at 45 turns; alumi- num rectangular shield can w/caus- tic etch finish; $3^{11}/_{22}^{2''}$ lg $\times 2''$ wd $\times 1\%_{6}^{6''}$ d; glass melamine coil form w/powdered iron core; coil form $2^{13}/_{6}^{6''}$ lg $\times \frac{1}{22}^{\prime'}$ diam; ad- justable iron core tuning w/screw- driver adjustment thru bottom of can; two #6-32 mtg holes on 1.406''	V-107 plate tank			1; SA:8876	SA :8876	Z-105	1				

ORIGINAL

Z-105 (cont) Z-106	$\times$ 0.312" mtg/c; 4 stud type term located on bottom of can; includes L-104, C-121 Transformer, RF: 1 winding, uni- versal wound; 10 microhenries to tap, 205 microhenries total at 1000 cycles; 20 turns to tap, 99 turns total of #10/41 ESN wire; 0.52 ohms to tap, 2.89 ohms total; 200 kc ±1 kc peak freq; tapped at 20 turns; aluminum rectangular shield can w/caustic etch finish; 3 <sup>11</sup> / <sub>20</sub> " lg $\times$ 2" wd $\times$ 19/ <sub>6</sub> " d; glass mel- amine coil form 2 <sup>13</sup> / <sub>6</sub> " lg $\times$ ½" diam; adjustable iron core tuning w/screwdriver adjustment thru bottom of can; two #6-32 mtg holes on 1.406" $\times$ 0.312" mtg/c; 4 stud type term located on bottom; shield stamped L-103; part of E-119; includes C-115, C-116, L-103	V-107 grid tank			1; SA:8884	SA:8884	Z-106	1	K
			HEATERS						-58
HR-101	Resistor, fixed: wire wnd; body style no 16, MBCA ref dwg group 2; non-inductive wnd; 150 ohms $\pm 10\%$ ; 125 watt power dissipa- tion, 340°C max cont operating temp; $5\frac{3}{4}$ " lg $\times 3$ " wd $\times \frac{19}{22}$ " d; vitreous enamel coating, resistant to humidity; 2 solder lug, radial, term, $\frac{1}{2}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{6}$ " wd; requires vertical mtg brackets; two $\frac{7}{6}$ " lg $\times \frac{7}{22}$ " wd mtg holes; part of E-119	Oven heater		16-R-65732 318	190	P608-1	HR-101, HR-102, HR-103, HR-104	4	KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
HR-102	Same as HR-101; part of E-119	Oven heater							
HR-103	Same as HR-101; part of E-119	Oven heater				Ì			
HR-104	Same as HR-101; part of E-119	Oven heater							
	·····		TERMINAL BO	ARDS			_		 
TB-101	Terminal board: glass melamine; 9 double ended stud type term; w/o barrier; $4\frac{1}{2}$ " lg $\times$ 1" wd $\times$ 1 <sup>3</sup> / <sub>6</sub> " h; two 0.196" diam mtg holes spaced 4" c to c; 9 term marked 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9; wax impregnated panel; part of E-119	Terminal board		+	1; SA:8897	SA:8897	TB-101	1	
TB-102	Terminal board: glass melamine; 9 stud type term; w/o barrier; $4\frac{1}{2}''$ lg $\times$ 1" wd $\times$ $\frac{39}{64}''$ h; two 0.196" diam mtg holes spaced 4" Not furnished as a maintenance part.		aquat valaamant	‡	1; SA:8858	SA:8858	TB-102	1	105-18-102

 $\boldsymbol{\omega}$ Ú1

 $\boldsymbol{\omega}$ 

SYMBOL

DESIG.

**TB-102** 

**TB-104** 

(cont) **TB-103**  NAME OF PART AND

DESCRIPTION

c to c; 9 term marked 1, 2, 3, 4,

5, 6, 7, 8, 9; wax impregnated panel

Mounting: glass melamine; wax

impregnated; holds resistors or

capacitors by means of 2 term studs spaced 1.125" c to c; two 0.156" diam mtg holes spaced  $2V_{16}$ " c to c; for mtg resistors and capacitors; marked: C-133, R-187, C-135, C-138, C-134, R-176, R-186, C 127 C 1200 B 100

Mounting: glass melamine; wax

impregnated; holds resistors or capacitors by means of 2 term studs

spaced 1.125'' c to c; two 0.156''diam mtg holes spaced  $2\frac{1}{6}$  c to c; marked: R-180, C-119, R-179, R-178, C-160, R-177, C-117, C-113,

C-137, C-139, R-190

## TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

**TERMINAL BOARDS** (continued)

STANDARD NAVY

AND

(SIGNAL

CORPS)

STOCK

NO.

‡

‡

PARTS

JAN AND

(NAVY

TYPE)

NO.

FUNCTION

Terminal board

Terminal board

				R			rs	2-1
MEGR	CON-	· · · ·		KY-58	/GRT	KY -7	5/SRT	2-TB-106
AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION	TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	BOX	QUAN.	вох	QUAN.	90
				1				
; A :8881	SA:8881	TB-103	1					×
	SA:8883	TB-104	1					KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
; A :8882	SA:8882	TB-105	1					Y-75/SRT
	MFGR'S. DESIG -	MPGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION   TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.     ;   SA:8881     ;   SA:8883     ;   SA:8883     ;   SA:8883	MPGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION   TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.   All SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED     ; A:8881   SA:8881   TB-103     ; A:8883   SA:8883   TB-104     ; A:8883   SA:8882   TB-104	MPGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION   TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.   All SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED   TOT. NO.     ;   SA:8881   TB-103   1     ;   SA:8883   TB-103   1     ;   SA:8883   TB-104   1     ;   SA:8882   TB-105   1	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO. ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED TOT. NO. PER EQ.   3.18881 SA:8881 TB-103 1   3.18883 SA:8883 TB-104 1   3.18883 SA:8882 TB-105 1	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO. All SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED TOT. NO. PER EQ. KY -58 /GRT XO.   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X , X , X   , X , X , X , X	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO. ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED TOT. NO. KY-58/GRT KY-72   j. A:8881 PART NO. SM:8881 TOT. DESIG. INVOLVED TOT. NO. j. Z <t< td=""><td>MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING &amp; PART NO. ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED KY-58/GRT KY-75/SRT   X DESIG- NATION DRAW- ING &amp; PART NO. JI X X X   X DESIG. DESIG. INVOLVED DESIG. INVOLVED EQ. X X X   X SA:8881 TB-103 1 I I I I   X SA:8883 TB-104 1 I I I I   X SA:8882 TB-105 1 I I I I</td></t<>	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG- NATION CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO. ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED KY-58/GRT KY-75/SRT   X DESIG- NATION DRAW- ING & PART NO. JI X X X   X DESIG. DESIG. INVOLVED DESIG. INVOLVED EQ. X X X   X SA:8881 TB-103 1 I I I I   X SA:8883 TB-104 1 I I I I   X SA:8882 TB-105 1 I I I I

Impregnated; holds resistors or capacitors by means of 2 term studs spaced 1.125" c to c; two 0.156" diam mtg holes spaced 1.14%" c to c; for mtg resistors and capacitors, marked: R-195, C-143, C-144, R-191, R-192, R-193, C-145   Terminal board   I;   SA:3896   TB-106   I     TB-106   Mounting: glass melamine; wax capacitors by means of 2 term studs spaced 1.125" c to c; four or capacitors by means of 2 term studs spaced 1.125" c to c; four or capacitors by means of 2 term studs spaced 1.125" c to c; four or capacitors by means of 2 term studs spaced 1.125" c to c; four or capacitors by means of 2 term studs spaced 1.125" c to c; four or capacitors, marked: R-100, R-113, R-113, R-106, R-112, R-100, R-108, R-112, R-100, R-108, R-112, R-100, R-105, R-106, R-106, R-105, R-106, R-105, R-106, R-106, R-105, R-106, R-106, R-106, R-106, R-109, C-108, R-1109, R-108, R-105, R-106, R-106, R-109, R-108, R-100, R-106, R-100, R-108, R-100, R-108, R-100, R-106, R-105, R-106, R-106, R-105, R-106, R-106, R-106, R-105, R-100, R-106, R-105, R-106, R			C-110								3 5/S
<b>R </b>		TB-105	impregnated; holds resistors or capacitors by means of 2 term studs spaced 1.125" c to c; two 0.156" diam mtg holes spaced $1^{11}/_{6}$ " c to c; for mtg resistors and capacitors, marked: R-195, C-143,		+	1; SA:8882	SA:8882	TB-105	1		/SRT
<b>F</b> I R-170, R-142, R-124	ORIGINAL	TB-106	impregnated; holds resistors or capacitors by means of 2 term studs spaced $1.125''$ c to c; four 0.156'' diam mtg holes spaced $3^{1}4'', 3^{9}_{16}'',$ and $3^{1}4''$ c to c at $2^{3}_{22}''$ from one end of panel; for mtg resistors and capacitors, marked: R-110, R-111, R-113, R-118, R-109, R-108, R-112, R-120, R-115, R-103, R-105, R-104, R-163, C-105, R-166, R-165, R-121, R-119, R-123, R-125, R-101, C-107, R-167, C-108, R-169, C-109, R-164,		‡	1; SA:8896	SA:8896	TB-106	1		PARTS LIST

TB-102-Section

EQUIP.

 $\boldsymbol{\omega}$ 

Fuse holder: extractor post type; 15 v, 15 amp; accommodates 1 artridge fuse $1\frac{1}{4}$ " lg $\times \frac{1}{4}$ " diam; nolded black bakelite body; nickel blated brass contacts, tension ype; $2\frac{7}{16}$ " lg $\times \frac{4}{4}$ " diam; 2 older lug term; thrded body for $\frac{6}{2}$ " diam mtg holes Same as XF-101 Same as XF-101 Same as XF-101 Light, indicator: supplied w/amber ens, smooth faced w/frosted back,	F-101 fuse holder F-102 fuse holder F-103 fuse holder F-101 thru F-103 spare fuse holder	N17-F-74266 -9235	324	H477-1	XF-101 thru XF-106	6	
Same as XF-101 Same as XF-101 Light, indicator: supplied w/amber ens, smooth faced w/frosted back,	F-103 fuse holder F-101 thru F-103						
Same as XF-101 Light, indicator: supplied w/amber ens, smooth faced w/frosted back,	F-101 thru F-103						
Light, indicator: supplied w/amber ens, smooth faced w/frosted back,							
ens, smooth faced w/frosted back,							
$\frac{1}{2}$ diam; friction mtd lens holder; accommodates T-3 $\frac{1}{4}$ lamp, MBCA ef dwg group 7; miniature bayo- net base; 6 to 8 v. 0.15 amp; enclosed brass shell w/black nickel inish; 2 $\frac{3}{8}$ " lg $\times$ $\frac{3}{4}$ " diam; one $\frac{1}{6}$ " diam mtg hole required; ac- commodates up to $\frac{3}{6}$ " thick panel; norizontally mtd, lamp replaceable from front of panel; 2 solder lug erm located on opposite side of pase, both insulated from shell; IAN-I-6 spec	I-101 lamp holder		317	P616-1	XI-101	1	
Diffusor, light: concentric type; prass w/black nickel finish; ${}^{13}/_{16}''$ $g \times {}^{13}/_{16}''$ diam over-all; mts by ${}^{\prime\prime}_{16}''-27$ male threaded bushing, ${}^{\prime\prime}_{16}''$ lg; part of XI-101	XI-101 dimmer		317	P616-4	XI-101A	1	
Light, indicator: supplied w/red ens, smooth faced w/frosted back, $\frac{1}{2}$ diam; friction mtd lens nolder; accommodates T-3 $\frac{1}{4}$ lamp, MBCA ref dwg group 7; miniature bayonet base; 6 to 8 v; 0.15 amp; enclosed brass shell w/black nickel finish; $2\frac{3}{8}$ lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ diam; one $\frac{1}{6}$ diam mtg hole required; ac- commodates up to $\frac{3}{6}$ thick panel; norizontally mtd, lamp replaceable from front of panel; 2 solder lug term located on opposite side of base, both insulated from shell; JAN-I-6 spec			317	P616-2	XI-102	1	
Diffusor, light: concentric type; brass w/black nickel finish; ${}^{15}\!/_{6}''$ lg $\times$ ${}^{13}\!/_{6}''$ diam over-all; mts by			317	P616-5	XI-102A	1	
energin boar waard Dong 2014 Lie aan Maarin boar tebu. Dolg	f dwg group 7; miniature bayo- the base; 6 to 8 v, 0.15 amp; helosed brass shell w/black nickel nish; $23_8'' \mid lg \times 34''$ diam; one $f_6''$ diam mtg hole required; ac- mmodates up to $3_{6}''$ thick panel; prizontally mtd, lamp replaceable om front of panel; 2 solder lug rm located on opposite side of ase, both insulated from shell; AN-I-6 spec iffusor, light: concentric type; rass w/black nickel finish; $^{15}_{6}''$ $\times ^{13}_{6}''$ diam over-all; mts by $f_6''$ -27 male threaded bushing, $f_6''$ diam; friction mtd lens older; accommodates T-3/4 lamp, IBCA ref dwg group 7; miniature ayonet base; 6 to 8 v; 0.15 amp; holosed brass shell w/black nickel nish; $23_8'''$ lg $\times 34'''$ diam; one $f_6'''$ diam mtg hole required; ac- mmodates up to $3_{6}''$ thick panel; prizontally mtd, lamp replaceable om front of panel; 2 solder lug erm located on opposite side of ase, both insulated from shell; AN-I-6 spec biffusor, light: concentric type; rass w/black nickel finish; $^{15}_{6}'''$ ; $\times ^{13}_{16}'''$ diam over-all; mts by	f dwg group 7; miniature bayo- t base; 6 to 8 v. 0.15 amp; helosed brass shell w/black nickel hish; $2\frac{3}{5}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " diam; one fe'' diam mtg hole required; ac- mmodates up to $\frac{3}{16}$ " thick panel; prizontally mtd, lamp replaceable om front of panel; 2 solder lug rm located on opposite side of ase, both insulated from shell; AN-I-6 spec iffusor, light: concentric type; rass w/black nickel finish; $\frac{15}{16}$ " $\times \frac{13}{16}$ " diam over-all; mts by $\frac{6''}{27}$ male threaded bushing, $\frac{6''}{19}$ ; part of XI-101 ight, indicator: supplied w/red ns, smooth faced w/frosted lack, $\frac{1}{2}$ " diam; friction mtd lens blder; accommodates T-3 $\frac{1}{4}$ lamp, (BCA ref dwg group 7; miniature ayonet base; 6 to 8 v; 0.15 amp; helosed brass shell w/black nickel nish; $2\frac{3}{8}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " diam; one $\frac{16}{16}$ " diam mtg hole required; ac- mmodates up to $\frac{3}{16}$ " thick panel; prizontally mtd, lamp replaceable om front of panel; 2 solder lug prim located on opposite side of ase, both insulated from shell; AN-I-6 spec biffusor, light: concentric type; rass w/black nickel finish; $\frac{15}{16}$ " ; $\times \frac{13}{16}$ " diam over-all; mts by	f dwg group 7; miniature bayo- te base; 6 to 8 v. 0.15 amp; telosed brass shell w/black nickel hish; $2\frac{3}{6}$ " lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ " diam; one f6" diam mtg hole required; ac- mmodates up to $\frac{3}{60}$ " thick panel; brizontally mtd, lamp replaceable om front of panel; 2 solder lug rm located on opposite side of ise, both insulated from shell; AN-I-6 spec iffusor, light: concentric type; $\times ^{13}/6$ " diam over-all; mts by 6''-27 male threaded bushing, 7'' lg; part of XI-101 ight, indicator: supplied w/red ns, smooth faced w/frosted ack, $\frac{1}{2}$ " ligx $\frac{3}{4}$ " diam; one f6'' diam mtg hole required; ac- mmodates up to $\frac{3}{6}$ " thick panel; orizontally mtd, lamp replaceable om front of panel; 2 solder lug rm located on opposite side of ase, both insulated from shell; AN-I-6 spec iffusor, light: concentric type; rass w/black nickel finish; $\frac{15}{6}$ " XI-102 dimmer rass w/black nickel finish; $\frac{15}{6}$ " XI-102 dimmer XI-102 dimmer	f dwg group 7; miniature bayo- te base; 6 to 8 v. 0.15 amp; lelosed brass shell w/black nickel hish; 23%'' lg $\times$ 3%4'' diam; one 6%'' diam mig hole required; ac- mmodates up to 3%6'' thick panel; prizontally mtd, lamp replaceable on front of panel; 2 solder lug rm located on opposite side of use, both insulated from shell; NN-I-6 spec ''27 male threaded bushing, 5''1g; part of XI-101 ight, indicator: supplied w/red ns, smooth faced w/frosted ck, ½2'' diam; freiton mtd lens plder; accommodates T-3¼ lamp, IBCA ref dwg group 7; miniature yonet base; 6 to 8 v. 0.15 amp; nclosed brass shell w/black nickel mish; 23%'' lg $\times$ 3%4'' diam; one 6'' diam mtg hole required; ac- mmodates up to 3%4'' thick panel; rrizontally mtd, lamp replaceable om front of panel; 2 solder lug rm located on opposite side of ase, both insulated from shell; NN-I-6 spec tiffusor, light: concentric type; XI-102 dimmer rass w/black nickel finish; $^{15}6''$ $\times$ 13%6'' diam over-all; mts by 317	f dwg group 7; miniature bayo- it base; 6 to 8 v, 0.15 amp; ielosed brass shell w/black nickel hish, 2%' lg $\times$ 4'' diam; one 6'' diam mig hole required; ac- mmodates up to 3''' thick panel; orizontally mtd, lamp replaceable on front of panel; 2 solder lug tse, both insulated from shell; AN-I-6 spec iffusor, light: concentric type; $\times$ 13''' diam over-all; mts by 6''-27 male threaded bushing, 7'' 12; part of XI-101 ight, indicator: supplied w/red nes, smooth faced w/frosted leck, $\frac{1}{2''}$ diam; friction mtd lens hder; accommodates T-31/4 lamp, PECA ref dwg group 7; miniature ayonet base; 6 to 8 v; 0.15 amp; iclosed brass shell w/black nickel nish; 23's'' lg $\times$ 34'' diam; one 6'' diam mtg hole required; ac- mmodates up 13's'' thick panel; prizontally mtd, lamp replaceable of from front of panel; 2 solder lug rem located on opposite side of use, both insulated from shell; AN-I-6 spec iffusor, light: concentric type; iffusor, light: concentric type; XI-102 dimmer rass w/black nickel finish; 15's'' XI-102 dimmer ass w/black nickel finish; 15's''	f dwg group 7; miniature bayo- t base; 6 to 8 v. 0.15 amp; helosed brass shell w/black nickel ish: $23\%'$ ig $\times 34''$ diam; one 6'' diam mtg hole required; ac- mmodates up to $36''$ thick panel; prizontally mtd, lamp replaceable om front of panel; 2 solder lug rm located on opposite side of see, both insulated from shell; NN-1-6 spec ''2-7 male threaded bushing; ''2-7 male threaded from shell; AN-1-6 spec ifflusor, light: concentric type; 'X-102 dimmer ''2-6 minodates up to $317$ P616-5 XI-102A	f dwg group 7; miniature bayo- t base; 6 to 8 v. 0.15 amp; nelosed brass shell w/black nickel mish; 23% [ kg 34' diam; one f' diam mg hole required; ac- mmodates up to 36' thick panel; rizontally mt, lamp replaceable on front of panel; 2 solder lug m beated on opposite side of ise, both insulated from shell; NJ-16 spee iffusor, light: concentric type; '27 male threaded bushing, '27 male threaded bushing, '28 part of XI-101 ight, indicator: supplied w/red ns, smooth faced w/frosted kk, ½° diam over-all; mis by '27 miniature ayonet base; 6 to 8 v; 0.15 amp; nicotally mt lamp replaceable on front of panel; 2 solder lug ram located on opposite side of ise, both insulated from shell; NN-16 spee XI-102 dimmer is x ½% (' diam over-all; mts by 'XI-102 dimmer 'XI-102 dimmer

8--60

#### TABLE 8-4. COMBINED PARTS AND REPAIR PARTS LIST FOR KEYERS KY-58/GRT AND KY-75/SRT

PARTS

8 Section XI-102A-XV-116

EQUIP. REPAIR PARTS

NAVSHIPS 91543

SYMBOL DESIG.	NAME OF PART AND DESCRIPTION	FUNCTION	JAN AND (NAVY TYPE) NO.	STANDARD NAVY AND (SIGNAL ĆORPS) STOCK NO.	MFGR. AND MFGR'S. DESIG - NATION	CON- TRACTOR DRAW- ING & PART NO.	ALL SYMBOL DESIG. INVOLVED	TOT. NO. PER EQ.	KY-5 XOg	8 /GRT NYNO	KY-7 XOg	S /SRT
			SOCKETS	(continued)	.I							
XI-102A (cont)	%6"-27 male threaded bushing, %6" lg; part of XI-102											
XI-103	Light, indicator: supplied w/white lens, smooth faced w/frosted back, $\frac{1}{2}$ diam; friction mtd lens holder; accommodates T-3 $\frac{1}{4}$ lamp; MBCA ref dwg group 7; miniature bayonet base; 6 to 8 v, 0.15 amp; enclosed brass shell w/black nickel finish; $2\frac{3}{8}$ lg $\times \frac{3}{4}$ diam; one $\frac{1}{16}$ diam mtg hole required; accommo- dates up to $\frac{3}{6}$ thick panel; hori- zontally mtd, lamp replaceable from front of panel; 2 solder lug term located on opposite side of base, both insulated from shell; JAN-I-6 spec	I-103 lamp holder			317	P616-3	XI-103	1				
XI-103A	Diffusor, light: concentric type; brass w/black nickel finish; ${}^{15}{}_{16}''$ lg × ${}^{13}{}_{16}''$ diam over-all; mts by ${}^{9}{}_{16}''$ -27 male threaded bushing, ${}^{3}{}_{16}''$ lg; part of XI-103	XI-103 dimmer			317	P616-6	XI-103A	1				
XR-101	Socket, electron tube: 8 silver plated phosphor bronze contacts; medium size; round shape; $1\frac{7}{8}''$ lg $\times 1\frac{1}{2}''$ wd $\times \frac{3}{16}''$ d o/a; grade L-4 ceramic body; under chassis mtg; two 0.152'' diam mtg holes spaced $1\frac{1}{2}''$ c to c; $1\frac{3}{16}''$ diam chassis hole required	R-203 socket	(-49398)	N16-S-63517 -6481	1; SA:2640	SA:2640	XR-101, XV-101 thru XV-111, XV-113 thru XV-116	16				
XV-101 thru XV-111	Same as XR-101	V-101 thru V-111 tube socket										
XV-112	Socket, electron tube: 5 silver plated phosphor bronze contacts; medium size; round; $1\frac{3}{6}$ " o/a diam $\times$ 0.385" d, excl term; grade L-5 ceramic body; requires re- tainer ring mtg; $1\frac{3}{6}$ " chassis hole required; JAN-I-10 spec	XV-112 tube socket		N16-S-61704 -1060	1; SA:2627	SA:2627	XV-112	1				
XV-113 thru XV-116	Same as XR-101	V-113 thru V-116 tube socket										

PARTS LIST

ORIGINAL	XY-101	Socket, crystal: accommodates 0.115" diam contact pins spaced 0.500" apart; medium sized; rec- tangular shape; $1\frac{1}{16}$ " lg $\times \frac{1}{16}$ " wd $\times \frac{5}{16}$ " d; grade L-5 ceramic body; above chassis mtg; two 0.375" diam, and one 0.125" diam, chassis holes required; one 0.125" diam mtg hole on center line; part of E-119	Y-101 holder	(-492000)	N16-S-54393 -7314	1; SA:5030	SA:5030	XY-101, XY-102, XY-103	3		PARTS LIST
	XY-102	Same as XY-101; part of E-119	Y-102 holder								
	XY-103	Same as XY-101; part of E-119	Y-103 holder								
	XY-104	Socket, crystal: accommodates 0.145" diam contact pins spaced 0.750" apart; medium sized; rec- tangular shaped; $1\frac{1}{8}$ " lg $\times \frac{1}{2}$ " wd $\times \frac{15}{2}$ " d; grade L-5 ceramic body; above chassis mtg; two 0.313" diam, and one 0.144" diam, chassis holes required; one 0.144" diam mtg hole on center line; part of E-119	Y-101 holder			1; SA:8899	SA:8899	XY-104, XY-105, XY-106	3		KY-5
	XY-105	Same as XY-104; part of E-119	Y-102 holder								80 X
	XY-106	Same as XY-104; part of E-119	Y-103 holder								RT
											NAVSHIPS 91543 -58/GRT and KY-75/SRT
861		A									Section 8 XY-101-XY-106

## TABLE 8-5. CROSS REFERENCE PARTS LIST

JAN DESIGNATIONS	KEY SYMBOL	JAN DESIGNATIONS	KEY SYMBOL	STANDARD NAVY STOCK NO.	KEY SYMBOL	STANDARD NAVY STOCK NO.	KEY SYMBOL	STANDARD NAVY STOCK NO.	KEY SYMBOL
AN3057-6	0-149	RC30BF102K	R-191	N16-C-32641-6328	C-121	N16-R-65619-7696	R-182	N17-S-61497-1571	S-103
AN3057-10	0-115 0-187	RC30BF103K	R-103	N16-C-32646-6808	C-111	N16-R-65732-1318	HR-101	N17-S-62120-9601	S-103 S-102
AN3064-8	0-189	RC30BF104K	R-101	N16-C-33627-7705	C-105	N16-R-66214-5436	R-181	N17-S-66104-4501	
AN3064-10	0-183	RC30BF104K	R-163	N16-C-45777-1074	C-105 C-118	N16-R-78964-7599			S-101
AN3102-14S-1P	J-101	RC30BF103K RC30BF123J	R-105 R-196	N16-C-45777-3177			R-141	N17-S-66533-6071	S-104
					C-153	N16-R-78987-6666	R-140	N17-S-69871-7951	S-110
AN3106B-14S-1P	P-110	RC30BF151K	R-194	N16-C-47297-1111	C-103	N16-R-79154-5459	R-129	N17-S-73028-9028	S-108
AN3106B-14S-1S	P-109	RC30BF152K	R-121	N16-C-48817-1090	C-102	N16-R-79173-5665	R-128	N17-S-91897-8781	S-107A
CC21SL050C	C-155	RC30BF221K	R-107	N16-C-49221-9933	C-101	N16-R-79193-3519	R-131	N17-S-250051-276	O-191
CC21SL220K	C-123	RC30BF222K	R-110	N16-C-49981-9993	C-157	N16-R-79193-6399	R-132	N18-T-3095-110	M-102
CC21SL470K	C-133	RC30BF223K	R-124	N16-C-53204-4098	C-161	N16-R-79298-6139	R-172	N41-W-2446	H-101
CM20B271K	C-117	RC30BF224K	R-108	N16-C-61716-5075	C-114	N16-R-79321-2251	R-137		
CM30E132J	C-107	RC30BF273K	R-185	N16-C-63576-1001	C-127	N16-R-87419-5160	R-116		
CM35A102K	C-110	RC30BF332K	R-105	N16-C-63965-2800	C-129	N16-R-90754-3631	R-117		
CM35B103M	C-105	RC30BF333K	R-176	N16-C-170001-333	H-103	N16-R-90754-3965	R-161		
CM35B472J	C-121	RC30BF334K	R-167	N16-C-300442-625	O-101	N16-R-90933-3980	R-106		
CM35B472K	C-111	RC30BF471K	R-115	N16-C-300798-452	O-111	N16-R-91031-1135	R-114		
CM35E272J	C-116	RC30BF472K	R-113	N16-C-300798-621	<b>O-114</b>	N16-R-91291-4930	R-122		
CM35E621J	C-115	RC30BF473K	R-165	N16-C-300798-866	Ö-110	N16-R-92495-9360	R-143		
CP06SA2	0-135	RC30BF475K	R-183	N16-F-44012-8347	Z-101	N16-R-501081-117	O-137		
CP06SA4	0-130	RC30BF680K	R-104	N16-F-44017-3341	Z-102	N16-S-20980-3492	0-121		
CP06SA6	0-132	RC30BF681K	R-118	N16-F-44028-4351	Z-102 Z-103	N16-S-21048-7974	O-121 O-120		
CP41B1DF205V	C-101	RC30BF682K	R-111	N16-F-44030-6361	Z-103 Z-104	N16-S-54393-7314	XY-101		
CP41B1DF405V	C-157	RC30BF821J	R-164	N16-H-150001-289	0-162	N16-S-61704-1060	XV-112		
CP54B1EF104K	C-157	RC41BF103K	R-104 R-198	N16-H-500001-131	0-162 0-173	N16-S-63517-6481			
CP54B6EF104V	C-155 C-161	RV2AYSA504F	R-198 R-162		E-113		XR-101		
CP61B1EF104K				N16-K-700310-997		N16-T-53030	V-114		
	C-118	RW32D4RO	R-199	N16-K-700346-101	E-105	N16-T-53060	V-113		
CP61B1EF105K	C-102	RW32F402	R-181	N16-M-60906-8018	0-132	N16-T-55464	V-116		
CP61B1EF504K	C-103	RW33G632	R-202	N16-M-60958-3571	O-135	N16-T-56090	R-203		
CV11B130	C-129	TB-14	I-101	N16-M-60958-3591	O-130	N16-T-56140	V-111		
CY-1132/GRT	A-104	OA3/VR75	V-114	N16-M-61518-6457	O-119	N16-T-56346	V-101		
CY-1133/SRT	A-105	OD3/VR150	V-113	N16-R-29190-2218	L-122	N16-T-56350	V-104		
MR25W001DCMA	M-101	5U4G	V-116	N16-R-49500-0231	R-104	N16-T-56611	V-108		
RA20ASA252AK	R-116	6-4	R-203	N16-R-49626-0231	R-194	N16-T-56684-25	V-103		
RA20A2RD751AK	R-102	6AC7W	V-111	N16-R-49662-0231	R-107	N16-T-68070	V-112		
RA20A2SA102AK	R-117	6H6	V-101	N16-R-49770-0231	R-115	N17-C-70328-1332	P-109		
RA20A2SA103AK	R-122	6J5	V-104	N16-R-49842-0231	R-118	N17-C-70588-1329	P-110		
RA20A2SA352AK	R-106	6SA7	V-108	N16-R-49876-0751	R-164	N17-C-71413-4752	P-103		
RA20A2SA502AK	R-114	6SJ7W	V-105	N16-R-49923-0231	R-191	N17-C-72604-1338	J-101		
RA25B2FG102AK	R-161	6SN7WGT	V-103	N16-R-49968-0231	R-121	N17-C-73108-5890	J-109		
RB10B02110F RB10B02900F	R-141	807	V-112	N16-R-50013-0231	R-110	N17-C-73471-6417	J-103		
RD10D02900F	R-140			N16-R-50067-0231	R-105	N17-C-781366-251	O-149		
RB10B03310F	R-139			N16-R-50130-0231	R-113	N17-C-781444-504	O-186		
RB10B04620F	R-138	STANDARD NAVY	KEY	N16-R-50202-0231	R-111	N17-C-800646-151	E-121		
RB10B07640F	R-134	STOCK NO.	SYMBOL	N16-R-50283-711	R-198	N17-C-805751-551	O-140		
RB10B11340F	R-135			N16-R-50283-0231	R-103	N17-F-16302-60	F-103		
RB10B22000F	R-136			N16-R-50308-0751	R-196	N17-F-16302-160	F-101		
RB10B25000F	R-172	G17-L-6297	I-101	N16-R-50373-0231	R-124	N17-F-74266-9235	XF-101		
RB10B26600F	R-129	N16-B-750001-523	O-178	N16-R-50400-0231	R-185	N17-G-161530-484	O-129		
RB10B36561F	R-137	N16-C-15625-4505	C-155	N16-R-50418-0231	R-176	N17-I-49475-1171	E-103		
RB10B38300F	R-128	N16-C-16157-6400	C-123	N16-R-50481-0231	R-165	N17-I-69154-6206	E-104		
RB10B42200F	R-127	N16-C-16541-7014	C-133	N16-R-50634-0231	R-101	N17-J-39248-4423	J-112		
RB10B44150F	R-126	N16-C-29613-2676	C-117	N16-R-50715-0231	R-108	N17-M-19255-1051	M-101		
RB10B46100F	R-130	N16-C-30373-1943	C-115	N16-R-50760-0231	R-167	N17-M-75215-9751	O-176		
RB10B47080F	R-131	N16-C-31090-4203	C-110	N16-R-50976-0231	R-163	N17-R-64246-4619	K-101		
RB10B47400F	R-132	N16-C-31349-1699	C-107	N16-R-51174-0231	R-183	N17-R-650211-112	O-150		
RB10B48050F	R-133	N16-C-32140-4743	C-116						

**8** 

ç S S







PARTS LIST

## TABLE 8-7. LIST OF MANUFACTURERS

1 CXA National Company, Inc. 61 Shorman St. Mallen, Mass.   3 CHH Arrows Hart & Hageman Elect. Co. 102 How Horners St., Institute, Conn.   3 CHK Mailory, P. R. Co., Inc. 102 How Horners St., Institute, Conn.   11 CMC Clarostat Mig. Co. 230 W. Yan Buren St., Chickengo, Ill.   13 CSF Sprage Electric Co. 230 W. Yan Buren St., Chickengo, Ill.   14 CAW Aerovox Corp. 72 Elelevile Ave., New Belford, Mass.   15 CG Mass. Machine Shop 72 Elelevile Ave., New Eleford, Mass.   36 CIR International Resistance Co. 401 No. Broad St., Philadelphia, Pa.   36 CIR International Resistance Co. 401 No. Broad St., Philadelphia, Pa.   37 CAN American Lava Corp. 403 No. Broad St., Philadelphia, Pa.   38 CPF General Cernation & Statuite Corp. 403 No. Broad St., Philadelphia, Pa.   39 Cutu Hubbel Harvey Co. 403 No. Sto. Boston, Mass.   312 Cutu Hubbel Harvey Co. 400 N. Clybourne Ave., New Jersey   313 Cutu Mig. Co. 308 N. Cutu Mig. Co.   314 Cutu Hubbel Harvey Co. 400 N. Clybourne Ave., Neago, Ill.   315 Cutu Hubbel Harvey Co. 400 N. Clybourne Ave., Neago, Ill.   3	CODE NO.	MFR'S PREFIX	NAME	ADDRESS
3   CHH   Arrow-Hart & Hegeman Elect. Co.     5   CMA   Mailory, F. R. Co., Inc.     8   CMG   Clanots Mg. Co.     9   Clanots Mg. Co.   238 W. Yan Buren St., Initianolis, Ind.     11   Correct Mg. St., Dorkingo, III.   288 W. Yan Buren St., Chicago, III.     13   Carnots Mg. Co.   288 W. Yan Buren St., Chicago, III.     14   CAW   Aerovax Corp.   700 Performance St., Initianolis, Ind.     14   CAW   Aerovax Corp.   700 Performance St., Initianolis, Ind.     14   CAW   Aerovax Corp.   700 Performance St., Initianolis, Ind.     15   CG   General Electric Co. (Lamp Dept.)   700 Performance St., Philadelphia, Pa.     16   CIR   Initiational Sheet Products Corp.   700 Performance St., Philadelphia, Pa.     17   Corp.   Corp.   700 Performance St., Philadelphia, Pa.     18   Corp.   700 Performance St., Philadelphia, Pa.     19   Corp.   700 Performance St., Philadelphia, Pa.     10   Corp.   700 Performance St., Philadelphia, Pa.     11   Corp.   700 Performance St., Philadelphia, Pa.     110   Corp.   7	1		National Company, Inc.	61 Sherman St., Malden, Mass.
5   CMA   Mallory, P. R. Co.; Inc.     8   CMC   Carockat Mig. Co.     11   CMC   Clarostat Mig. Co.     12   CMC   Clarostat Mig. Co.     13   CMC   Clarostat Mig. Co.     14   CMC   Clarostat Mig. Co.     15   CG   General Electric Co. (Lamp Dept.)     16   CG   General Electric Co., Camp Dept.)     17   Mass. Machine Shop   National Lava Corp.     18   CG   Carostat Mig. Co.     19   Clarostat Mig. Co.   Charostat Mig. Co.     20   CR   International Resistance Co.     11   COC   Carostat Steatite Corp.   Charostat Mig. Co.     20   CHU   Hubbel Harvey Co.   Cross Mill Rd. Kcaeby, Nav Jersey     30   CHU   Hubbel Harvey Co.   Cross Mill Rd. Kcaeby, Nav Jersey     311   COC   Oak Mig. Co.   Cross Mill Rd. Kcaeby, Nav Jersey     32   CHU   Hubbel Harvey Co.   Cross Mill Rd. Kcaeby, Nav Jersey     33   CER   Lawarea Phonelic Corp.   Cross Mill Rd. Kcaeby, Nav Jersey     34   COC   Oak Mig.		CHH	Arrow-Hart & Hegeman Elect. Co.	102 Hawthorne St., Hartford, Conn.
8   CMG   Click Mig. Co.   2339 W. Van Buren St., Chicago, II.     11   CMC   Clarotsta Mig. Co.   2339 W. Van Buren St., Chicago, II.     13   CSF   Sprague Electric Co.   742 Bellow Z. New Bedford, Mass.     14   CM   Aerovor Corp.   742 Bellow Z. New Bedford, Mass.     15   CG   Humason Mig. Co.   743 Bellow Z. New Bedford, Mass.     16   CAS   American Lava Corp.   743 Bellow Z. New Bedford, Mass.     16   CAS   American Lava Corp.   740 Bellow Z. New Bedford, Mass.     17   Latitluke, Inc.   111   Core Corp.     18   CBR   Eatitluke, Inc.   767     111   Core Oak Mig. Co.   Cores Mill Bal, Kasabay, New Jersey     111   Core Oak Mig. Co.   1230 CVT   United Transformer Corp.     123   CVT   Lord Mig. Co.   1240 N. Chicago, III.     124   CPII   American Phenolic Corp.   1230 N. Chicago, III.     128   CVI   Ward Leonard Co.   1230 N. Mass.     1290   CAN W. Campet Corp.   1240 N. Chicago, III.     128   CVI   Mass. Malden, Mass.   1200 N. Sthester A	5	CMA	Mallory, P. R. Co., Inc.	1941 Thomas St., Indianapolis, Ind.
11CMCClarostal Mfg. Co.13CFFSprague Electric Co.14CAWAerovox Corp.15CGGeneral Electric Co.16Carastan Mfg. Co.17CAWAmerican Laya Corp.18CRAmerican Laya Corp.19CIRInternational Resistance Co.10Laminated Sheel Froducts Corp.11COCGeneral Caranics & Steatite Corp.12CIPGeneral Caranics & Steatite Corp.13CIRHubbel Sheel Froducts Corp.14COCGeneral Caranics & Steatite Corp.15CAYLood Mfg. Co.16Curr Unit Mfg. Co.17CocNational Lockwasher Co.18Corp.19CocVational Lockwasher Co.11CocUrid Mfg. Co.128CPHLord Mfg. Co.139CHUHabeler Co.130CAXSangano Electric Co.137CANSangano Electric Co.138CYWeston Electric Instrument Corp.139CHUElectro Matr. Co.143CUCCondenser Co.154Curr Electro Instrument Corp.155Caranic Alernatic Con.156Curr Electro Instrument Corp.157CAXHCaneled Rubber Co.158Curr Electro Instrument Corp.159Curr Electro Instrument Corp.150Curr Electro Co.153Chr Electro Instrument Corp.154Curr Electr	8	CMG	Cinch Mfg. Co.	2339 W. Van Buren St., Chicago, Ill.
13CSF A derove Corp.Sprague Electric Co. (Lamp Dept.)N. Adams, Mass.14CGGeneral Electric Co. (Lamp Dept.)742 Beleville Ave., New Bedford, Mass.14CGGeneral Electric Co. (Lamp Dept.)742 Beleville Ave., New Bedford, Mass.16CASAmerican Lay Corp.742 Beleville Ave., New Bedford, Mass.17CASAmerican Lay Corp.742 Beleville Ave., New Bedford, Mass.18CASAmerican Lay Corp.742 Beleville Ave., New Bedford, Mass.19CASAmerican Lay Corp.742 Beleville Ave., New Bedford, Mass.11CocCasta K Statilie Corp.743 Beleville Ave., Chicago, IL.123CurtUnited Transformer Corp.747 Beleville Ave., Chicago, IL.124CurtUnited Transformer Corp.747 Beleville Ave., Chicago, IL.125CANSongano Electric Co.748 Variek St., New York, N. Y.138CAHCambed Ruber Co.748 Variek Mass.139CANSongano Electric Co.749 Beleville Ave., Chicago, IL.149Cande Habber Co.740 Nass.158CANSongano Electric Co.740 Nass.158CANSongano Electric Co.740 Nass.159CANSongano Electric Co.740 Sengan, Mass.150CANWeise Helectric Co.740 Sengan, Mass.151CANSongano Electric Co.740 Sengan, Mass.152CANSongano Electric Co.740 Sengan, Mass.153CANSongano Electric Co.	11	CMC	Clarostat Mfg. Co.	285–287 N. 6th St., Brooklyn, N. Y.
14   CAW   Aeroiva Corp.     18   CG   General Electric Co. (Lamp Dept.)     23   Humason Mig. Co.     24   Mass. Machine Shop     26   CN   Marrian Lava Corp.     27   Belleville Ave., New Bedford, Mass.     28   Cher Keisen Corp.     29   Cher Keisen Corp.     20   Cher Keisen Corp.     21   Littlefase, Inc.     23   Cher Keisen Corp.     24   Eric Resistor Corp.     25   CCT     26   CH     27   Lattlefase, Inc.     28   CHT     293   CHU     204   Masson Lamber Co.     205   CYT     206   CAN     207   National Lockwasher Co.     208   CYT     209   Curf Littlefase Inc.     2111   COC     223   Curf Littlefase Inc.     224   CMF     235   Curf V     246   Masson Lamber Co.     247   CAN   Sangano Electric Orp. <tr< td=""><td>13</td><td><math>\mathbf{CSF}</math></td><td>Sprague Electric Co.</td><td>N. Adams. Mass.</td></tr<>	13	$\mathbf{CSF}$	Sprague Electric Co.	N. Adams. Mass.
18   CG   General Electric Co. (Lamp Dept.) Humason Mig. Co.   Nela Park. Cleveland, Ohio   Nela Park. Cleveland, Ohio     30   Mass. Machine Shop   Si 7 Albany St., Roxbury, Mass.   Forestrille, Conn.     31   Cher Mass. Machine Shop   Si 7 Albany St., Roxbury, Mass.   Cherokee BVd. & Migr's Rd., Chattanooga, Tenn.     36   CIR   International Resistance Co.   200 "Pt st., So. Boston, Mass.     36   CIR   Laminated Sheet Products Corp.   200 "Pt st., So. Boston, Mass.     36   CER   Electric Tearanics & Steatite Corp.   475 Tasvenswood Ave., Chicago, III.     37   CHU   Hubbel Harvey Co.   National Lockwasher Co.   Newark. New Jersey     37   CAXP   Lord Mig. Co.   1200 N. Clybourne Ave., Chicago, III.   148 Variek SL, New York, N. Y.     38   CPH   American Phenolic Corp.   1830 W. 21th SL, Erie, Pa.   1800 K. Hubbel Phenol, N. J.     395   CAM   Songano Electric Co.   1930 W. 21th SL, Maden, Mass.   1930 W. 21th SL, Maden, Mass.     317   CAN   Songano Electric Co.   1930 W. 21th SL, Maden, Mass.   1930 W. 21th SL, Maden, Mass.     324   CMF   Electric Instrument Corp.   1940 East 138th SL, Bringidel, III.   <		CAW	Aerovox Corp.	742 Belleville Ave., New Bedford, Mass
24Humason Mig. Co. Mass. Machine Shop American Lawa Corp.Forestrülle, Conn.30Marican Lawa Corp. Laminated Sheet Products Corp.Forestrülle, Conn.33CLFLittleines, Inc. 	18	CG	General Electric Co. (Lamp Dept.)	Nela Park, Cleveland, Ohio
30817 Albany St., Roxbury, Mass.46CASAmerican Lava Corp.63CIRInternational Resistance Co.64Laminated Sheet Products Corp.65Laminated Sheet Products Corp.66CFEiro Resistor Corp.67CLFLittlefase, Inc.68CRPEiro Resistor Corp.69CRPEiro Resistor Corp.60CHUHubbell Harwy Co.77CLFUnited Transformer Corp.78CAXPLord Mig. Co.79Cut UUnited Transformer Corp.71Lord Mig. Co.103 W. 12th Sb., Erie, Pa.73CAXPLord Mig. Co.74CAXPLord Mig. Co.75CAXPLord Mig. Co.76Cut UUnited Transformer Corp.77CANSangano Electric Co.78CAXHCanfield Rubber Co.79Ward Leonard Co.103 W. 12th Sb., Erie, Pa.713CANSangano Electric Instrument Corp.724CMFElectric Instrument Corp.725CAYHCorowley, Henry L. Co.726CMFElectric Instrument Corp.727CBZAllen-Bradley Co.728Cut Persey L. Co.729Cut Persey L. Co.731CANSangano Electric Instrument Corp.732CANWarde Stoh-I-Noor, Inc.733CBZAllen-Fradey Co.744Chi Canno Electric Derp.745Chi Chi Corp. Grantera7	<b>24</b>		Humason Mfg. Co.	
46CASAmerican Lava Corp.Cherokce Blyd. & Migris Rd., Chattanooga, Tenn.63CIRInternational Resistance Co.401 No. Broad St., Philadelphila, Pa.64Cast Bitter, Corp.259 'A'' St., So. Boston, Mass.76CLFLittleuse, Inc.725 'A'' St., So. Boston, Mass.77Corp.Erie Resistor Corp.747 Concord Ave., Chicago, Ill.78CHUHubbell Harvey Co.747 Concord Ave., Bridgeport, Conn.79Corp.United Transrmer Corp.141 Concord Ave., Chicago, Ill.78CCTUnited Transrmer Corp.143 W. 12h. New York, N.Y.79Corp.143 W. 12h. New York, N.Y.71Corp.143 W. 12h. New York, N.Y.728CPHAmerican Phenolic Corp.90 N. Broad Stellaw.73CANSangano Electric Co.193 Funk St., Springfield, Ill.74Cantel Rubber Co.90 Bans St., Maiden. Mass.193 Funk St., Springfield, Ill.75CAXHCantel Rubber Co.935 Dornheets Ave., So. Boston, Mass.76CHCFelerson & Neville, Inc.935 Dornheets Ave., So. Boston, Mass.773CBIAllen-Bradity Co.935 Dornheets Ave., So. Boston, Mass.784CCJCrowley, Henry L. Co.90 Broadway, New York, N. Y.783CBICSelectric Instrument Corp.935 Dornheetser, N. J.784CCJCrowley, Henry L. Co.900 Broadway, New York, N. Y.784CCJCorp.1187 Corp.785CHCSelectric Instrument Corp.900 Bro	30			817 Albany St., Roxbury, Mass.
63 63 64 65 76CIR Laminated Sheet Products Corp. Littlefuse, Inc. Littlefuse, Inc. Littlefuse, Inc. B86 CDP100. Broad St., Philadelphia, P.a., So. Boston, Mass. 4757 Ravenswood Ave, Chicago, III. 4767 Ravenswood Ave, Chicago, III. 187 11111 111111 111111 111111 111111 111111 111111 111111 111111111	46	CAS		Cherokee Blyd, & Mfgr's Rd., Chattanooga, Tenn
68Laminated Sheet Products Corp.250 $^{\circ}$ % S., So. Boston, Mass.76CLFLittlefuse, Inc.83CEREric Resistor Corp.84CDPGeneral Ceranics & Steatile Corp.93CHUHubbell Harvey Co.94Wilbell Harvey Co.Kather Co.95Oak Mig. Co.Verwark, New Versey111COCOak Mig. Co.125CAXPLord Mig. Co.128CPHAmerican Phenolic Corp.138CAXSangano Electric Co.138CAXHCanfield Rubber Co.138CAXHCanfield Rubber Co.148Catck Cleart Instrument Corp.149Catck Steart Co.140CAO141Catchel Rubber Co.143Catck Steart Instrument Corp.144Catchel Rubber Co.145Catchel Rubber Co.146Catchel Rubber Co.147Catchel Rubber Co.148Catck Cleart Industries, Inc.149Catck Corp.141Catchel Rubber Co.142CHF242CHF244Catchel Statter Corp.245Aller-Bradley Co.246Cats247Cats248Cats249Cher Bradley Co.244Cats245Cats246Cats247Cher Bradley Co.248Cats249Cats249Cats244Cats			International Resistance Co.	401 No. Broad St., Philadelphia, Pa
76CLFLittlefuse, Inc. $475$ Ravenswood Ave., Chicago, III. $83$ CERErie Resistor Corp. $644$ With St., Erie, Pa. $86$ CDPGeneral Ceramics & Steatite Corp. $CHW$ Hubbell Harvey Co. $97$ National Lockwasher Co.National Lockwasher Co. $CWW$ Stational Lockwasher Co. $97$ United Transformer Corp. $111$ $COC$ Oak Mig. Co. $123$ CUTUnited Transformer Corp. $148$ Varick St., New York, N. Y. $124$ CPHAmerican Phenolic Corp. $148$ Varick St., New York, N. Y. $128$ CPHAmerican Phenolic Corp. $1830$ S. 54th Ave., Chicago, III. $138$ CANSangano Electric Co. $1935$ Funk St., Springfield, III. $186$ CVWeston Electric Instrument Corp. $6$ South St., Moute, Yernon, N. Y. $242$ CMFElectro Motive Mig. Co. $6$ South St., Moute, Yernon, N. Y. $244$ CCJCrowley, Henry L. Co. $Camden N. Higgenort, Cos Angeles, Calif.244CMFElectric Porto747 Concol Ave., Stildand City, N. Y.236CAISBirther Corp.445 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.344Cande Charles Addiard Transformer Corp.445 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.330CEDCannon Electric Development Co.747 Contadard Transformer Corp.3330CCMYeakes Advillamson747 Contadard Transformer Corp.3341CPABussman Mig. Co.747 Cos Angeles, Calif.3332CAICParthere Corp.7465 Hu$	68		Laminated Sheet Products Corp.	259 "A" St., So, Boston, Mass.
83CERErie Resistor Corp.64.4 W 12h St. Erie, Pa.86CDPGeneral Ceramics & Steatile Corp.Crows Mill Bal, Kcashey, New Jersey93CHUHubbell Harvey Co.Crows Mill Bal, Kcashey, New Jersey94COCOak Mig. Co.148 Variek St., New York, N. Y.125CAXPLord Mig. Co.148 Variek St., New York, N. Y.126CAXPLord Mig. Co.164.4 W 12h St., Erie, Pa.127CAXPLord Mig. Co.168.5 W.128CPHAmerican Phenolic Corp.163.6 W. 12th Ave. Chicago, III.138Mason Lumber Co.1935 Funk St., Springfield, III.138CANSangano Electric Co.1935 Funk St., Springfield, III.138CANSangano Electric Co.1935 Funk St., Springfield, III.138Canfield Rubber Co.1935 Funk St., Springfield, III.138Cares Miller.109.5 Con.109.5 Con.138Cares Miller.109.5 Con.109.5 Con.242CMFElectro Motive Mig. Co.100.5 Willer.243Call Cover, Hander Tasforer Corp.118.8 W. Greenfield Ave., Wei Orange, N. J.244CFABussman Mig. Co.118.8 W. Creenfield Ave., Will Wacke, Wis.256CAHSHadio Condenser Co.118.8 W. Creenfield Ave., Will Wacke, Wis.266CAHSBiada Cransforer Corp.128.0 W. Sith & W. Diversity St., St. Louis, Mo.268CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.128.0 W. Christer, Milwauke, Wis.273CBDCananor Electric Development C			Littlefuse, Inc.	4757 Ravenswood Ave., Chicago, Ill.
86CDPGeneral Ceramics' & Steatite Corp.Crows Mill Rd., Keasbey, New Jersey97National Lockwasher Co.National Lockwasher Co.Newark, New Jersey97CUCOak Mig. Co.National Lockwasher Co.Newark, New Jersey111COCOak Mig. Co.1200 N. (Uybourne Ave., Chicago, III.123CUTUnited Transformer Corp.148 Varick St., New York, N. Y.125CAXPLord Mig. Co.148 Varick St., New York, N. Y.128CPHAmerican Phenolic Corp.1830 N. 54th Ave., Chicago, III.138CANSangano Electric Co.1903 S. 54th Ave., Chicago, III.138CVWeston Electric Instrument Corp.90 Dans St., Malder, Mass.148CGJCrowley, Henry L. Co.63 Out Phester Ave., So. Boston, Mass.242CMFElectro Motive Mig. Co.Williamatic, Conn.244CGJCrowley, Henry L. Co.63 Dorchester Ave., So. Boston, Mass.244CGJConveley, Henry L. Co.10 East 158th St. Bronx, N. Y.273CBZAllen-Bradley Co.118 W. Greenfield Ave., Aliwaukee, Wis.284CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.400 East 158th St. Bronx, N. Y.284CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.400 East 158th St. Bronx, N. Y.284CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.400 East 164 ked. Kuington Drive, Worcester, Mass.387CAHCBusman Mig. Co.2301 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.388CAHCBarshael Products, Co.237 Vairifield Ave., Boston, Mass.<		CER	Erie Resistor Corp.	644 W 12th St., Erie, Pa.
93CHUHubbell Harvey Co. National Lockwasher Co. Propressive Stele Rule D	86	CDP	General Ceramics & Steatite Corp.	Crows Mill Rd., Keashey, New Jersey
97National Lock/washer Co.Newark, New JerseyNewark, New Jersey111COCOak Mage, Co.1200 N. Cirbourne dawe, Chicago, Ill.123CUTUnited Transformer Corp.1200 N. Cirbourne dawe, Chicago, Ill.125CAXPLord Mig. Co.1630 W. 12th St., New York, N. Y.126CANMason Lamber Co.1930 S. 54th Ave., Chicago, Ill.137CANSangamo Electric Co.9 Dans St., Malden, Mass.137CANSangamo Electric Co.9 Dans St., Malden, Mass.138CAHCanfield Rubber Co.9 Dans St., Malden, Mass.1390CAOWard Loonard Co.63 Drelinghuysen Ave., Newark, New Jersey190CAOWard Loonard Co.63 Drelinghuysen Ave., Newark, New Jersey190CAOWard Loonard Co.63 Drelinghuysen Ave., Newark, New Jersey238Peterson & Neville, Inc.63 Drelinghuysen Ave., Miwakee, Wis.242CMFElectro Motive Mig. Co.Willimantic, Conn.254CJCordenser Co.118 W. Greenfield Ave., West Orange, N. J.266CAISBirtcher Corp.118 W. Greenfield Ave., West Orange, N. Y.288CADFStandard Transformer Corp.118 W. Greenfield Ave., West Orange, N. Y.284GEDCambridge Thermionic Corp.118 W. Greenfield Ave., Winchester, Mass.317CAYZDial Light Corp. of America90 Draadway, New York, N. Y.284GEDStandard Transformer Corp.123 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.383CADFStandard Tra	93	CHU	Hubbell Harvey Co.	447 Concord Ave., Bridgeport, Conn
111 $COC$ Oak Mig. Co.1200 N. Clybourne Ave., Chicago, III.123 $CUT$ United Transformer Corp.148 Varick St., New York, N. New Jork, N. N.188CANSangano Electric Co.193 Pruk St., Bringfield, III.187CANHCanfield Rubber Co.193 Pruk St., Bringfield, III.188CVWeston Electric Instrument Corp.6 Sonth St., Mount Vernon, N. Y.289Peterson & Neville, Inc.305 Dorchester Ave., So. Boston, Mass.242CMFElectro Motive Mig. Co.106 Instructive, N. Y.251CDICrowley, Henry L. Co.118 W. Greenfield Ave., Milwaukee, Wis.252CDIStreharley, Co.118 W. Greenfield Ave., Milwaukee, Wis.254CMFBirtcher Corp.118 W. Greenfield Ave., Milwaukee, Wis.266CA18Birtcher Corp. for.406 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.317CAYZDial Light Corp. of America206 Cannon Electric Development Co.328CADFStandard Transformer Corp.208 W. Uuxi, Yes., St. Louis, Mo.330CEDCannon Electric Development Co.209 Humbold St., Beston, Mass.344GPANutile Machine Co.201 Humbold St., Beston, Mass.351Cannon Electric Development Co.201 Humbold St., Bac, Con.352CADFStandard Tra				Newark New Jersey
123CUTUnited Transformer Corp.148 Variek St., New York, N. Y.125CAGA1830 R. Junker128CPHAmerican Phenolic Corp.1830 N. J2th St., Frie, Pa.128CPHAmerican Phenolic Corp.1830 N. J2th St., Frie, Pa.128CPHMason Lumber Co.9 Dama St., Malden, Mass.137CANSangano Electric Co.1936 Punk St., Springfield, Ill.148CWWaston Electric Instrument Corp.1936 Punk St., Springfield, Ill.148CWWard Leonard Co.630 Punk St., Springfield, Ill.148CWWard Leonard Co.630 Derchestra Ave., New Jersey190CAOWard Leonard Co.630 Derchestra Ave., Soc Asoto, Mass.242CMFElectro Motive Mig. Co.10 East 138th St. Bronx, N. Y.254Caller-Bradley Co.118 W Greenfield Ave., Allwaukee, Wis.264CAISBirtcher Corp.405 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.273CBZAllen-Bradley Co.118 W Greenfield Ave., Allwaukee, Wis.284Caller Bradley Co.118 W Greenfield Ave., Allwaukee, Wis.285CAISBirtcher Corp.405 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.317CAYZDial Light Corp. of America900 Broadway, New York, N. Y.286CAISBirtcher Corp.425 Concord Ave., Boston, Mass.327CADFStandard Transformer Corp.128 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.328CADFStandard Transformer Corp.129 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.339C	111	COC		1200 N Clybourne Ave Chicago III
125CAXPLord Mfg. Co.1631 W. 12th St., Frie, Pa.128CPHAmerican Phenolic Corp.1830 S. 54th Ave., Chicago, III.158Mason Lumber Co.9 Dana St., Malden, Mass.173CAXHCanfield Rubber Co.9 Dana St., Malden, Mass.188CVWeston Electric Instrument Corp.9 Bars St., Malden, Mass.190CAOWard Leonard Co.9 Bars St., Mout Verrono, N. Y.238Peterson & Neville, Inc.365 Dorchester Ave., So. Boston, Mass.242CMFElectro Motive Mfg. Co.Willimantic, Conn.254CCJCrowley, Henry L. Co.10 East 138th St. Brox, N. Y.266CAISBirtcher Corp.40 East 138th St. Brox, N. Y.273CBZAllen-Bradley Co.118 W. Greenfield Ave., Milwaukee, Wis.284Cambridge Thermionic Corp.40 Bradway, New York, N. Y.296CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.47-54 27th St., Louis, Mo.298CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.90 Bradway, New York, N. Y.391CEDCannon Electric Development Co. Nutile Machine Co. Nutile Machine Co.258 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.393CEDCAMCBarker & Williamson303 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.394CEDCannon Electric Corp. Tempo Mig. Co.258 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.395CAMCBarker & Williamson303 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.396CAMBarker & Williamson303 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.397CAMO			United Transformer Corp.	148 Varick St. New York N. V
128 138CPHAmerican Phenolic Corp. Mason Lumber Co.1830 S. 54th Ave., Chicago, Ill.158 158CAN CAXHSangamo Electric Co. Cambel Aubber Co.9 Dana St., Malden, Mass.157 160CAXHCanfield Rubber Co. weston Electric Instrument Corp.9 Dana St., Malden, Mass.188 170CVWeston Electric Instrument Corp. Peterson & Neville, Inc.9 Dana St., Malden, Mass.188 160CAOWard Leonard Co. Peterson & Neville, Inc.6 South St., Springfieldd, Ill. Warren & Garden St., Bridgeport, Conn.254 262 263 264 2764 2784 2784 289 289 289 289 289 289 289 289 289 280 280 280 280 280 2814 286 2864 2864 287 287 286 287 287 288 288 260 2617 288 266 2617 2764 277 288 266 2618 2617 2764 2764 288 266 2617 277 2784 288 266 2617 2784 2784 289 289 289 289 289 289 289 289 280 280 2764 2764 280 2764 2764 281 2764 2764 281 2764 2764 281 2764 2764 282 2764 2764 283 2764 2764 283 2764 2764 277 2733 2764 2764 2765 2766 2767 2	125	CAXP	Lord Mfg. Co.	1631 W 12th St. Erie Pa
158Mason Lumber Co.9 Dana St., Maiden, Mass.173CANSangano Electric Co.1935 Funk St., Springfield, III.187CAXHCanfield Rubber Co.1935 Funk St., Springfield, III.188CVWeston Electric Instrument Corp.628 Freinghuysen Ave., Newark, New Jersey190CAOWard Leonard Co.628 Freinghuysen Ave., Newark, New Jersey284Peterson & Neville, Inc.365 Dorchester Ave., So. Boston, Mass.284CJCrowley, Henry L. Co.100 East 138th St. Bronx, N. Y.273CBZAllen-Bradley Co.118 W. Greenfield Ave., Afilwaukee, Wis.284Radio Condenser Co.406 East 138th St. Bronx, N. Y.296CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.4087 Huntigton Drive, Lo. Angeles, Calif.298CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.4087 Huntigton Drive, Work, N. Y.294CFABussman Mig. Co.2588 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.295CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.4087 Huntigton Drive, Work, N. Y.296CAMQCambridge Cong.409 OB modaway, New York, N. Y.297CEDStandard Transformer Corp.2588 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.298CAMGCannon Electric Development Co.200 Brank St., Abland, Mass.399CEDSanith & Welch, Printers470 Atlantie Ave., Boston, Mass.310CEDIndustrial Products Corp.214 West Roylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.3128CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.3136<	128	CPH		1830 S 54th Ave. Chicago III
173CANSangamo Electric Co.1035 Funk St., Springfield, III.187CANHCanfield Rubber Co.Warren & Garden St., Bridgeport, Conn.188CVWeston Electric Instrument Corp.623 Feinghuysen Ave., New ark, New Jersey190CAOWard Leonard Co.623 Feinghuysen Ave., New ark, New Jersey190CAOWard Leonard Co.623 Feinghuysen Ave., New ark, New Jersey288Peterson & Neville, Inc.365 Dorchester Ave., So. Boston, Mass.242CMFElectro Motive Mig. Co.Willimantic, Conn.254CCJCrowley, Henry L. Co.10 East 138th St. Bronx, N. Y.266Condenser Co.700 Electric Instrument Corp.118 W. Greenfield Ave., Milwaukee, Wis.284Radio Condenser Co.Cambridge Thermionic Corp.118 W. Greenfield Ave., Milwaukee, Wis.296CAISBirtcher Corp.47-54 27th St., Long Island City, N. Y.298Waldes Koh-I-Noor, Inc.445 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.297CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.445 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.298Standard Transformer Corp.Elston Kedzie & Addison, Chicago, III.299CAMPStandard Transformer Corp.Elston Kedzie & Addison, Chicago, III.291Canon Electric Development Co.209 Brodway, New York, N. Y.392CADFStandard Transformer Corp.Elston Kedzie & Addison, Chicago, III.393CEDCannon Electric Corp.297 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.394CPABarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave			Mason Lumber Co	0 Dana St. Maldon Mass
187CAXHCanfield Rubber Co.Warren & Garden St., Bridgeport, Conn.188CVWeston Electric Instrument Corp.623 Frelinghuysen Ave., New Jersey190CAOWard Leonard Co.623 Frelinghuysen Ave., New Jersey238Peterson & Neville, Inc.365 Dorchester Ave., So. Boston, Mass.242CMFElectro Motive Mig. Co.101 East 138th St. Bronx, N. Y.254CCJCrowley, Henry L. Co.1 Central Ave., West Orange, N. J.262CBICSelectar Industries, Inc.108 W. Greenfield Ave., Afilwaukee, Wis.284Radio Condenser Co.118 W. Greenfield Ave., Afilwaukee, Wis.285CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.4067 Huntington Drive, Los Angeles, Calif.296CAISBirtcher Corp.4087 Huntington Drive, Los Angeles, Calif.298CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.445 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.317CAYZDial Light Corp. of America900 Broadway, New York, N. Y.324CFABussman Mig. Co.253 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.332CADFStandard Transformer Corp.Elston Kedzie & Addison, Chicago, Ill.344Nutile Machine Co.263 Himawtha Ave., Mincapolis, Minn.3512Tempco Mig. Co.203 Himawtha Ave., Mincapolis, Minn.365CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Friefiel Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.366Feewal, Inc.328 CAROHing. Co.378CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Friefiel Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.378CAHCBarker & Wi	173	CAN		1025 Funk St. Springfold III
188CVWeston Electric Instrument Corp.623 Frelinghuysen Ave., Newark, New Jersey190CAOWard Leonard Co.6 South St., Mount Vernon, N. Y.238Peterson & Neville, Inc.365 Dorchester Ave., So. Boston, Mass.242CMFElectro Motive Mfg. Co.365 Dorchester Ave., So. Boston, Mass.244CCJCrowley, Henry L. Co.1 Central Ave., Wiest Orange, N. J.254CCJSelectar Industries, Inc.401 East 138th St. Bronx, N. Y.262CBICSelectar Industries, Inc.401 East 138th St. Bronx, N. Y.273CBZMalee, Koh-I-Noor, Inc.118 W. Greenfield Ave., Allwaukee, Wis.284Radio Condenser Co.4087 Huntington Drive, Los Angeles, Calif.296CANSBirtcher Corp.445 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.317CAYZDial Light Corp. of America900 Broadway, New York, N. Y.324CFABussman Mfg. Co.2238 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.332CADFStandard Transformer Corp.Elston Kedzie & Addison, Chicago, III.334CEDCannon Electric Development Co.2337 Fairfield Ave., Mineapolis, Minn.366Automatic Products Corp.124 West Boylston Drive, Worester, Mass.378CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Mineapolis, Minn.378CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Mineapolis, Minn.378CAHCBarker & Williamson332 Fairfield Ave., Shand, Mass.378CAHCBarker & Williamson332 Fairfield Ave., Shand, Mass. <td>187</td> <td>CAXH</td> <td>Canfield Rubber Co</td> <td>Warron &amp; Cardon St. Bridgenert Com</td>	187	CAXH	Canfield Rubber Co	Warron & Cardon St. Bridgenert Com
190CAOWard Leonard Co.F238Peterson & Neville, Inc.6 South St., Mount Vernon, N. Y.238CMFElectro Motive Mig. Co.242CMFElectro Motive Mig. Co.254CCJCrowley, Henry L. Co.262CBICSelectar Industries, Inc.273CBZAllen-Bradley Co.284Madio Condenser Co.289Waldes Koh-I-Noor, Inc.298CAMQ298CAMQ2096CAIS217CAYZ218Dial Light Corp.219CAMQ2208CAMQ2317CAYZ2324CFA2339CED2330CED2341CAFA2352CAMF2364Standard Transformer Corp.237Standard Transformer Corp.238CAMF239Standard Transformer Corp.2317CED232CADF2339CED2330CED2341Canno Electric Development Co.3332Standard Transformer Corp.3333Standard Transformer Corp.344Standard Transformer Corp.345CARC346Fenwal, Inc.346Fenwal, Inc.347CPB348CARC349Forpressive Steel Rule Die Co.340Forgressive Steel Rule Die Co.346Fourtes Corp.346Fourbes Caster Corp.346Fenwal	188		Weston Electric Instrument Corn	622 Fralinghuyson Ave. Newerk New James
238Peterson & Neville, Inc.365 Dorchester Ave., So. Boston, Mass.242CMFElectro Motive Mfg. Co.1 Central Ave., West Orange, N. J.254CCJGrowley, Henry L. Co.1 Central Ave., West Orange, N. J.262CB1CSelectar Industries, Inc.401 East 138th St. Bronx, N. Y.273CBZAllen-Bradley Co.1 Central Ave., West Orange, N. J.284Waldes Koh-I-Noor, Inc.407 East 138th St. Bronx, N. Y.296CA1SBirtcher Corp.4087 Huntington Drive, Los Angeles, Calif.298CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.4087 Huntington Drive, Los Angeles, Calif.298CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.900 Broadway, New York, N. Y.324CFABussman Mfg. Co.2901 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.339CEDCannon Electric Development Co.3291 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.344Nutile Machine Co.3291 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.344Nutile Machine Co.3291 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.344Sattice Products Corp.124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.352CAHCBarker & Williamson124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.353CAROIndustrial Products, Co.124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.364CPBPrice Electric Corp.124 West Boylston Drive, Cleand, Ohio365Grantic Products, Co.10 Allerton St., Agent, Cleand, Ohio366Gambridge Thermionic Corp.124 West Boylston Drive, Mass.366Fawal, Inc.	190			6 South St. Mount Vernon, N. V.
242CMFElectro Motive Míg. Co.Willimatic, Com.254CCJCrowley, Henry L. Co.1 Central Ave., West Orange, N. J.262CBICSelectar Industries, Inc.40 East 138th St. Bronx, N. Y.273CBZAllen-Bradley Co.10 East 138th St. Bronx, N. Y.284Radio Condenser Co.40 East 138th St. Bronx, N. Y.289Waldes Koh-I-Noor, Inc.47-54 27th St., Long Island City, N. Y.296CANSBirtcher Corp.4087 Huntington Drive, Los Angeles, Calif.298CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.4087 Huntington Drive, Los Angeles, Calif.317CAYZDial Light Corp. of America900 Broadway, New York, N. Y.324CFABussman Mfg. Co.2038 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.332CADFStandard Transformer Corp.Elston Kedzie & Addison, Chicago, III.339CEDCannon Electric Development Co.909 Hemingway St., Winchester, Mass.512Tempco Mfg. Co.901 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.514Tempco Mfg. Co.903 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.738CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.738CAROIndustrial Products, Co.322 F. Church St. & 2nd St., Ashland, Mass.738CAROIndustrial Products, Co.740 Kashland, Mass.738CAROIndustrial Products, Co.322 F. Church St. & 2nd St., Prederick, Md.7366Faultiess Caster Corp.332 F. Church St., Lynn, Mass.7367Faultiess Caster Corp.332 Fei	238	0110		0 South St., Would Vernon, N. Y.
254CCJCrowley, Henry L. Co.Tempo Mig. Co.262CB1CSelectar Industries, Inc.1 Central Ave., West Orange, N. J.273CBZAllen-Bradley Co.401 East 138th St. Bronx, N. Y.284Radio Condenser Co.401 East 138th St. Bronx, N. Y.286Radio Condenser Co.408 Fabruary296CA1SBirtcher Corp.4754 27th St., Long Island City, N. Y.298CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.445 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.298CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.445 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.294CFABussman Mig. Co.2038 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.324CEDCannon Electric Development Co.2038 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.339CEDCannon Electric Development Co.3291 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.344Nutile Machine Co.95 Hemingway St., Winchester, Mass.512Tempo Mig. Co.3031 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.514Tempo Mig. Co.3031 Hiawatha Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.738CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.738CAROIndustrial Products, Co.332 F. Church St. & 2nd St., Frederick, Md.1366Free Electric Corp.332 F. Church St. & Land Mass.1366Faultess Caster Corp.30 Oliver St., Boston, Mass.1368CANOIndustrial Products Co.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.30 Oliver St., Boston, Mass.369CBN	242	CME		303 Dorchester Ave., So. Boston, Mass.
273 284 284 289CBZAllen-Bradley Co. Radio Condenser Co. Waldes Koh-I-Noor, Inc.118 W. Greenfield Ave., Milwaukee, Wis. Camden, New Jersey296 298 298 298 298 298 217CANSBirtcher Corp. Birtcher Corp.47-54 27th St., Loug Island City, N. Y. 4087 Huntington Drive, Los Angeles, Calif. 445 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.298 298 298 298 298 298 209 2011CAMQ Cambridge Thermionic Corp. Of Marica 2012 2012 2013Huntington Drive, Los Angeles, Calif. 445 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.2013 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2028 2028 2029 2029 2029 2020 20217 20218 20218 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 20238 20219118 W. Greenfield Ave., Milwaukee, Wis. Camden, New Jersey 2027 20218 20218 20219 20218 20218 20218 20219118 W. Greenfield Ave., Milwaukee, Wis. 20218 20218 20218 20218 20218 20218 20218 20218 20218 20218 20218 20218 20218 20218 20218 20219118 W. Greenfield Ave., Willwaukee, Wis. 20218 <td>254</td> <td></td> <td>Crowley Henry L Co.</td> <td>Willimantic, Conn.</td>	254		Crowley Henry L Co.	Willimantic, Conn.
273 284 284 289CBZAllen-Bradley Co. 	262		Soloctor Industries Inc.	I Central Ave., West Orange, N. J.
284Radio Condenser Co.Cambra description289Waldes Koh-I-Noor, Inc.Cambra description296CA1SBirtcher Corp.47-54 27th St., Long Island City, N. Y.298CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.445 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.317CAYZDial Light Corp. of America900 Broadway, New York, N. Y.324CFABussman Mfg. Co.238 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.332CADFStandard Transformer Corp.Elston Kedzie & Addison, Chicago, III.334CEDCannon Electric Development Co.3291 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.344Nutile Machine Co.900 Broadway, New York, N. Y.3512Tempco Mfg. Co.301 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.665Automatic Products Corp.124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.738CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.1306CPBIndustrial Products, Co.900 Biroski, Aston, Mass.1366Forgerssive Steel Rule Die Co.700 Cleveland, Ohio1368Resistance Products Corp.714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.731 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBartyr Corp.731 Main St., Acton, Mass.	273	ČBZ	Allen-Bradley Co	401 East 136th St. Dronx, N. Y. 118 W. Greenfield Ave. Milweylees Wit
289Waldes Koh-I-Noor, Inc.47-54 27th St., Long Island City, N. Y.296CA1SBirtcher Corp.4087 Huntington Drive, Los Angeles, Calif.298CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.4087 Huntington Drive, Los Angeles, Calif.317CAYZDial Light Corp. of America900 Broadway, New York, N. Y.324CFABussman Mfg. Co.2588 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.332CADFStandard Transformer Corp.Elston Kedzie & Addison, Chicago, Ill.339CEDCannon Electric Development Co.3291 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.344Nutile Machine Co.95 Hemingway St., Winchester, Mass.512Tempco Mfg. Co.3031 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.665Automatic Products Corp.124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.665Automatic Products, Co.124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.738CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.858CCMFenwal, Inc.124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.1302CPBPrice Electric Corp.32 Church St., & 2nd St., Frederick, Md.1316H. P. L. Mfg. Co.32 Church St., Lou St., Jenn, Mass.1368Resistance Products Co.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.31 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.	284	0.00	Radio Condenser Co	Camdon New Jarsey
296CA1SBirtcher Corp. Cambridge Thermionic Corp.4087 Huntington Drive, Los Angeles, Calif.298CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.445 Concord Ave., Cambridge, Mass.317CAYZDial Light Corp. of America900 Broadway, New York, N. Y.324CFABussman Mfg. Co.2538 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.322CADFStandard Transformer Corp.Elston Kedzie & Addison, Chicago, Ill.339CEDCannon Electric Development Co.3291 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.344Nutile Machine Co.3291 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.506Smith & Welch, Printers470 Atlantic Ave., Boston, Mass.512Tempco Mfg. Co.3031 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.665Automatic Products Corp.124 West Boylston Drive, User and Mass.738CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.738CAROIndustrial Products, Co.Brockfield St., Danbury, Conn.1302CPBPrice Electric Corp.322 E. Church St. & 2nd St., Frederick, Md.1316Faultess Caster Corp.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.1368Resistance Products Co.714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.	289		Waldes Koh-I-Noor, Inc.	47-54 27th St. Long Island City, N. V.
298CAMQCambridge Thermionic Corp.445 Concord Ave., Cambridge Mass.317CAYZDial Light Corp. of America900 Broadway, New York, N. Y.324CFABusman Mfg. Co.2538 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.322CADFStandard Transformer Corp.Elston Kedzie & Addison, Chicago, Ill.339CEDCannon Electric Development Co.2291 Humboldt St., Louis and Ill.344Nutile Machine Co.3291 Humboldt St., Winkeester, Mass.506Smith & Welch, Printers470 Atlantic Ave., Boston, Mass.512Tempco Mfg. Co.3031 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.665Automatic Products Corp.124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.738CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.1238CAROIndustrial Products, Co.Brookfield St., Danbury, Conn.1302CPBPrice Electric Corp.322 Corp.1316H. P. L. Mfg. Co.332 Corp.324 Corp.1366Faultess Caster Corp.332 Corp.1368Resistance Products Co.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.1368Resistance Products Co.714 Race St., Boston, Mass.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarker Qorp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.	296	CA1S	Birtcher Corp.	4087 Huntington Drive Los Angeles Calif
317CAYZDial Light Corp. of America324CFABussman Mfg. Co.332CADFStandard Transformer Corp.339CEDCannon Electric Development Co.344Nutile Machine Co.344Nutile Machine Co.350Smith & Welch, Printers512Tempco Mfg. Co.665Automatic Products Corp.738CAHC738CAHC738CAMC738CAMC738CAMC738CAMC738CAMC739CCM740Fenwal, Inc.736CCM737Fenwal, Inc.738CARO1302CPB736Price Electric Corp.1366Forgerssive Steel Rule Die Co.736Faultless Caster Corp.7370CAYU738CARO1369CBNB7370CAYU738CAY739CAYU730CAYU730CAYU731732CAYU733CARO734CARO735CARO736CARO737Frice Electric Corp.738GARO739CARO730CAYU730CAYU731The Corp.732CAYU733CAYU734CAYU735CAYU736CAYU737CAYU </td <td>298</td> <td>CAMO</td> <td>Cambridge Thermionic Corp.</td> <td>445 Concord Ave. Cambridge Mass</td>	298	CAMO	Cambridge Thermionic Corp.	445 Concord Ave. Cambridge Mass
324CFA (ADF)Bussman Mfg. Co.2538 W. University St., St. Louis, Mo.332CADFStandard Transformer Corp.Elston Kedzie & Addison, Chicago, III.339CEDCannon Electric Development Co.3291 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.344Nutile Machine Co.95 Hemingway St., Winchester, Mass.506Smith & Welch, Printers470 Atlantic Ave., Boston, Mass.512Tempco Mfg. Co.3031 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.665Automatic Products Corp.124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.738CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.858CCMFenwal, Inc.400 Main St., Ashland, Mass.1238CAROIndustrial Products, Co.Brookfield St., Danbury, Conn.1302CPBPrice Electric Corp.332 E. Church St. & 2nd St., Frederick, Md.1366Progressive Steel Rule Die Co.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.1368Resistance Products Co.714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.	317	CAYZ	Dial Light Corp. of America	900 Broadway New York N Y
332CADFStandard Transformer Corp. Cannon Electric Development Co. Nutile Machine Co. Smith & Welch, PrintersElston Kedzie & Addison, Chicago, III. 3291 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif. 95 Hemingway St., Winchester, Mass.344Nutile Machine Co. Smith & Welch, Printers95 Hemingway St., Winchester, Mass.506Smith & Welch, Printers95 Hemingway St., Winneapolis, Minn.665Automatic Products Corp.3031 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.665Automatic Products Corp.124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.738CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.858CCMFenwal, Inc.400 Main St., Ashland, Mass.1238CAROIndustrial Products, Co.Brookfield St., Danbury, Conn.1302CPBPrice Electric Corp.332 E. Church St. & 2nd St., Frederick, Md.1316H. P. L. Mfg. Co.2003 E. 65th St., Cleveland, Ohio1366Faultless Caster Corp.30 Oliver St., Boston, Mass.1368Resistance Products Co.714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.1369CBNBTeehnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.700 Pleasant St. Watertown Mass	324	CFA	Bussman Mfg. Co.	2538 W University St. St. Louis Mo
344Nutile Machine Co.3291 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.344Nutile Machine Co.95 Hemingway St., Los Angeles, Calif.366Smith & Welch, Printers95 Hemingway St., Winchester, Mass.512Tempco Mfg. Co.3031 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.665Automatic Products Corp.124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.738CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.858CCMFenwal, Inc.237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.1232CAROIndustrial Products, Co.Brookfield St., Danbury, Conn.1302CPBPrice Electric Corp.Brokfield St., Cand., Mass.1316H. P. L. Mfg. Co.Brogressive Steel Rule Die Co.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.1366Faultless Caster Corp.30 Oliver St., Boston, Mass.1368Resistance Products Co.714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.	332		Standard Transformer Corp.	Elston Kedzie & Addison, Chicago, III.
344 506 512 665 738Nutile Machine Co. Smith & Welch, Printers Tempco Mfg. Co. Automatic Products Corp.95 Hemingway St., Winchester, Mass. 470 Atlantic Ave., Boston, Mass.665 738CAHC Barker & Williamson Fenwal, Inc.3031 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn. 124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.1238CCM Fenwal, Inc.Fenwal, Inc.1302CPBPrice Electric Corp. Frederick Corp.Brookfield St., Danbury, Conn.1316 1366 1366H. P. L. Mfg. Co. Faultless Caster Corp. Faultless Caster Corp. Faultless Caster Corp.30 Oliver St., Boston, Mass.1369CBNB Technology Instrument Corp.700 Pleasant St. Watertown Mass			Cannon Electric Development Co.	3291 Humboldt St., Los Angeles, Calif.
506Smith & Welch, Printers470 Atlantic Ave., Boston, Mass.512Tempco Mfg. Co.3031 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.665Automatic Products Corp.124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.738CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.858CCMFenwal, Inc.400 Main St., Ashland, Mass.1238CAROIndustrial Products, Co.Brookfield St., Danbury, Conn.1302CPBPrice Electric Corp.322 E. Church St. & 2nd St., Frederick, Md.1316H. P. L. Mfg. Co.2003 E. 651 St., Cleveland, Ohio1366Progressive Steel Rule Die Co.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.1367Faultless Caster Corp.30 Oliver St., Boston, Mass.1368Resistance Products Co.714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.700 Pleasant St. Watertown Mass			Nutile Machine Co.	95 Hemingway St., Winchester, Mass.
512 665 738Tempco Mfg. Co. Automatic Products Corp.3031 Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.738 858CAHC Barker & Williamson Fenwal, Inc.124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.738 858CCM Fenwal, Inc.237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.738 858CARO Industrial Products, Co.400 Main St., Ashland, Mass.739 858CARO Industrial Products, Co.Brookfield St., Danbury, Conn.7302CPBPrice Electric Corp.332 E. Church St. & 2nd St., Frederick, Md.7366 1366Progressive Steel Rule Die Co.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.7367 1368Faultless Caster Corp.30 Oliver St., Boston, Mass.7369CBNB Technology Instrument Corp.714 Race St., Acton, Mass.7370CAYUBarry Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.	506		Smith & Welch, Printers	470 Atlantic Ave., Boston, Mass
665Automatic Products Corp.124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass.738CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.858CCMFenwal, Inc.238 Industrial Products, Co.1238CAROIndustrial Products, Co.Brookfield St., Danbury, Conn.1302CPBPrice Electric Corp.Brookfield St., Cleveland, Ohio1316H. P. L. Mfg. Co.2003 E. 65th St., Cleveland, Ohio1366Progressive Steel Rule Die Co.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.1368Resistance Products Co.714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.			Tempco Mfg. Co.	<b>3031</b> Hiawatha Ave., Minneapolis, Minn.
738CAHCBarker & Williamson237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.858CCMFenwal, Inc.400 Main St., Ashland, Mass.1238CAROIndustrial Products, Co.Brookfield St., Danbury, Conn.1302CPBPrice Electric Corp.Brookfield St., Danbury, Conn.1316H. P. L. Mig. Co.332 E. Goth St., Cleveland, Ohio1366Progressive Steel Rule Die Co.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.1368Resistance Products Co.714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.	665		Automatic Products Corp.	124 West Boylston Drive, Worcester, Mass
838CCMFenwal, Inc.400 Main St., Ashland, Mass.1238CAROIndustrial Products, Co.Brokfield St., Danbury, Conn.1302CPBPrice Electric Corp.Brokfield St., Danbury, Conn.1316H. P. L. Mfg. Co.2003 E. 65th St., Cleveland, Ohio1366Progressive Steel Rule Die Co.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.1368Resistance Products Co.30 Oliver St., Boston, Mass.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.700 Pleasant St. Watertown Mass	738			237 Fairfield Ave., Upper Darby, Pa.
1238CAROIndustrial Products, Co.Brookfield St., Danbury, Conn.1302CPBPrice Electric Corp.332 E. Church St. & 2nd St., Frederick, Md.1316H. P. L. Mfg. Co.2003 E. 65th St., Cleveland, Ohio1366Progressive Steel Rule Die Co.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.1367Faultless Caster Corp.30 Oliver St., Boston, Mass.1368Resistance Products Co.714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.700 Pleasant St. Watertown Mass				400 Main St., Ashland, Mass.
1302CPBPrice Electric Corp.332 E. Church St. & 2nd St., Frederick, Md.1316H. P. L. Mfg. Co.2003 E. 65th St., Cleveland, Ohio1366Progressive Steel Rule Die Co.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.1367Faultless Caster Corp.30 Oliver St., Boston, Mass.1368Resistance Products Co.714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.700 Pleasant St. Watertown Mass	1000	dia managina dia dia dia dia dia dia dia dia dia di		Brookfield St., Danbury, Conn.
1316H. P. L. Mfg. Co.2003 E. 65th St., Cleveland, Ohio1366Progressive Steel Rule Die Co.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.1367Faultless Caster Corp.30 Oliver St., Boston, Mass.1368Resistance Products Co.714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.700 Pleasant St. Watertown Mass		СРВ	Price Electric Corp.	332 E. Church St. & 2nd St., Frederick, Md.
1366Progressive Steel Rule Die Co.10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.1367Faultless Caster Corp.30 Oliver St., Boston, Mass.1368Resistance Products Co.714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.700 Pleasant St. Watertown Mass			H. P. L. Mfg. Co.	2003 E. 65th St., Cleveland, Ohio
1368Resistance Products Co.714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.700 Pleasant St. Watertown Mass			Progressive Steel Rule Die Co.	10 Allerton St., Lynn, Mass.
1368Resistance Products Co.714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.700 Pleasant St. Watertown Mass	1367		Faultless Caster Corp.	30 Oliver St., Boston, Mass.
1369CBNBTechnology Instrument Corp.531 Main St., Acton, Mass.1370CAYUBarry Corp.700 Pleasant St. Watertown Mass		ann		714 Race St., Harrisburg, Pa.
1370 CAYU Barry Corp. 700 Pleasant St. Watertown Mass		CBNB	Technology Instrument Corp.	531 Main St., Acton, Mass.
	$\begin{array}{c} 1370\\ 1372 \end{array}$	CAYU	Barry Corp. Triangle Screw Machine Products Co.	700 Pleasant St., Watertown, Mass. Cross St., Winchester, Mass. 274 Pine St., Providence, R. I.

PARTS LIST

## INDEX

### SUBJECT

FIGURE OR TABLE PAGE

### A

Alignment		
Buffer		7-9, 7-10
Carrier Balance		7-13
Carrier Calibrate		7-13, 7-14
Crystal Oscillator		7-8, 7-9
Deviation Calibration		7-11, 7-12
Initial Adjustments and Performance Test		3-7, 3-8, 3-9,
		3-10
Linearity		7-12, 7-13
Mark and Space		7-11
Mechanical		7-14
Mixer		7-10, 7-11
Oven Thermostat		7-14
Phase Modulation		7-13
Phase Modulation Frequency Control		7-13
R.F. Power Amplifier		7-10, 7-11
Amplifier Oscillator	1-4	
Brief Description	······	1-1
Arrangement of Units		3-1

#### В

Balanced Mixer Stage		
Circuit Theory	·····	2-14
Schematic	2-13	
Block Outline of Transmitting Station Employing the		
Keyer	2-1	2-1
Buffer Amplifier Stage		
Circuit Theory		2-15
Schematic	2-14	

## С

	2-6
2-4	
	2-3
	2-4
2-13	2-14,
2-14	2-15
2-4	2-6
2-12	2-14
2-17	2-18,
	2-13 2-14 2-4 2-12

## ORIGINAL

2-15

2–19

i-0

Deviation Stages     2-8     2-8, 2-9, 2-10, 2-11       Functional Block Diagram     2-2     2-11       Functional Block Diagram     2-2     2-2       Liniter Stages     2-3     2-4, 2-5       Phase Modulation Oscillator     2-6     2-6, 2-8       Photo Input     2-5     2-6       Power Amplifier     2-15     2-15, 2-16       Power Supply     2-16     2-17, 2-18       Puise Shaper     2-7     2-8, 2-9, 2-10, 2-18       Component Locations     2-11     2-17, 2-18       Component Locations     7-3     2-7       Component Locations, Front View of     7-8     7-8       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of     7-11     7-12       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of     7-9     7-9       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of     7-10     7-11       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of     7-30     7-41       Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier     7-25     7-36       Oscillator AM-655/URT     7-28     7-39       Front Panel Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier <th>SUBJECT</th> <th>FIGURE OR TABLE</th> <th>PAGE</th>	SUBJECT	FIGURE OR TABLE	PAGE
Functional Block Diagram     2-2     2-2       Limiter Stages     2-3     2-4, 2-5       Phase Modulation Oscillator     2-6     2-6, 2-8       Power Amplifier     2-15     2-15, 2-16       Power Supply     2-11     2-12, 2-2, 2-3       Reactance Modulator     2-7     2-8, 2-9       Reactance Modulator     2-4     2-4       Circuit Constants     7-7     2-8, 2-9       Component Locations     7-3     7-3       Component Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT     7-8     7-8       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT with Panel     7-12     7-13       Door Open     7-11     7-12     7-13       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT     7-9     7-9       Open Open     7-11     7-12     7-11       Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT     7-25     7-36       Capacitor Locations, Top View of Amplifier     7-30     7-41     7-35       Component Locations, Top View of Maplifier     7-30     7-41     7-35	Deviation Stages	2-8	
Functional Block Diagram     2-2     2-2       Limiter Stages     2-3     2-4, 2-5       Phase Modulation Oscillator     2-6     2-6, 2-8       Photo Input     2-5     2-6       Power Amplifier     2-15     2-15, 2-16       Power Supply     2-16     2-16, 2-17, 2-18       Palse Shaper     2-7     2-8, 2-9       Reactance Modulator     2-11     2-12, 2-13       Test-Operate and Calibrate Switch     2-11     2-12, 2-13       Circuit Constants     7-3     7-8       Component Locations, Front View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT with Panel     7-12     7-13       Door Open     7-11     7-12     7-13       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT     7-9     7-9       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT     7-10     7-11       Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT     7-26     7-36       Ocoropen     7-20     7-36     7-36       Capacitor Locations, Top View of Amplifier     7-30     7-41       Oscoponent Locations, Top View o	Frequency Modulated Oscillator	2-9	2-11
Limiter Stages     2-3     2-4, 2-5       Phase Modulation Oscillator     2-6     2-6, 2-8       Photo Input     2-15     2-6       Power Amplifier     2-16     2-16, 2-17, 2-18       Pulse Shaper     2-7     2-8, 2-9       Reactance Modulator     2-11     2-12, 2-13       Test-Operate and Calibrate Switch     2-4     2-7       Circuit Constants     2-7     2-8, 2-9       Component Locations     7-3     2-4       Component Locations     7-3     2-4       Component Locations AM-655/URT     7-8     7-8       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of     7-11     7-12       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of     7-25     7-36       Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT     7-25     7-36       Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier-     7-25     7-36 <td< td=""><td></td><td>2-2</td><td>2-2</td></td<>		2-2	2-2
Phase Modulation Oscillator     26     216     216     216     216     216     216     216     216     217     213     3	-	2-3	2-4, 2-5
Photo Input     2-5     2-6       Power Amplifier     2-15     2-15, 2-16       Power Supply     2-16     2-16, 2-17, 2-18       Pulse Shaper     2-7     2-8, 2-9       Reactance Modulator     2-11     2-12, 2-13       Test-Operate and Calibrate Switch     2-4     2-4       Circuit Constants     7-3     7-3       Component Locations     Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of     7-8     7-8       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of     7-12     7-13     7-12       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of     7-9     7-9     7-9       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of     7-10     7-11     7-12       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of     7-25     7-36     7-36       Capacitor Ad-655/URT     7-26     7-35     7-36       Capacitor Ad-655/URT     7-28     7-39     7-41       Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier-     7-30     7-41     7-35       Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier-     7-30     7-41     7-35       Component Locations, Top View of M	-	2-6	
Power Amplifier     2-15     2-15, 2-16       Power Supply     2-16     2-16, 2-17, 2-18       Pulse Shaper     2-7     2-8, 2-9       Reactance Modulator     2-11     2-12, 2-13       Test-Operate and Calibrate Switch     2-4     2-11       Component Locations     2-4     2-12, 2-13       Component Locations, Front View     7-8     7-8       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of     7-12     7-13       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of     7-12     7-13       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of     7-9     7-9       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of     7-9     7-9       Anplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT     7-10     7-11       Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier-     7-25     7-36       Oscillator AM-655/URT     7-24     7-35       Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier-     7-24     7-35       Oscillator AM-655/URT     7-26     7-36       Capacitor Locations, Top View of Amplifier-     7-24     7-35       Oscillator AM-655/URT     7-26     7-39		2-5	
Power Supply     2-16     2-16, 2-17, 2-18       Pulse Shaper     2-7     2-8, 2-9       Reactance Modulator     2-11     2-12, 2-13       Test-Operate and Calibrate Switch     2-11     2-12, 2-13       Component Locations     2-14     2-4       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Bottom View     7-8     7-8       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of     7-12     7-13       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of     7-12     7-13       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of     7-11     7-12       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of     7-9     7-9       Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of     7-10     7-11       Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT     7-25     7-36       Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT     7-26     7-35       Component Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT     7-26     7-36       Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT     7-26     7-37       Docify UR Totop View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT     7-26     7-37	-	2-15	
Pulse Shaper2-72-8, 2-9Reactance Modulator2-12, 2-13Test-Operate and Calibrate Switch2-4Circuit Constants7-3Component Locations7-8Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT with Panel7-8Door Open7-12Door Open7-11Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT with Panel7-9Door Open7-11Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-9Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Adulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-10Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-10Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-30Capacitor Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-26Oscillator AM-655/URT7-26Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-26Oscillator AM-655/URT7-26Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-26Seitator AM-655/URT7-26Component Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-26Power Supply MD-165/URT7-26Controls Assembly of Oscillator AM-655/URT7-26Controls Assembly of Oscillator AM-655/URT7-26Controls Assembly of Controls Assembly of 	-	-	
Reactance Modulator2-112-12, 2-13Circuit Constants2-4Circuit Constants7-3Component LocationsBottom Viewof Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-8Aligament Adjustment Locations, Front View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT with Panel7-12Door Open7-12Door Open7-11Aligament Adjustment Locations, Front View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-9Aligament Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-10Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-10Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-24Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-24Component Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-26Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-26Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-26Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Side Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-31Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6Correction PageCCCountols Coscillator AM-655/URT3-4, 3-5, 3-6Controls Coscillator AM-655/URT3-4, 3-5, 3-6Controls Costillator AM-655/URT3-4, 3-5, 3-6<	•••		
Test-Operate and Calibrate Switch2-4Circuit Constants7-3Component Locations7-3Alignment Adjustment Locations, Bottom View7-8of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT with Panel7-8Door Open7-12Door Open7-12Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View ofAnignment Adjustment Locations, Front View ofAlignment Adjustment Locations, Front View ofAlignment Adjustment Locations, Top View ofAnignment Adjustment Locations, Top View ofAmplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URTAlignment Adjustment Locations, Top View ofModulator-Power Supply MD-165/URTOscillator AM-655/URTOscillator AM-655/URTTo-26To-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URTTo-20Oscillator AM-655/URTOscillator AM-655/URTOscillator AM-655/URTTo-20Oscillator AM-655/URTTo-21Oscillator AM-655/URTTo-22Oscillator AM-655/URTTo-23To-24Oscillator AM-655/URT <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td>			-
Circuit Constants7-3Component Locations7-8Alignment Adjustment Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-8Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT with Panel7-12Door Open7-12Door Open7-11Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT with Panel7-9Door Open7-9Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-9Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-10Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-25Oscillator AM-655/URT7-26Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Loca- tions, Bottom View of Madulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-24Oscillator AM-655/URT7-26Power Supply MD-165/URT7-28Power Supply MD-165/URT7-26Power Supply MD-165/URT7-26Power Supply MD-165/URT7-26Power Supply MD-165/URT7-26Power Supply MD-165/URT7-26Power Supply MD-165/URT7-29Oscillator AM-655/URT7-29Oscillator AM-655/URT7-29Connectors, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-21Oscillator AM-655/URT7-29Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-6Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-6Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-6Connectors, Assembly of3-1, 3-3Connectors, As			
Component LocationsAlignment Adjustment Locations, Bottom View7-87-8Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of7-127-13Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of7-127-13Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of7-117-12Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of7-97-9Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of7-97-9Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of7-107-11Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier-7-257-36Oscillator Adv655/URT7-257-36Capacitor Locations, Top View of Amplifier-7-307-41Oscillator Adv655/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier-7-267-37Oscillator Adv655/URT7-267-37Pront Panel Component Locations, Top View of Adulator-3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-7-267-37Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Pront Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-7-297-40Silde Mechanism Part Locations, Left Silde View7-317-42Osnilator Adv655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6Controls3-7, 3-83-4, 3-5, 3-6Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-1, 3-3Crystals, Installation of3-1, 3-37-14Crystals, Installation of3-1,	-		
Alignment Adjustment Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-87-8Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT with Panel Door Open7-127-13Door Open7-127-13Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT with Panel Door Open7-117-12Door Open7-117-12Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-97-9Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-107-11Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-307-41Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-307-41Oscillator AM-655/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-267-37Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Stilder Chansins Datom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Stilder Chansins Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of Correction Page3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6Controls Correction PageCCCCouplings, Removal of Circuit Theory2-122-14, 2-15Schematic Circuit Theory2-122-14, 2-15			/-)
of Åmplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-87-8Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT with Panel7-127-13Door Open7-117-127-13Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT with Panel7-97-9Door Open7-117-127-11Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-97-9Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-107-11Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-257-36Capacitor Locations, Top View of MD-165/URT7-307-41Component Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-287-39Pront Panel Component Iocations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of Controls3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6Controls3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-63-1, 3-3Crystal S, Installation of Crystal S, Installation of Crystal Oven2-122-14, 2-15	•		
Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT with Panel Door Open7-127-13Door Open7-127-13Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT with Panel7-117-12Door Open7-97-9Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-97-9Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-107-11Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-257-36Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Loca- tions, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mchanism Battom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6ControlsControlsCcCouplings, Removal ofControlsCcCouplings, Removal of3-1, 3-3Crystal OvenCollator-Amplifier2-122-14, 2-15	of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT	7-8	7-8
Door Open7-127-13Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT with Panel Door Open7-117-12Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-97-9Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-107-11Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-257-36Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Loca- tions, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-287-39Stront Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier; Oscillator AM-655/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6Connectors, Assembly of Controls3-4, 3-5, 3-63-1, 3-3-4, 3-5, 3-6ControlsCCCCCouplings, Removal of Crystal Oven2-122-14, 2-152-14, 2-15	÷ ,		
Alignment Adjustment Locations, Front View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT with Panel Door Open7-117-12Door Open7-117-12Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-97-9Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-107-11Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-257-36Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-307-41Component Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-287-39Front Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Silide Ad-655/URT7-297-403Silide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of Controls3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-64-1, 4-2Correction PageCCCCCouplings, Removal of Circuit Theory2-122-14, 2-152-14, 2-15Schematic Crystal OvenC-14, 2-15C2-12	Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT with Pane <sup>1</sup>		
Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT with Panel7-117-12Door Open7-117-12Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of7-97-9Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of7-107-11Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-107-11Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier-7-257-36Oscillator AM-655/URT7-257-36Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Loca- tions, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply7-41MD-165/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-28Oscillator AM-655/URT7-287-39Front Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6ControlsCCCCCouplings, Removal of3-1, 3-37-142-12Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier Circuit Theory2-122-122-14, 2-15	Door Open	7-12	7–13
Door Open7-117-12Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-657/URT7-97-9Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-107-11Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-257-36Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Loca- tions, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-207-41Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-287-39Front Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Silde Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6ControlsGenerotics, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-64-1, 4-2ControlsCCCCCouplings, Removal ofGenerotics3-1, 3-33-1, 3-3Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier Circuit Theory2-122-122-14, 2-15			
Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-97-9Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-107-11Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-257-36Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Loca- tions, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-207-41Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-287-39Front Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mcchanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of Gamplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6ControlsCCCCouplings, Removal of Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier Circuit Theory2-122-14, 2-15Schematic Crystal Oven2-12C2-12		7-11	7-12
Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-97-9Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-107-11Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-257-36Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Loca- tions, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-207-41Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-287-39Front Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of Gamplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6ControlsCCCCCouplings, Removal of Crievit Theory7-143-1, 3-32-14, 2-15Schematic Schematic2-122-122-14, 2-15	-		
Alignment Adjustment Locations, Top View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-107-11Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-257-36Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Loca- tions, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-307-41Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-287-39Front Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6ControlsCCCCouplings, Removal of7-143-1, 3-3Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier Circuit Theory2-122-12Crystal Oven2-122-12		7-9	7-9
Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-107-11Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-257-36Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Loca- tions, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-307-41Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-287-39Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier; Oscillator AM-655/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier; Oscillator AM-655/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-64-1, 4-2ControlsCCCCouplings, Removal of7-143-1, 3-3Crystal, Installation of Schematic2-122-14, 2-15Schematic2-122-12C	•		
Capacitor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-257-36Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Loca- tions, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply7-307-41MD-165/URT7-307-41Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-247-35Oscillator AM-655/URT7-287-39Front Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier; Oscillator AM-655/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6ControlsCCCCouplings, Removal of3-1, 3-33-1, 3-3Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier Circuit Theory2-122-12Crystal Oven2-122-12	÷ · · ·	7-10	7-11
Oscillator AM-655/URT7-257-36Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply7-307-41MD-165/URT7-307-41Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-247-35Oscimponent Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-287-39Front Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier; Oscillator AM-655/URT7-267-37Oscillator AM-655/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6ControlsCCCCouplings, Removal ofC7-14Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier Schematic2-122-14, 2-15			
Capacitor and Miscellaneous Component Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-307-41Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-287-39Front Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier; Oscillator AM-655/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6ControlsCCCCouplings, Removal ofCCCrystal, Installation of2-14, 2-15Schematic2-122-14, 2-15		7-25	7-36
tions, Bottom View of Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT7-307-41Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-287-39Front Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier; Oscillator AM-655/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6Controls		2	
MD-165/URT   7-30   7-41     Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier-   7-24   7-35     Oscillator AM-655/URT   7-24   7-35     Component Locations, Top View of Modulator-   7-28   7-39     Power Supply MD-165/URT   7-28   7-37     Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier;   7-26   7-37     Oscillator AM-655/URT   7-26   7-37     Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-   7-29   7-40     Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View   7-31   7-42     Onnectors, Assembly of   3-4, 3-5, 3-6   3-4, 3-5, 3-6     Controls   6   4-1, 4-2   6     Correction Page   6   6   7-14     Crystal Oscillator Amplifier   7-14   3-1, 3-3   3-1, 3-3     Crystal Oven   2-12   2-14, 2-15   3-14, 2-15			
Component Locations, Top View of Amplifier- Oscillator AM-655/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT.7-287-39Front Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier; Oscillator AM-655/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6ControlsC2-14, 2-15Couplings, Removal ofC2-12Crystal Oven2-122-12		7-30	7-41
Oscillator AM-655/URT7-247-35Component Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-287-39Front Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier; Oscillator AM-655/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6ControlsCCCCouplings, Removal ofCCCrystal Oscillator-Amplifier Circuit Theory2-14, 2-15Crystal Oven2-12C			
Component Locations, Top View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT		7-24	7-35
Power Supply MD-165/URT7-287-39Front Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier; Oscillator AM-655/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6ControlsCCCCouplings, Removal ofCCCrystal Oscillator-Amplifier2-14, 2-15Crystal Oven2-12C			
Front Panel Component Identification3-73-8Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier; Oscillator AM-655/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6ControlsCCCorrection PageCCouplings, Removal of7-14Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier Circuit Theory2-14, 2-15Schematic2-12Crystal Oven2-12		7-28	7-39
Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Amplifier; Oscillator AM-655/URT7-267-37Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6Controls667-14Correction Page77-14Crystals, Installation of7-143-1, 3-3Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier Schematic2-122-14, 2-15Crystal Oven2-122-12	,		
Oscillator AM-655/URT   7-26   7-37     Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-   7-29   7-40     Power Supply MD-165/URT   7-29   7-42     Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View   7-31   7-42     Connectors, Assembly of   3-4, 3-5, 3-6   3-4, 3-5, 3-6     Controls   6   4-1, 4-2   6     Correction Page   7-14   7-14   7-14     Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier   3-1, 3-3   7-14   2-12     Crystal Oven   2-12   2-12   2-14, 2-15	-	5 7	<i>y</i> 0
Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator- Power Supply MD-165/URT7-297-40Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT7-317-42Connectors, Assembly of3-4, 3-5, 3-63-4, 3-5, 3-6Controls	_	7-26	7-37
Power Supply MD-165/URT   7-29   7-40     Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View   7-31   7-42     of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT   7-31   7-42     Connectors, Assembly of   3-4, 3-5, 3-6   3-4, 3-5, 3-6     Controls   4-1, 4-2   C     Correction Page   C   C     Couplings, Removal of   7-14   3-1, 3-3     Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier   2-12   2-14, 2-15     Schematic   2-12   2-12			
Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View   7-31   7-42     of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT   3-4, 3-5, 3-6   3-4, 3-5, 3-6     Connectors, Assembly of   3-4, 3-5, 3-6   3-4, 3-5, 3-6     Controls   4-1, 4-2   C     Correction Page   C   C     Couplings, Removal of   7-14   3-1, 3-3     Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier   3-1, 3-3   3-1, 3-3     Circuit Theory   2-14, 2-15   2-12     Crystal Oven   2-12   2-14, 2-15		7_29	7-40
of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT   7-31   7-42     Connectors, Assembly of   3-4, 3-5, 3-6   3-4, 3-5, 3-6     Controls   4-1, 4-2   C     Correction Page   C   C     Couplings, Removal of   7-14   7-14     Crystals, Installation of   3-1, 3-3   3-1, 3-3     Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier   2-14, 2-15   2-12     Crystal Oven   2-12   2-14, 2-15		7-27	/ 10
Connectors, Assembly of $3-4, 3-5, 3-6$ $3-4, 3-5, 3-6$ Controls $4-1, 4-2$ Correction PageCCouplings, Removal of $7-14$ Crystals, Installation of $3-1, 3-3$ Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier $2-14, 2-15$ Schematic $2-12$ Crystal Oven $2-12$		7_31	7-47
Controls4-1, 4-2Correction PageCCouplings, Removal of7-14Crystals, Installation of3-1, 3-3Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier2-14, 2-15Schematic2-12Crystal Oven	•	-	
Correction PageCCouplings, Removal of7-14Crystals, Installation of3-1, 3-3Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier2-14, 2-15Schematic2-12Crystal Oven2-14			
Couplings, Removal of7-14Crystals, Installation of3-1, 3-3Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier2-14, 2-15Schematic2-12Crystal Oven2-14			
Crystals, Installation of   3-1, 3-3     Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier   2-14, 2-15     Schematic   2-12     Crystal Oven   2-12	-		
Crystal Oscillator-Amplifier Circuit Theory			
Circuit Theory			J-1, J-J
Schematic			2 16 2 15
Crystal Oven			2-14, 2-1)
		2-12	
Circuit Theory			2 10 2 10
	Circuit Theory		2-10, 2-19

С

i–1

SUBJECT	FIGURE OR TABLE	PAGE
Schematic	2-17	
Curves		
Frequency Response of 60-cycle Keying Filter		
Z-101	7–13	7-25
Frequency Response of 100-cycle Keying Filter		
Z-102	7-14	7-25
Frequency Response of 200-cycle Keying Filter		
Z-103	7–15	7-26
Frequency Response of 240-cycle Keying Filter		
Z-104	7-16	7-26
Frequency Shift vs. Key Line Voltage, Static		
Test	7-19	7-28
Overall Dynamic Response of Photo Circuits	7–18	7-27
Overall Photo Linearity-Static Test	7-20	7-28
Transient Response of Waveshaping Filters	7—17	7–27
D		
Description of Units		1-1

Deviation Multipliers and Deviation Controls	
Circuit Theory	 2-8, 2-9, 2-10
Schematic	
Disassembly	 7-14

#### Ε

#### F

Failure Report	7-1	7-0
Final Amplifier Stage	7-1	7-0
Circuit Theory		2-15, 2-16
Schematic	2-15	
Frequency Response of 60-cycle Keying Filter	-	
Z-101	7-13	7-25
Frequency Response of 100-cycle Keying Filter		
Z-102	7-14	7-25
Frequency Response of 200-cycle Keying Filter		
Z-103	7-15	7-26
Frequency Response of 240-cycle Keying Filter		
Z-104	7-16	7–26
Frequency Shift Keyer KY-58/GRT	1-1	1-0
Frequency Shift Keyer KY-75/SRT	1-2	1-2
Frequency Shift vs. Key Line Voltage, Static Test	7-19	7-28
Front Panel Component Identification	3-7	3-8

## \*Tables

SUBJECT	FIGURE OR TABLE	PAGE
Functional Block Diagram Fuses and Receptacles	2–2	22 23
<b>G</b> General Circuit Description General Theory and Description Guarantee		2-3 2-1 iv
Initial Adjustments and Performance Test Installation Installation of Crystals Installation Record Interconnections for Frequency Deviation Test Interconnections for Phase Modulation Test	7-5 7-6	3-7, 3-8, 3-9, 3-10 3-1, 3-3, 3-7 3-1, 3-3 vi 7-5 7-6
Keyer KY-58/GRT, Dimensional Outline and Ex- ternal Connection Drawing Keyer KY-75/SRT, Dimensional Outline and Ex- ternal Connection Drawing Knobs, Removal of	3–1 3–2	3-0 3-2 7-14

#### L

Limiter Stages		
Circuit Theory		2-4
Schematic Diagram	2-3	
Localization, Theory of	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	7-1
Low Frequency Oscillator		
Circuit Theory	•••••••••••	2-11
Schematic Diagram	2-9	
Lubrication		6-2

### Μ

Miscellaneous Component Locations, Bottom View		
of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT	7–27	7-38
Modes of Operation	••••••	2-3, 2-4
Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT	1-3	
Brief Description		1-1
Modulator-Power Supply MD-165/URT with Panel		
Door Open	7–11	7-12

## 0

Operating Instructions	 4-2, 4-3, 4-4
General	 4-1
Introduction	 4-1
Operating Instructions for Frequency Shift Keying	 4-2

#### SUBJECT FIGURE OR TABLE Ordering Parts ...... vi Oscilloscope Pattern Representing One Radian of 7-6 Overall Dynamic Response of Photo Circuits ...... 7-18 7-27 Overall Photo Linearity - Static Test ..... 7-20 7-28 P

Parts List		
Applicable Color Codes and Miscellaneous Data	8-6*	8-63
Combined Parts and Repair Parts List	8-4*	8-1, 8-61
Cross Reference Parts List	8-5*	8-62
List of Major Units	8-3*	8-0
List of Manufacturers	8-7*	8-64
Performance Tests		7-3, 7-4, 7-5, 7-6, 7-7
Phase Modulation Oscillator		
Circuit Theory		2-6, 2-8
Schematic	2-6	
Photo Input Stage		
Circuit Theory		2-6
Schematic	2-5	
Positioning of Cabinet	- /	3-1
Power Supply		
Circuit Theory		2-16, 2-17, 2-18
Schematic	2-16	
Power Supply MD-165/URT	1-3	
Brief Description		1-1
Practical Wiring Diagram, Amplifier-Oscillator		
AM-655/URT	7-22	7-31, 7-32
Practical Wiring Diagram of Blister Assembly,		-
KY-58/GRT and KY-75/SRT Keyers	7-32	7-43
Practical Wiring Diagram, Modulator-Power Supply		
MD-165/URT	7-23	7-33, 7-34
Primary Connections		3-5, 3-6
Promulgating Letter	·····	В
Pulse Shaper Stage		
Circuit Theory		2-8
Schematic	2-7	
Purpose and Basic Principles	·····	1-1
R		

Reactance Modulator		
		2 12 2 13
Circuit Theory		2-12, 2-13
Schematic	2-11	
Reference Data		1-2, 1-3, 1-4, 1-5
Repairs		
Electrical		7-7, 7-8. 7-9, 7-10,
		7-11, 7-12, 7-13, 7-14

\*Tables

i-4

ORIGINAL

PAGE

SUBJECT	FIGURE OR TABLE	PAGE
Mechanical		7-14
Report of Failure		vi
Resistor Locations, Bottom View of Modulator-		
Power Supply MD-165/URT	7–29	7-40
Routine Checks		
Maintenance	6-1*	6-1, 6-2
Operators	5-1*	5-1
S		
Safety Notice		V
Scope of This Manual	·	1-1
Schematic Diagram	7-21	7-29, 7-30
Shipping Data	1-2*	1-6
Slide Mechanism Part Locations, Left Side View		
of Amplifier-Oscillator AM-655/URT	7-31	7-42
Spare Parts Boxes		
Shipping Weights and Dimensions	8-2*	8-0
Weights and Dimensions	8-1*	8-0
т		
Teletype Connections		3-5
		2-3
Test Operate and Calibrate Switch		2-9
Transient Response of Waveshaping Filters	7–17	7-27
Trouble Shooting	7-2	7-2, 7-3, 7-4, 7-5, 7-6,
Touble shouling	7-2	7-7
Tubes		
Characteristics of	7-2*	7-16
Complement	1-3*	1-6
Locations of	5-2, 5-3	5-3, 5-4
Operating Voltages and Currents	7-1*	7-15
Replacement of		5-3, 5-4
Tuning Chart	4-2	4-4
U		
Unpacking Instructions		3-1
Y		
Vector Diagram Showing the effects of deviation		
Variation on Carrier Placement	2-10	2-12
Voltage and Resistance Data, Amplifier-Oscillator		- 1-
AM-655/URT	7-3	7-3
Voltage and Resistance Data, Modulator-Power		
Supply MD165/URT	7-4	7-4
Voltage Regulation		2-16
voltage Regulation		2 10

#### SUBJECT

## FIGURE OR TABLE PAGE

Weights and Dimensions of Repair Parts Boxes	8-1*
weights and bink hotons of stephene and	

8-0 7-17, 7-18, 7-19, 7-20, 7-21, 7-22, 7-23, 7-24

\*Table

ORIGINAL

INDEX

Entered 19 June 1960

#### ERRATA SHEET TO CHANGE 1 TO NAVSHIPS 91543

The following revisions are to be made or noted on the appropriate page.

B	
Page	Revision
13-7	Change Para. 2. d. (7) to read: Keyer connections to the photo scanner are made employ- ing cable W-110 connected between the photo input jack J-113 and the photo scanner out- put circuit.
7-2	Un the block CHECK under Photo Operation Loose or broken contacts on Switch S-101 Metering Switch S-102 . Input Cable W-101 . Keyline Jack J-101 Photo Scanner
/	Change Keyline Jack J-101 to Photo Jack J-113
7-5	Change Step 6 of Para. 4. c. (4) to read: Connect a battery source of 5 to 20 volts to the photo input jack J-113 across pins C and B.
6	Change Step 12 of Para. 4. c. (4) to read: Return the battery connections to photo input jack J-113.
17-11	Change Step 1 of Para. 5. b. to read: Connect the battery to the photo input jack J-113. Connect the positive lead to pin C and the negative lead to pin B.
<b>)</b> <sub>8-8</sub>	Add to Column 2 of E-101: marked: Photo input; includes J-113.
8-11	Add to Column 2 of E-122: marked: Photo input; includes J-113.
	Add to Column 8 of J-101; J-113. Change Column 9 to 3.
8-14	Add: J-113, Same as J-101, Photo Input jack.
8-31	Add to Column 8 of P-109: P-115; change Column 9 to 3. Add to Column 8 of P-110: P-116; change Column 9 to 3.
8-32	Add: P-115; Same as P-109; Part of W-110, Photo Input connector. Add: P-116; Same as P-110; Part of W-110, Photo Input connector.
8-53	Add to Column 8 of W-101: W-110; change Column 9 to 2.
8-55	-Add: W-110, Same as W-101, Photo Input cable.